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PART I

Item 1. Business

Avnet, Inc., incorporated in New York in 1955, ttiger with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Comyeor
“Avnet”), is one of the world’s largest industridilstributors, based on sales, of electronic comptmenterprise
computer and storage products and embedded sulmsystéth sales of $17.95 billion in fiscal 2008, #et creates
a vital link in the technology supply chain thanoects more than 300 of the world’s leading eledtraomponent
and computer product manufacturers and softwareldpers with a global customer base of more th&hDD
original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”), elecitomanufacturing services (“EMS”) providers, origirdesign
manufacturers (*ODMs”), and value-added resell&#&\Rs”). Avnet distributes electronic componentspaputer
products and software as received from its suppbemwith assembly or other value added by Avnedifionally,
Avnet provides engineering design, materials mamage and logistics services, system integration and
configuration, and supply chain services.

Organizational Structure

Avnet has two primary operating groups — Electrerarketing (“EM”) and Technology Solutions (“TS”).
Both operating groups have operations in eacheflttee major economic regions of the world: theefinas;
Europe, the Middle East and Africa (‘EMEA"); andiA&acific, consisting of Asia, Australia and Newafand
(“Asia” or “Asia/Pac”). Each operating group has égwn management team that is led by a group pmesahd
includes regional presidents and senior executiitisn the operating group that manage the varfoastions
within the businesses. Each operating group alsallstinct financial reporting that is evaluatedhes corporate
level on which operating decisions and strategamping for the Company as a whole are made. Divéséxist
within each operating group that serve primarilsales and marketing units to further streamlirestiles and
marketing efforts within each operating group antlance each operating group’s ability to work vitishcustomers
and suppliers, generally along more specific prodnes or geography. However, each division refieavily on the
support services provided by each operating greupedl as centralized support at the corporatelleve

Avnet’s operating groups and their sales are dsvist

Fiscal 200¢  Percentage

Regior Sales of Sales
(Millions)
EM Americas $ 3,771 21.(%
EM EMEA 3,631.¢ 20.z
EM Asia 2,923.. 16.3
Total EM 10,326. 57.t
TS Americas 4,806.¢ 26.¢
TS EMEA 2,327.( 13.C
TS Asia 4920 2.7
Total TS 7,625.¢ 42.5
Total Avnet $17,952. 100.(%

A description of each operating group and its besées is presented below. Further financial inftiondy
operating group and geography is provided in Nétéolthe consolidated financial statements appganittem 15
of this Report.

Electronics Marketing

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercdnpassive and electromechanical devices (“IP&BY) f
more than 300 of the world’s leading electronic poment manufacturers. EM markets and sells itsymisdand
services to a diverse customer base serving matynamkets including automotive, communications, patar
hardware and peripheral, industrial and manufaogurinedical equipment, military and aerospace. Ed affers




Table of Contents

an array of value-added services that help customaluate, design-in and procure electronic coraptsn
throughout the lifecycle of their technology protiuand systems. By working with EM from the degiipase
through new product introduction and through thedpict lifecycle, customers and suppliers can acataheir tim
to market and realize cost efficiencies in bothdhsign and manufacturing process.

EM Design Chain Services offers engineers a hottasfnical design solutions in support of the splegess.
With access to a suite of design tools and engimgeervices from any point in the design cyclestomers can get
product specifications along with evaluation kitglaeference designs that enable a broad ranggpti€ations fron
concept through detailed design including new pebéhtroduction. EM also offers engineering anchtécal
resources deployed globally to support productgiediill of materials development, design serviaed technical
education and training. By utilizing EM’s desigradt services, customers can optimize their compioseaction
and accelerate their time to market.

EM Supply Chain Services provides end-to-end smhgtifocused on OEMs, EMS providers and electronic
component manufacturers, enabling them to optimigmly chains on a local, regional or global bajis.
combining internal competencies in global warehogisind logistics, finance, information technologyd asset
management with its global footprint and extengisegner relationships, Avnet's supply chain sersidevelop a
deeper level of engagement with its customers. & bastomers can continuously manage their supinstio
meet the demands of a competitive environment ¢iphdthout a commensurate investment in physicaeds.
With proprietary planning tools and a variety ofémtory management solutions, EM can provide ungpletions
that meet a customer’s just-in-timequirements in a variety of scenarios includiranlenanufacturing, demand flc
and outsourcing.

Suppliers of components to EM include:

» Analog Devices * ON Semiconductc
* Freescale Semiconducl * NXP

* Infineon Technologie « ST Microelectronic:
* Intel * Texas Instrumeni

* National Semiconductc * Xilinx

EM sells to multinational, regional and local OEk contract manufacturers including:

* Benchmark * Hon Hai Precision (FOXCONN
* Celestice « Jabil

» Compal Electronic * Plexus

* Flextronics * Sanmini-SCI

» Garmin * Siemens

Each of EM'’s regions has sales and marketing dimsthat generally focus on a specific customemse,
particular product lines or a specific geographye ®ivisions offer one of the industry’s broadé@st lcards and
convenient one-stop shopping with an emphasis sporesiveness, engineering support, on-time deligady
quality. Certain specialty services are made abkilto the individual divisions through common sopigservice
units. EM Americas addresses the needs of its meand suppliers through focused channels tacgesmall- to
medium-sized customers, global customers, defemd@@rospace customers, emerging customers angécont
manufacturers. In EMEA, divisions which are orgadiby semiconductors, IP&E products and supplyrchai
services address customers on both a pan-Européamgional basis. EM EMEA does business in over 40
European countries, and over 10 countries in thadMiEast and Africa. EM Asia goes to market wiles and
marketing divisions within China, South Asia, Tamand Japan.

Technology Solutions

TS markets and sells mid- to high-end servers, statage, software, and the services required pdeiment
these products and solutions to the VAR channekl$8 focuses on the worldwide OEM market for cotimgu
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technology, system integrators and non-PC OEMsr#tatire embedded systems and solutions including
engineering, product prototyping, integration atfieo value-added services.

TS is a leading partner for system vendors sudBMs Hewlett-Packard and Sun Microsystems. Other ke
suppliers TS serves include:

» Advanced Micro Device « Kingston
*EMC » Network Appliance
* Eizo Nanoe  Seagatt
* Hitachi « Symantec
TS markets and sells its products and servicdsg&® AR channel and embedded computing customeilishwh
include:
» Applied Computer Solutior » Key Information System
« Continental Resource « Logicalis
» The Ergonomic Grou « Sirius Computer Systen
* FusionStorn « Strategic Computer Syster
* Insight Direct » World Wide Technolog

As a global technology sales and marketing orgéioizaTS has dedicated sales and marketing divésion
focused on specific customer segments including ©®EMiependent software vendors, system buildgsses
integrators, and VARs. The TS select line cardsgaenables an exceptional level of attentiorméorteeds of its
suppliers.

TS divisions fall within two primary product solatis groups around the globe:

Enterprise Solutions

With VARs as their customers, these businessesfonuhe global value-added distribution of entiegpr
computing systems, software, storage, servicecamglex solutions from the world’s foremost tectogyl
manufacturers, including IBM, Hewlett-Packard, Sdierosystems, EMC, Network Appliance and other key
suppliers. These businesses also provide complamydoyistics, financial, marketing, sales and tecal services,
including engineering support, systems integrasiod configurations.

Embedded Solutions

These businesses provide technical design, integrahd assembly to developers of application-$jgeci
computing solutions in the non-PC market, includdigMs targeting the medical, telecommunicationdygtrial
and digital editing markets. They also provide [diest microprocessor, motherboard and DRAM module
technologies to manufacturers of general-purposgpaters and system builders.
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Foreign Operations

As noted in the operating group discussions, Awastsignificant operations in all three major ecoito
regions of the world: the Americas, EMEA, and A&tacific. The percentage of Avnet’s consolidatddsshay
region is presented in the following table:

Percentage of Sales
for Fiscal Year

Regior 2008 2007 2006
Americas 48% 50% 51%
EMEA 33 31 31
Asia/Pac 19 19 18

0% 10% 10%

Avnet's foreign operations are subject to a varadtyisks. These risks are discussed further uRilek Factors
in Item 1A and undeQuantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MeatrRiskin Item 7A of this Report.
Additionally, the specific translation impacts oféign currency fluctuations, most notably the Eomthe
Company’s consolidated financial statements athéurdiscussed iManagement’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operaticin Item 7 of this Report.

Acquisitions

Avnet has historically pursued a strategic acqoisiprogram to grow its geographic and market cagerin
world markets for electronic components and computeducts. This program was a significant factoAvnet
becoming one of the largest industrial distributmirsuch products worldwide. Avnet expects to ammito pursue
strategic acquisitions as part of its overall gtostrategy, with its focus likely directed at sreallargets in markets
where the Company is seeking to expand its manestemce, increase its scale and scope and / easeits
product or service offerings.

During fiscal 2008 and the first month of fiscalo20 the Company completed the following acquisgion

Approximate

Operating Annual
Acquired Busines: Group Region Revenue(1) Acquisition Date
Flint Distribution Ltd. EM EMEA $40 million July 5, 2007
Division of Magirus Grouy TS EMEA $500 million October 6, 200°
Betronik GmbH EM EMEA $40 million October 31, 200
ChannelWory TS Asia/Pac  $30 million October 31, 200
Division of Acal plc Ltd. TS EMEA $200 million December 17, 200
YEL Electronics Hong Kong Ltd EM Asia/Pac  $200 million December 31, 20C
Azzurri Technology EM EMEA $100 million March 31, 200¢
Horizon Technology Group p TS EMEA $400 million  June 30, 2008 (FYO0¢
Source Electronics Corporatis EM Americas  $82 million June 30, 2008 (FYO¢
Ontrack Solutions Pvt. Ltd TS Asia/Pac  $13 million July 31, 2008 (FY09

(1) Represents the approximate annual revenue forctigirad businesses’ most recent fiscal year erat pwi
acquisition by Avnet
Major Products

One of Avnet’'s competitive strengths is the breaadttl quality of the suppliers whose products itriftistes.
During fiscal 2008, IBM products accounted for apgmately 14% of the Company’s consolidated saes, was
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the only supplier from which sales exceeded 10%atds. Listed in the table below are the major pcbdategories
and the Company’s approximate sales of each dtimg@ast three fiscal years:

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1,
2008 2007 2006
(Millions)
Semiconductor $ 9561 $9,176.« $ 8,896.:
Computer product 6,925.¢ 5,337.¢ 4,236.¢
Connectors 713.€ 571.2 547.¢
Passives, electromechanical and o 752.1 595.¢ 572.¢

$17,952.° $15,681.. $14,253.

As of June 28, 2008, the Company had more than®@tions worldwide, as well as a limited number of
instances where Avnet-owned product is stored #toruer facilities. Some of these locations consailes,
warehousing and administrative functions for midtipales and marketing units. Avnet sells to custsnn more
than 70 countries.

Competition & Markets

Avnet is one of the world’ largest industrial distributors, based on sal&s|ectronic components and comp
products.

The electronic components and computer productssiniés continue to be extremely competitive amd ar
subject to rapid technological advances. The Colryipanajor competitors include Arrow Electronics¢inFuture
Electronics and World Peace Group. There are agaio smaller, specialized competitors who foqusruone
market, product or a particular sector. As a resulhese factors, Avnet must remain competitivasrpricing of
goods and services.

Another key competitive factor in the electronierqmonent and computer product distribution induitrhe
need to carry a sufficient amount of inventory teatrapid delivery requirements of customers. Haengo
minimize its exposure related to valuation of iney on hand, the majority of the Company’s produate
purchased pursuant to non-exclusive distributoe@aents, which typically provide certain protecsiém the
Company for product obsolescence and price erasithre form of rights of return and price proteatio
Furthermore, these agreements are generally céteelpon 30 to 180 days’ notice and, in most cgzesjde for
inventory return privileges upon cancellation. tidaion, the Company enhances its competitive osly offering
a variety of value-added services which entailgedormance of services and/or processes tailar@tttvidual
customer specifications and business needs sysbiratsof use replenishment, testing, assembly, Igughmain
management and materials management.

Another competitive advantage is the size of th@pber base. Because of the number of Avnet's sep!
many customers can simplify their procurement pgs@nd make all of their required purchases fromef\wrather
than purchasing from several different vendors.

Seasonality

Historically, Avnets business has not been materially impacted bysabty, with the exception of a relative
minor impact on consolidated results from the gtoimtrevenues in the Technology Solutions busidessg the
December and June quarters primarily driven byfifoal year end of key suppliers.

Number of Employees

At June 28, 2008, Avnet had approximately 12,80pleyees.
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Avnet Website

In addition to the information about Avnet contalrie this Report, extensive information about trempany
can be found at www.avnet.com, including informatabout its management team, products and seraiwks
corporate governance practices.

The corporate governance information on the welisitledes the Company’s Corporate Governance
Guidelines, the Code of Conduct and the charteredoh of the committees of Avnet’'s Board of Dicest In
addition, amendments to the Code of Conduct, coteaitharters and waivers granted to directors aaedutive
officers under the Code of Conduct, if any, willfested in this area of the website. These docwsreamt be
accessed at www.avnet.com under the “Investor Rekkt— Corporate Governanceéption. Printed versions of t
Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduttharters of the Board committees can be obtaineel of
charge, by writing to the Company at: Avnet, 118211 South 47th Street, Phoenix, AZ 85034; AttnrpOoate
Secretary.

In addition, the Company’s Annual Report on FormKl®@uarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports
Form 8-Kand amendments to those Reports, if any, filediorished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of 8tes
Exchange Act of 1934, as well as Section 16 filingale by any of the Company’s executive officerdimgctors
with respect to Avnet common stock, are availableh® Company’s website (www.avnet.com under theestor
Relations — SEC Filings” caption) as soon as reallyrpracticable after the report is electronicéilsd with, or
furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Comniissio

These details about Avnet’s website and its cordembnly for information. The contents of the Camyg's
website are not, nor shall they be deemed to keyorated by reference in this Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Forward-Looking Statements And Risk Factors

This Report contains forward-looking statement$iwitspect to the financial condition, results oém@ions
and business of Avnet. These statements are gbnieleaitified by words like “believes,” “expects;anticipates,”
“should,” “will,” “may,” “estimates” or similar expessions. Forward-looking statements are subjeatihoerous
assumptions, risks and uncertainties.

Avnet does not undertake any obligation to updatefarward-looking statements, whether as a resfutiew
information, future events or otherwise. Factoed thay cause actual results to differ materiathyrfrthose
contained in the forward-looking statements incltidefollowing:

An industry down-cycle in semiconductors could sificantly affect the Company’s operating results adarge
portion of our revenues comes from sales of semigactors, which has been a highly cyclical industry.

The semiconductor industry historically has expesésl periodic fluctuations in product supply anchdad,
often associated with changes in technology andufaaturing capacity, and is generally considereldetdighly
cyclical. During each of the last three fiscal yweaales of semiconductors represented over 5aBedompany’s
consolidated sales, and the Compamgvenues, particularly those of EM, closely fallthe strength or weakness
the semiconductor market. While the semiconductdustry has strengthened recently as comparedthdth
downturn experienced in 2001 and 2002 and indusfries appear less volatile, it is uncertain whethis trend
will continue. Future downturns in the technologgustry, particularly in the semiconductor sectoyld negativel
affect the Company’s operating results and nedgtingpact the Company’s ability to maintain its remt
profitability levels.

Failure to maintain its relationships with key sufiprs could adversely affect the Company’s sales.

One of the Company’s competitive strengths is tieadith and quality of the suppliers whose prodilets
Company distributes. However, sales of productssamdices from one of the Compasguppliers, IBM, accountt
for approximately 14% of the Company’s consolidagatks in fiscal year 2008. Management expects
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IBM products and services to continue to accounbfer 10% of the Company’s consolidated salesstaf year
2009. The Company’s contracts with its suppliersluding those with IBM, vary in duration and aengrally
terminable by either party at will upon notice. fhe extent IBM or a group of other primary supg@ier not willing
to do business with the Company in the future Gbenpanys business and relationships with its customerkidoe
materially and adversely affected because its ousts depend on the Company’s distribution of etettr
components and computer products from the industegding suppliers. In addition, to the extent #rgy of the
Company’s key suppliers modifies the terms of theimtracts including, without limitation, the termegyarding
price protection, rights of return, rebates or otkems that protect the Company’s gross margiresuld materially
and adversely affect the Company’s results of dmers, financial condition or liquidity.

Declines in the value of the Company’s inventory umexpected order cancellations by the Company’s
customers could materially, adversely affect itssiness, results of operations, financial conditian liquidity.

The electronic components and computer productssiniés are subject to rapid technological change; and
enhanced products and evolving industry standardigh can contribute to a decline in value or obsoénce of
inventory. During an industry and/or economic dawnt it is possible that prices will decline dueatooversupply
of products and, as a result of the price declittese may be greater risk of declines in inveniaiye. Although it
is the policy of many of the Company’s suppliersti@r distributors like Avnet certain protectioflem the loss in
value of inventory (such as price protection, leditights of return and rebates), the Company damassured th
such return policies and rebates will fully compesus for the loss in value, or that the vendalischwoose to, or
be able to, honor such agreements, some of whicha@rdocumented and therefore subject to theatisorof the
vendor. In addition, the Company’s sales are tyfyicaade pursuant to individual purchase orders, the
Company generally does not have long-term suppngements with its customers. Generally, the Caylpa
customers may cancel orders 30 days prior to shipmigh minimal penalties. The Company cannot sised that
unforeseen new product developments, declinesindlue of the Company’s inventory or unforeseeateor
cancellations by its customers will not materiatyd adversely affect the Company’s business, mesfiliperations,
financial condition or liquidity, or that the Compawill successfully manage its existing and futimeentories.

Substantial defaults by the Company’s customersitsraccounts receivable or the loss of significantstomers
could have a significant negative impact on the Cpamy’s business, results of operations, financialindition
or liquidity.

A significant portion of the Company’s working cegiconsists of accounts receivable from custoniers.
customers responsible for a significant amountcabants receivable were to become insolvent omatise unable
to pay for products and services, or were to becomélling or unable to make payments in a timelgrmer, the
Company’s business, results of operations, findwwoiadition or liquidity could be adversely affedtéAn economic
or industry downturn could adversely and materiaffgct the servicing of these accounts receivablech could
result in longer payment cycles, increased cobbectiosts and defaults in excess of managementiceadons. A
significant deterioration in the Company’s abilitycollect on accounts receivable could also imgiaeicost or
availability of financing under its accounts re@ile securitization program (semancing Transactionappearing
in Item 7 of this Report).

The electronics component and computer industrigs highly competitive and if the Company cannot
effectively compete, its revenues may decline.

The market for the Company’s products and senicgsry competitive and subject to rapid technatadi
advances. Not only does the Company compete wlittr gflobal distributors, it also competes for costes with
regional distributors and some of the Company’s swppliers. The Company'’s failure to maintain andance its
competitive position could adversely affect itsihess and prospects. Furthermore, the Companyisteto
compete in the marketplace could cause deteriorafigross profit margins and, thus, overall paifitity.

The sizes of the Company’s competitors vary acnesket sectors, as do the resources the Company has
allocated to the sectors in which it does businéserefore, some of the competitors may have gréiagncial,
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personnel, capacity and other resources or a mteasve customer base than the Company has ioromere of
its market sectors.

The Company’s non-U.S. locations represent a siggaht and growing portion of its revenue, and
consequently, the Company is increasingly exposedgsks associated with operating internationally.

During fiscal year 2008, 2007 and 2006, approxityai2%, 50% and 49%, respectively, of the Company’s
sales came from its operations outside the UnitattS. Most notable in this growth of non-U.S. sadethe
increasing volume of sales activity in the Asiaioegwhich accounted for approximately 19% of cditsted sales
during fiscal year 2008. As a result of the Compaifigreign sales and locations, those in emergimtydeveloping
economies in particular, the Company’s operatioassabject to a variety of risks that are specdimternational
operations, including, but not limited to, the falling:

« potential restrictions on the Compi’s ability to repatriate funds from its foreign sialigries;

« foreign currency fluctuations and the impact on@uoenpany’s reported results of operations of the
translation of the foreign currencies to U.S. dsl|

« import and export duties and va-added taxes

» compliance with foreign and domestic import andakpegulations and anti-corruption laws, the feglof
which could result in severe penalties includinghetary fines, criminal proceedings and suspension o
export privileges

« changing tax laws and regulatiol

« political instability, terrorism and potential mary conflicts;

« inflexible employee contracts in the event of basexdownturns; ar
« the risk of no-compliance with local laws

While the Company has and will continue to adopasuees to reduce the impact of losses resulting fro
volatile currencies and other risks of doing businabroad, the Company cannot be assured thatrsetures will
be adequate or that its financial results will betmaterially impacted as a result of increasetsaafsloing busines
in those countries.

The Company’s acquisition strategy may not prodube expected benefits, which may adversely affbet t
Company’s results of operations.

Avnet historically has pursued a strategic acqoisiprogram to grow its global markets for electccemd
computer products. That program has enabled Aengblidify and maintain its leadership positiorthie market
place. During fiscal 2008 and through the daténif filing, Avnet has completed ten acquisitionskR and
uncertainties are inherent in the mergers and aitiui process in that such activities may diveanagement’s
attention from existing business operations. Initaatd the Company may not be successful in intixggahe
acquired businesses or the integration may be diffreult, costly or time-consuming than anticipdte
Consequently, the Company may experience disruptivet could have a material adverse effect obugsness.
Furthermore, the Company may not realize all ofahgcipated benefits from its acquisitions, whittuld adversel
affect the Company’s financial performance.

If the Company fails to maintain effective internaontrols, it may not be able to report its finamtiresults
accurately or timely or detect fraud, which couldiie a material adverse effect on the Company’s hass or
stock price.

Effective internal controls are necessary for tloenBany to provide reasonable assurance with respést
financial reports and to effectively prevent fraifdthe Company cannot provide reasonable assunaithaespect
to its financial reports and effectively preveraifd, its brand and operating results could be harfersuant to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company is requinddrnish a report by management on internal robotver
financial reporting, including management’s assesgrof the effectiveness of such control. Intemaitrol over

10
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financial reporting may not prevent or detect naisihents because of its inherent limitations, idiclg the
possibility of human error, the circumvention oeavding of controls, or fraud. Therefore, evereefive internal
controls cannot provide absolute assurance wifego the preparation and fair presentationrdricial
statements. In addition, projections of any evabhmadf effectiveness of internal control over ficgal reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that thermbmay become inadequate because of changesditioms, or ths
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate. If the Company fails to r@mthe
adequacy of its internal controls, including anjuf@ to implement required new or improved corgralr if the
Company experiences difficulties in their implensgitn, the Company’s business and operating resoitil be
harmed, and the Company could fail to meet its g obligations, which could have a material adeeeffect on
its business and the share price.

If the Company’s internal information systems faib function properly, or if the Company is unsuccsfal in
the integration or upgrade of information systermits business operations could suffer.

The Company’s expanding operations put increastignce on the Company’s internal information systén
producing timely, accurate and reliable reportdioancial and operational results. Currently, then@any’s global
operations are tracked with multiple internal imh@tion systems, some of which are subject to onggbii projects
designed to streamline or optimize its global infation systems. There is no guarantee that the @oynpill be
successful at all times or that there will not iegration difficulties that will adversely affettie Company’s
operations or the accurate recording and repodifritnancial data. In addition, these systems ailgext to
computer hacking or other general system failurainthining and operating these systems requiresncamus
investments. Failure of any of these internal infation systems or material difficulties in upgragthese
information systems could have material adversecesfon the Company’s business and its compliariibe w
securities laws.

Major disruptions to the Company’s logistics capétyi could have a material adverse impact on thermany’s
operations.

The Company’s global logistics services are opdrtteough specialized and centralized distributienters
around the globe. The Company also depends almtetlg on third party transportation service purtis for the
delivery of products to its customers. A major imi@tion or disruption in service at one or moreof distribution
centers for any reason (such as natural disag@nslemics, or significant disruptions of servigesrf our third part
providers) could cause cancellations or delayssigaificant number of shipments to customers asd result,
could have a severe impact on the Company’s busioggrations and financial performance.

The Company may not have adequate or cost-effedtiugdity or capital resources.

The Company’s ability to satisfy its cash needsedels on its ability to generate cash from operatamd to
access the financial markets, both of which argestito general economic, financial, competitivegislative,
regulatory and other factors that are beyond tha&my’s control.

The Company may need to satisfy its cash needadhrexternal financing. However, external finanaingy
not be available on acceptable terms or at allbfAkine 28, 2008, Avnet had total debt outstandfrgl.23 billion
under various notes and committed and uncommiites lof credit with financial institutions. The Cpany needs
cash to make interest payments on, and to refindhiseindebtedness and for general corporate g@such as
funding its ongoing working capital and capital erditure needs. Under the terms of any externahfimg, the
Company may incur higher than expected financirmgeages and become subject to additional restrgtoil
covenants. Any material increase in the Compang&nting costs could have a material adverse efiedts
profitability.

Under some of its various credit facilities, then@any is required to maintain certain specifieaficial ratios
and meet certain tests. If the Company fails totrttesse financial ratios and tests, it may be umé&bkontinue to
utilize these facilities. If the Company could wontinue to utilize these facilities, it may nowkasufficient cash
available to make interest payments on and refimamdebtedness and for general corporate needs.
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The agreements governing some of the Com(’s financings contain various covenants and resti@ets that
limit the discretion of management in operating itaisiness and could prevent us from engaging in ®om
activities that may be beneficial to the Companpissiness.

The agreements governing the Company’s financimguding its five-year, $500 million credit faciliand the
indentures governing the Company’s outstanding:y@entain various covenants and restrictions thatertain
circumstances, limit the Company’s ability and #odity of certain subsidiaries to:

« grant liens on assel

* make restricted payments (including paying dividead capital stock or redeeming or repurchasingalap
stock);

* make investment:

* merge, consolidate or transfer all or substantialipf the Compar’s assets
* incur additional debt; c

e engage in certain transactions with affiliaf

As a result of these covenants and restrictiomrsCibmpany may be limited in how it conducts itsibess and
may be unable to raise additional debt, compegztéely or make investments.

In addition to the specific factors described ah@emneral economic or business conditions, domestic
foreign, may be less favorable than managementgegand, if such conditions persist in a sustapexibd of
time, could eventually adversely impact the Compaegles or the Company’s ability to collect reedikes from
some of its customers.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

At June 28, 2008, the Company owned and leased=ppately 851,000 and 3,788,000 square feet ofespac
respectively, of which approximately 43% is locaitethe United States. The following table summesizertain of
the Company’s key facilities as of June 28, 2008.

Sq. Leased or
Location Footage Owned Primary Use
Chandler, Arizon: 399,00( Owned EM warehousing and val-added operatior
Tongeren, Belgiun 244.,00( Owned EM and TS warehousing and ve-added operatior
Grapevine, Texa 181,00( Owned EM warehousing and val-added operatior
Poing, German 423,00( Leasec EM warehousing, vali-added operations and offic
Chandler, Arizon: 228,00( Leasec TS warehousing, integration and ve-added operatior
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kon 181,00( Leasec EM warehousing and val-added operatior
Phoenix, Arizone 176,00( Leasec Corporate and EM headquart
Tempe, Arizong 132,00( Leasec TS headquartel

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

As a result primarily of certain former manufachgrioperations, Avnet has incurred and may havedutu
liability under various federal, state and locatiemnmental laws and regulations, including thoseagning
pollution and exposure to, and the handling, steragd disposal of, hazardous substances. For exammler the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidhiability Act of 1980, as amended (“CERCLA”")dan
similar state laws, Avnet is and may be liabletf@ costs of cleaning up environmental contamimatio or from
certain of its current or former properties, andfétsite locations where the Company disposed of wéstie pas!
Such laws may impose joint and several liabilitypitally, however, the costs for cleanup at sutdssare
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allocated among potentially responsible partiegthagon each party’s relative contribution to tbatamination,
and other factors.

Pursuant to SEC regulations, including but nottimito Item 103 of Regulation S-K, the Company lady
assesses the status of and developments in pesgirgnmental legal proceedings to determine whethg such
proceedings should be identified specifically iis tiscussion of legal proceedings, and has coeditldat no
particular pending environmental legal proceedemuires public disclosure. Based on the informakioown to
date, management believes that the Company has@jgiely accrued in its consolidated financiatest@ents for it
share of the estimated costs associated with thieoemental clean up of sites in which the Company
participating.

The Company and/or its subsidiaries are also ati@arious other legal proceedings arising fronetto time
in the normal course of business. While litigatissubject to inherent uncertainties, managememently believes
that the ultimate outcome of these proceedingsvithaally and in the aggregate, will not have a enial adverse
effect on the Company'’s financial position, casiwflor results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity

Securities

Market price per share

The Company’s common stock is listed on the NewkY&tock Exchange under the symbol AVT. Quarterly
high and low sales prices (as reported for the Mevk Stock Exchange composite transactions) foldksetwo

fiscal years were:

Fiscal Quarters

1st
2nd
3rd
4th

2008 2007
High Low High Low
$44.3:  $34.3¢  $20.2¢ $16.7i
43.7¢ 32.9¢ 26.07 19.4¢
36.7¢ 29.4: 38.01 25.7(
34.12 26.1¢ 43.62 36.3¢

The Company has not paid dividends since fisca20@ does not currently contemplate any futuradivd

payments.

Record Holders

As of July 26, 2008, there were approximately 3,88Klers of record of Avnet's common stock.

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of June 282008

Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon
Exercise of
Outstanding Options,

Plan Category Warrants and Rights

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under Equity
Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (a))

@
Equity compensation plans appro\
by security holders(1

5,349,033() $

(b)

20.21

©

4,007,342()

(1) Options assumed through acquisitions accounteds@urchases are excluded from (2) below. Theandsig
balance of acquired options was 4,688 (columnw}) a related weighted average exercise price36f22

(column (b)).

(2) Includes 3,580,991 of options outstanding and 1, 085stock incentive shares and 728,206 performsinames
awarded but not yet delivered and excludes optsssimed through acquisitions as noted in (1). thegluin the
performance shares is the number of shares argdipa be issued in the first quarter of fiscal 206lating to
the level of achievement reached under the 200@1peance share program which ended June 28, 2@@8 (s
Note 12 in theNotes to Consolidated Financial Statemeincluded in Item 15 of this Repoil

(3) Does not include 288,410 shares available for &utssuance under the Employee Stock Purchasevtéet) is

a nor-compensatory plai
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Stock Performance Graphs and Cumulative Total Retuns

The following graph compares the cumulative 5-ytetal return provided to shareholders on Avnet,’tnc
common stock relative to the cumulative total nesunf the S&P 500 index, and a customized peengodsix
companies that includes: Arrow Electronics, In@|IBlicroproducts, Inc., Ingram Micro, Inc., Jacte&ronics,
Inc., Nu Horizons Electronics Corp. and Tech DabtapCAn investment of $100 (with reinvestment dfdaidends’
is assumed to have been made in Avnet's commok,sStothe peer group, and the index on June 273 200 its
relative performance is tracked through June 28820

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Avnet, Inc., The S&P 500 Index
And A Peer Group

350
—|+ Awvnet. Inc. ):L\

3000
WL A s&p 500 // Kx\‘
250 | —O— Peer Group / \D

_.--'""&""""---.._

200

1 501 — £
00 W

DOLLARS

T T T T T
62703 74204 2105 TG 63007 Df2E08

* $100 invested on 6/27/03 in stock & 6/30/03 in iulecluding reinvestment of dividends.
Index calculated on mor-end basis

Copyright® 2008 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companieg | All rights reserved.

The stock price performance included in this graphot necessarily indicative of future stock price

performance.

6/27/0:  7/2/0¢ 7/2/0¢ 7/1/I06  6/30/07  6/28/0¢
Avnet, Inc. 100.0C 168.6¢ 183.2¢ 161.5¢ 319.9¢ 222.3¢
S&P 500 100.0C 119.1! 126.6¢ 137.57 165.9( 144.1:
Peer Grouy 100.0C 142.8¢ 151.8¢ 171.0( 197.3: 158.1¢
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

The following table includes the Company’s montplyrchases of common stock during the fourth quarter
ended June 28, 2008:

Maximum Number (or

Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Total Shares Purchased a Value) of Shares That
Number of Part of Publicly may yet be Purchased
Shares Average Price.  Announced Plans or Under the Plans or
Period Purchased Paid per Share Programs Programs
April 4,50( $33.4¢ — —
May 12,00( $27.0¢ — —
June 5,50( $31.13% — —

The purchases of Avnet common stock noted above made on the open market to obtain shares fohpse
under the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plane Nf these purchases were made pursuant to &lgubl
announced repurchase plan and the Company doesmently have a stock repurchase plan in place.

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1, July 2, July 3,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Millions, except for per share and ratio data)
Income:
Sales $17,952. $15,681.. $14,253.( $11,066.¢ $10,244.
Gross profi 2,313." 2,048.¢ 1,839.((c) 1,459.( 1,364.¢
Operating incom: 710.4a) 678.5(b) 433.(c) 321.: 202.2(d)
Income tax provisiol 209.¢a) 193.5(b) 111.€(c) 71.t 25.5(d)
Net income 499.1(a) 393.1(b) 204.5(c) 168.2 72.4(d)
Financial Position
Working capital 3,191t 2,711.¢ 2,029.: 2,065.¢ 1,839.(
Total asset 8,200.: 7,355.: 6,215.° 5,098.: 4,863."
Long-term debt 1,181.t 1,156.( 918.¢ 1,183.: 1,196.:
Shareholdel' equity 4,134." 3,400.¢ 2,831.: 2,097.( 1,953.¢
Per Share
Basic earning: 3.3%(a) 2.65(b) 1.4((c) 1.3¢ 0.61(d)
Diluted earning: 3.2%(a) 2.6%(b) 1.3¢(c) 1.3¢ 0.6((d)
Book value 27.4¢ 22.7(C 19.3( 17.3¢ 16.21
Ratios:
Operating income margin on sa 4.C%(a 4.2%(b) 3.C%(c) 2.5% 2.C%(d)
Net income margin on sal 2.8%(a; 2.5%(b) 1.4%(c) 1.5% 0.7%(d)
Return on equit' 13.2%(a 12.7%(b) 7.€%(c) 8.1% 3.€%(d)
Return on capite 10.%(a 11.2%(b) 7.€%(c) 7.5% 5.1%(d)
Quick 1.4:1 1.3:1 1.1:1 1.5:1 1.3:1
Working capital 2.1:1 2.0:1 1.8:1 2.2:1 2.1:1
Total debt to capite 22.%% 26.2% 30.4% 37.2% 41.(%

(&) Includes the impact of restructuring, integratiowl ather items, gains on sale of assets and d#rasiwhich
totaled to a gain of $11.0 million f-tax, $14.7 million after tax and $0.09 per sharadliluted basis (s¢
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Note 18 in theNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statementstained in Item 15 of this Report for further
discussion of these item:

(b) Includes the impact of restructuring, integratiow ather items, gain on sale of assets, debt axshgient cost
and other items which amounted to charges of $3illion pre-tax, $20.0 million after tax and $0.f8r share
on a diluted basit

(c) Includes the impact of restructuring, integration @ther items, loss on sale of assets and delbgeichment
costs (see Note 18 in tiNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statementstained in Item 15 of this Report for
further discussion of these items). In additionc@mparison with fiscal 2005 and 2004, fiscal 28€€ults
include incremental stock-based compensation expesssilting from the Company’s adoption of the Ruial
Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) StatemenEofancial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) 123Bhare-
based PaymerftSFAS 123R”"), and modifications to stock-based pemsation plans in fiscal 2006. The
incremental charges amounted to $16.6 million pre-$10.6 million after tax, and $0.07 per sharadiluted
basis. The Company also incurred incremental amatitin expense associated with amortizable intd@gibset
recorded in fiscal 2006 as a result of the Memegiaition which amounted to $4.2 million pt&x, $2.7 millior
after tax and $0.02 per share on a diluted basis.tdtal impact of these charges amounted to $Ih8li#n pre-
tax, $83.9 million after tax and $0.57 per sharadiluted basis

(d) Includes the impact of restructuring, other chamyas debt extinguishment costs, the total of whictounted to
$72.0 million pr-tax, $52.8 million afte-tax and $0.44 per share on a diluted b:

Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

For an understanding of Avnet and the significastdrs that influenced the Compasigerformance during tl
past three fiscal years, the following discussiboutd be read in conjunction with the descriptiénhe business
appearing in Item 1 of this Report and the constdid financial statements, including the relate@sicand other
information appearing in Iltem 15 of this ReporteT®ompany operates on a “52/53-week” fiscal yehe fiscal
years ended June 28, 2008, June 30, 2007 and  J200& all contained 52 weel

There are numerous references to the impact ofgio@irrency translation in the discussion of tleenpany’s
results of operations that follow. Over the pasesal years, the exchange rates between the Uil many
foreign currencies, especially the Euro, have tlatd significantly. For example, the US Dollar heskened
against the Euro by approximately 12% when compdigtal 2008 with fiscal 2007 and approximately #ten
comparing fiscal 2007 with fiscal 2006. When theaker US Dollar exchange rates of the current yeaused to
translate the results of operations of Avnet's glibses denominated in foreign currencies, thelltawy impact is
an increase in US Dollars of reported results aspaved with the prior period. In the discussion fbows, this is
referred to as the “translation impact of change®ieign currency exchange rates.” When this 4tation impact
of changes in foreign currency exchange rateskétueled from the reported results on a pro formegidét is
referred to as “constant dollars.” Results as rebin the financial statements which include thasslation impact
are referred to as “delivered dollars” or “reportidlars.”

In addition to disclosing financial results thag @etermined in accordance with US generally aecept
accounting principles (“GAAP"), the Company alssaoses certain non-GAAP financial information sash
income or expense items as adjusted for the tdmslanpact of changes in foreign currency excharages, as
discussed above, or adjusted for the impact ofiaitipuns (by adjusting Avnet’s prior periods to inde the sales of
businesses acquired as if the acquisitions hadraztat the beginning of the period presented)dinektitures (by
adjusting Avnet’s prior periods to exclude the salébusinesses divested as if the divestiturebadrred at the
beginning of the period presented). In the disauwstiat follows, the term “pro forma sales” or “argc sales'tefers
to sales adjusted to exclude this impact of actiois and divestiture and the impact of the changeet revenue
reporting as discussed below. Management belidnaptoviding this additional information is usefalthe reader
to better assess and understand operating perfoanaspecially when comparing results with previoeisods or
forecasting performance for future periods, priftgarecause management typically monitors the bgsibeth
including and excluding these adjustments to GA&Rults. Management also uses these non-GAAP measure
establish operational goals and, in some casesmédasuring performance for compensation purposeseker,
analysis of results and outlook on a non-GAAP bsisuld be used as a complement to, and in comjumaith,
data presented in accordance with GAAP.
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Results of Operations
Executive Summary

Comparative financial results for Avnet were imgaicby acquisitions and a weaker US dollar verse<tiro
when comparing fiscal 2008 with fiscal 2007. Asgamrted in the following table, the Company acquiriee
businesses in the eighteen months prior to theoéfidcal 2008 impacting both operating groups.

Operating
Acquired Busines: Group Regior Acquisition Date
Access Distributior TS Americas, EMEA December 31, 200
Azure Technologie TS Asia/Pac April 16, 2007
Flint Distribution Ltd. EM EMEA July 5, 2007
Division of Magirus Grouy TS EMEA October 6, 200
Betronik GmbH EM EMEA October 31, 200
ChannelWory TS Asia/Pac October 31, 200
Division of Acal plc Ltd. TS EMEA December 17, 200
YEL Electronics Hong Kong Ltd EM Asia/Pac December 31, 200
Azzurri Technology EM EMEA March 31, 200¢

In addition, a change to net revenue reporting tteghthe comparative financial results for Avneewh
comparing fiscal 2007 results to fiscal 2006 and tesser extent, fiscal 2008 results with fi7. In
conjunction with the acquisition of Access Disttiilon and reflecting recent industry trends, the @any reviewed
its method of recording revenue related to thessalesupplier service contracts and determinedshel sales were
to be classified on a net revenue basis ratherghangross basis effective the third quartersufdi 2007 (referred
to as “the change to net revenue reporting” in Bhi3&A). Although this change reduced sales and cbsales and
positively impacted gross and operating profit ntedor the Technology Solutions operating grougd an a
consolidated basis, it had no impact on operatiogre, net income, cash flow or the balance sheet.

As mentioned previously, during fiscal 2008, Avsetales growth was driven primarily by acquisitiansl the
weakening of the US Dollar as organic sales grawttonstant dollars was essentially flat year oxgar. However,
the Company’s focus on working capital managemedtast reduction initiatives resulted in an inse= return
on capital as compared with prior periods. Avnetiasolidated sales were $17.95 billion for fisda0&, up 14.5%
year over year, as a result of 6.7% sales gronfvaand 27.1% at TS, with both operating groupsefieng from
acquisitions. On a pro forma basis, year-over-ga#es growth was 4.9% for the Company with EM aBd T
contributing 5.0% and 4.7%, respectively. Despittlowdown in organic growth, the Company improketh
operating income and working capital velocity amterated over $450 million in cash from operations.

Avnet’s consolidated gross profit margin of 12.8@%s down 17 basis points from the prior year gpoefit
margin of 13.06% and operating income margin 06%%leclined 37 basis points from 4.33% in priorryea
primarily due to a slowdown in organic growth irrteén product lines and a business mix shift aswit8ch has
lower gross profit margins than EM, grew to bergéda percentage of consolidated sales as a refsatioisitions.
In response, management took actions during thengealf of the fiscal year to adjust the Compamyost structul
and, as such, recorded $38.9 million pre-tax istfiecturing, integration and other charges” dufisgal 2008.
Operating efficiency and working capital managememnain a key focus of Avnet’s overall value-based
management initiatives to increase return on chgitgrow profitability at a faster rate than itogth in revenues.

It is difficult for the Company, as a distribut¢o, forecast the material trends of the electronimpgonent and
computer products industry, aside from some ohttrenal seasonality discussed herein, because Alasst not
typically have material forwartboking information available from its customersiauppliers beyond a few mont
of forecast information by way of incoming ordetes As such, management relies on the publichiaa
information published by certain industry groups ather related analyses in evaluating its busipksss in the
longer term.
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Sales

The table below provides a year-over-year summasgles for the Company and its operating groups:

Three-Year Analysis of Sales: By Operating Group at Geography

Sales by Operating Group:
EM
TS

Sales by Geographic Area
Americas
EMEA
Asia/Pacific

Years Ended

Percent Change

June 28, % of
2008 Total 2007 Total 2006

June 30, % of July 1,

% of 2008 tc

2007 tc

Total 2007 2006

$17,952.

(Dollars in millions)

$10,326. 57.5% $ 9,679.t 61.7% $ 9,262.
7,625.¢ 42.5

$17,952.

6,001.; 38.3

4,991.;
$15,681.:

$14,253.

$ 8,578.L 47.8% $ 7,826.. 49.9% $ 7,223.¢

5,958.¢ 33.2 4,885.7 31.2 4,374.;
3,415.« 19.0 2,969.: 18.9 2,655.!
$15,681.. $14,253.

Items Impacting Fiscal 2008 Sales Comparison ta&i2007

65.0%
35.0

50.7%
30.7
18.6

6.7% 4.5%
27.1 20.2
14.t 10.C

9.€% 8.2%
22.C 11.7
15.C 11.€
14.5 10.C

The table below provides the comparison of repdiitadl 2008 and 2007 sales for the Company and its
operating groups to pro forma (or organic) saleglwhonsist of reported sales adjusted for (i) &itjans that
closed in fiscal 2007 and 2008 as if the acquisitibad occurred at the beginning of fiscal yea72&td (ii) the
change to net revenue reporting as if the changermed at the beginning of fiscal 2007 to allowd®s to better
assess and understand the Company’s revenue parfoenby operating group.

EM
TS

Fiscal 200¢
EM
TS

Fiscal 2007

2008 to 200
Sales as Acquisition Gross to Net Pro Forma Pro Forma
Reported Sales Revenue Impac Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
$10,326.f $ 187t $ —  $10,514.. 5.C%
7,625.¢ 206.7 — 7,832.¢ 4.7
$17,952.° $ 394.: $ —  $18,346.! 4.9
$9,679.¢t $ 3320 $ —  $10,011.
6,001.! 1,694.( (214.9) 7,480.¢
$15,681.. $2,026.( $ (214.9) $17,492.
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Items Impacting Fiscal 2007 Sales Comparison tac&i2006

The following table provides a comparison of repdrsales for fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 to proiisales
which are adjusted for (i) acquisitions completediscal 2007 as if the acquisitions had occurretth@ beginning o
fiscal year 2006, (ii) divestitures completed ischl 2006 as if the divestitures had occurredexbtginning of fisc:
2006 and (iii) the change to net revenue reporimd the change had occurred at the beginningscélf2006. The
pro forma sales information allows readers to beitsess and understand the Company’s revenuerparfoe on a
more comparable basis.

Gross to Ne 2007 to 200
Sales as Acquisition Divestec Revenue Pro Forma Pro Forma
Reported Sales Sales Impact Sales Change
(Dollars in millions)
EM $9,679.L $ - $ — 3 —  $9,679. 5.8%
TS 6,001.: 994.¢ — (214.9 6,781.¢ 5.8
Fiscal 2007 $15,681.. $ 994¢ $ — $ (2149 $16,461.( 5.7
EM $9,262.: $ —  $(1227) $ —  $9,139.
TS 4,991 1,939.. (1125 (387.9) 6,430.¢
Fiscal 200€ $14,253.(  $1,939.. $(235.0) $ (387.9) $15,570.

Avnet’s consolidated sales in fiscal 2008 were $8hillion, up $2.27 billion, or 14.5%, over pripear. As
previously discussed, the sales growth was drivanaily by acquisitions and the weakening of th& Dollar
against the Euro as an estimated $674 million @fitisrease in sales was attributable to the traoslanpact of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. On fopma basis, consolidated sales and sales foaBdTS were
roughly 5% higher year over year.

EM generated fiscal 2008 sales of $10.33 billi@presenting a 6.7% increase over fiscal 2007 saleduding
the translation impact of changes in foreign curyeexchange rates, EM fiscal 2008 sales increas®d @ver the
prior year. On a pro forma basis, EM sales incr@&s@% over fiscal 2007. EM Americas year-over-ygramwth
was 1.3% while the EMEA region sales were up 9.&¥#ryver year and down 2.2% excluding the tramsiati
impact of changes in foreign currency exchangesr&ales growth in Asia was 10.3% year over yedr7ai% on a
pro forma basis. The Asia region continues to eepee the highest growth rate among the three negio

TS reported sales of $7.62 billion for fiscal 2008,$1.62 billion, or 27.1%, compared with fisc@DZ sales of
$6.00 billion. Excluding the positive translationpact of changes in foreign currency exchange ra®sales were
up 22.6% year over year. On a pro forma basis,al& grew 4.7% over prior year. At a regional legales in the
Americas region were up 17.1% year over year agparted basis and up 1.2% on a pro forma basisoaglyin
storage and networking offset declines in propriesgrvers. In EMEA, sales were up 47.3% on a tepldvasis and
up 9% on a pro forma basis. In Asia, sales growdh 84.6% year over year on a reported basis wkinbflied by
acquisitions. On a pro forma basis, Asia grew 20d8#r prior year, impacted by relatively weak mpmacessor
and memory product sales in the last quarter o&fi2008.

Avnet's fiscal 2007 sales were $15.68 billion, ad®ibillion increase, or 10.0%, over fiscal 2006sdidated
sales of $14.25 billion. Growth occurred in alledrgeographic regions and in both operating grdupsg fiscal
2007. Of the $1.43 billion year-over-year increaggroximately $340 million was a result of thenstation impact
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Mg half of the reported sales growth was attable to the
Access and Azure acquisitions. As presented iptaeeding tables, the comparison of fiscal 200&sstd prior yee
were also impacted by acquisitions, prior year sliteres and the change to net revenue reportifgerithe impac
of these items are considered in both fiscal 20@r2006, consolidated sales growth would have be&b. Both
EM and TS contributed to the year-over-year improget in sales. Specifically, fiscal 2007 salesEdt were
$9.68 billion, up $417.4 million, or 4.5% over f@Q006. Fiscal 2007 sales for TS were $6.00 IiJligp
$1.01 billion, or 20.2%, as compared with sale$4B9 billion for fiscal 2006. Including Access afdure in the
periods prior to the acquisition dates and inclgdime change to net revenue reporting for perioiis o third
quarter of fiscal 2007, TS year-over-year salesvifiavould have been 5.5%.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Consolidated gross profit was $2.31 billion in 862008, a $265.1 million increase, or 12.9%, comgavith
fiscal 2007. This increase was primarily due toithpact of acquisitions and the year-over-year weeatg of the
US dollar against the Euro. Consolidated grossitpmzdirgin of 12.9% in fiscal 2008 decreased 17 $psints from
the prior year due primarily to slightly lower marg at TS and the mix of business between EM andés8ribed
below. The EM Asia business continued to grow fatsten the Americas or EMEA regions, and althoughEM
Asia business has relatively lower gross profitgirathan the other regions, EM’s gross profit marigcreased
15 basis points over prior year. TS gross profitgims declined 9 basis points year over year. titauh, as a result
of the acquisitions in fiscal 2008, TS sales grew2% of the consolidated sales as compared to@8be
consolidated sales in fiscal 2007. Because theuBBbss typically yields lower gross margins retato the EM
business, the larger representation by TS in theal@lated sales also has a negative impact ocothsolidated
gross profit margin. Notwithstanding the lower grgsofit margins, the TS business contributes éocGbmpany’s
performance goals through the combination of itsrafing profit margin and asset velocity whichyigitally higher
than asset velocity at EM.

Consolidated gross profit was $2.05 billion in 862007, up $209.6 million, or 11.4%, as comparét fiscal
2006. The gross profit in fiscal 2006 included arge totaling $9.0 million to write down inventatye primarily tc
the Companys decision to terminate certain supplier relatigusin connection with the Memec acquisition ircéil
2006. SedRestructuring, Integration and Other Chardes further discussion. Gross profit margin of 18.Was up
16 basis points as compared with fiscal 2006 profitgin of 12.9%. Both operating groups contributethe
improvement in gross profit margins with an inceea$ 33 basis points at EM and 17 basis pointsSatThe impact
to consolidated gross margins resulted from thagaan the mix of business between EM and TS dweptior
year as a result of the Access acquisition as agethe change from gross revenue to net revenoetirgpfor
supplier service contracts. For EM, the mix of rawes among small-to-medium businesses and largencess,
particularly large EMS customers, positively impatEM’s gross profit margins.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) experiadiscal 2008 were $1.56 billion, a $201.4 mitiio
increase, or 14.8%, compared with fiscal 2007. yidar-over-year increase in SG&A expenses was pilyraue to
acquisitions and the weakening of the US dollasweithe Euro. Management estimates that approXimate
$70.8 million of the SG&A expense increase washattable to the translation impact of changes meifyn currenc
exchange rates. SG&A expenses were also impactdtelgverall volume increase due to acquisitionstHermore
management believed that during second half c&fi2g808, SG&A expenses were higher than necessaypport
the level of business in certain business segnur@do revenue weakness in those segments. Aslg tging the
second half of fiscal 2008, management took actiasslescribed iRestructuring, Integration and Other Charges,
to adjust the Company’s cost structure as deemgppate. Further cost reduction initiatives aking place in
the first quarter of fiscal 2009 to address corgthweakness in certain business segments.

Metrics that management monitors with respectstojiterating expenses are SG&A expenses as a myeeasi
sales and as a percentage of gross profit. Inl {228, SG&A expenses were 8.7% of sales and 6 0i6§toss
profit as compared with 8.7% and 66.5%, respegtjuelfiscal 2007. SG&A expenses as a percentagales for
fiscal 2008 were flat as compared with fiscal 200wvever, SG&A expenses as a percentage of grofissprere
up 108 basis points. As previously discussed, mamagt has taken actions to address the factorsdtiyve had
an impact on the lack of attainment of SG&A expemstrics.

SG&A expenses in fiscal 2007 were $1.36 billio$18.1 million increase, or 1.3%, compared withdls2006
Excluding the translation impact of changes inifgmecurrency exchange rates, SG&A expenses wer@ do2do.
The year-over-year comparison of expenses wasiyagitmpacted by the divestitures of businessehésecond
half of fiscal 2006, further cost-reduction initisgs during fiscal 2007 (séRestructuring, Integration and Other
Chargedfor further discussion) and the synergy benefispaimted with the Memec integration during fisd20@.
SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales were 8.711%#@h 2007, down 75 basis points, as compareld 4% in
fiscal 2006. SG&A expenses as a percentage of gmasgis were 66.5% in fiscal 2007, down 660 basis
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points, as compared with 73.1% in fiscal 2006; havethis metric for fiscal 2006 was negatively saped by the
$9.0 million line termination charge (sBestructuring, Integration and Other Chardes further discussion). The
yearover-year improvement in both of these metrigzrimarily due to the Company’s realization of ogigrg
expense synergies following the acquisition andgrdation of Memec. The metrics were also positiwelgacted by
the Company’s ongoing focus on managing levelspefating costs through its various operational kswcee
initiatives.

Restructuring, Integration and Other Charges

Fiscal 2008

During fiscal 2008, the Company incurred restruagirintegration and other charges totaling $38ilian
pre-tax, $31.5 million after tax and $0.21 per sham a diluted basis, related to cost reductionsidered necessary
by management to improve the performance at celigsiness units and integration costs associatédragently
acquired businesses. The restructuring chargeedgbaimarily to severance and facility exit costéegration costs
recorded during fiscal 2008 included professiormakf facility moving costs, travel, meeting, marigand
communication costs that were incrementally inaiae a result of the integration efforts of theerdly acquired
businesses. The total of the restructuring chaagdsntegration costs, net of $0.7 million for nsads of excess
lease and severance reserves established in isdal periods, amounted to $29.9 million pag; $21.9 million afte
tax and $0.15 per share on a diluted basis. Otienges included $6.0 million pre-tax, $7.7 millafter tax and
$0.05 per share on a diluted basis related todtikement of an indemnification to a former exeeeitbf an acquired
company (which was not tax deductible) and provisar additional environmental costs associateth wie
reassessment of existing environmental mattershwdmcounted to $3.0 million pre-tax, $1.8 millionesftax and
$0.01 per share on a diluted basis.

The cost reduction actions taken during fiscal 2ib@8ided severance charges related to personmattions
of over 350 employees in administrative, finance sales functions. Personnel reductions considted o
100 employees in all three regions of EM and o id the Americas and EMEA for TS. The facilityitesharges
related to five vacated office facilities, whiclcinded two facilities in the EM EMEA region, two ihe TS EMEA
region and one in the TS Asia region. These fgadiit charges consisted of reserves for remailgage liabilities
and the write-down of leasehold improvements ahérdiixed assets. Other charges incurred includedractual
obligations with no on-going benefit to the Company

The total amounts utilized during fiscal 2008 cstesil of $8.4 million in cash payments and $0.7iamilfor the
non-cash write downs of assets. As of June 28, ,20@8agement expects the majority of the remais@wgrance
reserves to be utilized in fiscal 2009, the remmgjrfacility exit cost reserves to be utilized bg #nd of fiscal 2013
and other contractual obligations to be utilizedlosy end of fiscal 2010.

Fiscal 2007

During fiscal 2007, the Company incurred certastngcturing, integration and other charges amogrttin
$7.4 million pre-tax, $5.3 million after tax and.88 per share on a diluted basis as a result ¢fredsiction
initiatives in all three regions, the acquisitidnA@cess on December 31, 2006 and other items. imbigded
restructuring charges of $13.6 million consistifig@verance costs of $10.8 million, facility exasts of
$1.0 million, and other contract termination cast$1.8 million. In addition, in connection withdhAccess
acquisition, the Company recorded integration cos%v7.3 million. The Company also recorded in tresturing,
integration and other charges” the write-down af7$@illion related to an Avnet-owned building in B, and the
reversal of $1.7 million related primarily to exseseverance and lease reserves, certain of whichpreviously
established through “restructuring, integration atiter charges” in prior fiscal periods. Partialfjsetting these
charges was a pre-tax benefit of $12.5 million Wwhiesulted from the favorable outcome of a contidjability
acquired in connection with an acquisition compldtea prior year.

Severance charges related to Avnet personnel iedsaif 96 employees in all three regions of EM and
42 employees in TS Americas and EMEA (a total & &Bployees) in administrative, finance and salestfons
associated with the cost reduction initiatives iempénted during the third and fourth quarter ofdit007 as part of
the Company’s continuing focus on operational efficy, and Avnet employees who were deemed redardan
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a result of the Access integration. The facilityt eharges related to vacated Avnet facilitieshie Americas and
Japan. Other charges consisted primarily of Aviieelated and other asset write-downs and othetracin
termination costs. Included in the asset write-d®were Avnet software in the Americas that was nradandant
as a result of the acquisition of Access, Avnetayshardware in EMEA that was replaced with higtegracity
hardware to handle increased capacity due to tiiiam of Access, and the write-down of certainitajzed
construction costs abandoned as a result of theisitign. Other charges incurred included contraktibligations
related to abandoned activities, the write-dowarpAvnet-owned building in EMEA and Access integnatcosts.
The write-down of the building was based on managgia estimate of the current market value andiplesselling
price, net of selling costs, for the property. Titegration costs related to incremental salarys;ggimarily of
Access personnel, who were retained following tbeecof the acquisition solely to assist in thegnation of
Access’ IT systems, administrative and logisticeragions into those of Avnet. These personnel lwadther
meaningful day-to-day operational responsibilibeside of the integration efforts. Also includedntegration
costs are certain professional fees, travel, mgetrarketing and communication costs that weresimentally
incurred solely related to the Access integratifforts.

Of the $13.6 million recorded to expense relatetihéocost-reduction activities and exit-relatedvétgt
associated with the Access integration, $0.7 mmiliepresented non-cash write-downs. As of Jun@@a3, the
remaining reserves totaled $0.5 million which intdd severance reserves of $0.3 million and faliiy reserves
for leases of $0.2 million. Management expectstiagority of the reserves to be utilized in fiscabD2.

Fiscal 2006

During fiscal 2006, the Company incurred certastngcturing, integration and other charges as atrethe
acquisition of Memec on July 5, 2005, which is disged further undéiemecrelated restructuring, integration ar
other itemsin addition, the Company has incurred restructuangd other charges primarily relating to actioheta
following the divestitures of two TS end-user besis lines in the Americas region, certain costecédu actions
taken by TS in the EMEA region, and other itemsicivtare discussed further understructuring and other
charges related to business line divestitures aheroactionsThe restructuring, integration and other charges
incurred for all of these activities totaled $6&n8lion pre-tax (including $9.0 million recorded @ost of sales),
$49.9 million after-tax and $0.34 per share onlatelil basis for fiscal 2006.

Memec-related restructuring, integration and otfitems

During fiscal 2006, the acquired Memec businesshvedtsg integrated into the Company’s existing EM
operations in all three regions. As a result ofabeuisition integration efforts, the Company eksaled and
approved plans to restructure certain of Avnetistéxg operations to accommodate the integratioklefmec into
Avnet.

The restructuring and other charges (excludinggiatigon charges discussed below) incurred duriscafi2006
related to the integration of Memec totaled $31iion pre-tax, $24.2 million after-tax and $0.16rgshare on a
diluted basis. The pre-tax charges included inugnigite-downs due to the Company’s decision tonieate
certain supplier relationships in connection with aicquisition of Memec amounting to $9.0 milli@carded in
“cost of sales” as discussed below. The remainmegtaix charge of $22.6 million, which was included
“restructuring, integration and other charges’ia accompanying consolidated statement of opemstinoluded
$16.4 million for severance costs, $2.6 milliorfadility exit costs related primarily to remainifepse obligations
on exited facilities, $2.4 million for the write-dm of certain capitalized IT-related initiativesimarily in the
Americas, and $1.2 million for other charges relgteémarily to other contractual obligations thare no longer
utilized in the combined Avnet and Memec business.

The charge for terminated inventory lines relatethe Company’s strategic decision during the fiadf of
fiscal 2006 to exit certain product lines within EMthe Americas as a result of the Memec acqaisifihe charge
in the third quarter of fiscal 2006 was a resulsiafilar strategic decisions made in the EMEA regibhe
terminated lines were product lines that Avnet ngamaent elected not to continue with the combinededand
Memec business. As a result, management recordeiteadown of the related inventory on hand to fagrket
value due to the lack of contractual return priyéle when a line is terminated by Avnet. Severahegges incurred
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during fiscal 2006 related to work force reductiof®ver 250 personnel primarily in administrataued support
functions in the EMEA and Americas regions. Theitmss eliminated were Avnet personnel that werended
redundant by management as a result of the integrat Memec into Avnet. The facility exit chargedated to
liabilities for remaining non-cancelable lease gations and the write-down of leasehold improvemand other
property, plant and equipment relating to the fied being exited due to the integration of MeniBee facilities,
which supported administrative and support funj@nd some sales functions, were identified foisobdation
based upon the termination of certain personnebdised above and the relocation of other persamuoebther
existing Avnet facilities. The IT-related chargesulted from management’s review of certain capédl systems
and hardware as part of the integration effortuBstantial portion of this write-off, which was orded in the first
quarter of fiscal 2006, relates to mainframe haréwhat was scrapped due to the purchase of ngivehcapacity
hardware to handle the increased capacity neetishdtaddition of Memec. Similarly, certain capi#et IT assets
were written off when they became redundant eith@ther acquired systems or new systems undeitajgvent in
the first quarter of fiscal 2006 as a result of élequisition of Memec. Other charges in fiscal 28€léted primarily
to certain other contractual obligations and carttrermination charges.

Of the $31.6 million recorded to expense for thende-related restructuring activity during fiscaDB0
$11.6 million represented non-cash asset write-dowhich consisted primarily of the charge to afsales for
inventory write-downs and the write-down of IT aotther fixed assets. In addition, certain severamcklease
liabilities in the amount of $1.3 million were assed by the buyer of the net assets of a small,aooa-EM busine:
in the EMEA region (se&ain ( Loss) on Sale of Assets, irethis MD&A for further discussion). Of the reméaig
Memec-related charges, $15.4 million was paid dyfiscal 2006. As of June 28, 2008, remaining Memstated
reserves related to the restructuring actions takéiscal 2006 totaled $0.05 million relating tcflity exit costs ths
management expects to be utilized by fiscal 2010.

As a result of the Memec acquisition and its subeatjintegration into Avnet, the Company incurred
integration costs during fiscal 2006, which totak21.9 million pre-tax, $14.6 million after-tax a$@.10 per share
on a diluted basis. The integration costs, pawidylin the first nine months of fiscal 2006, reldto incremental
salary costs, primarily of Memec personnel, whoenetained following the close of the acquisitisolely to assist
in the integration of Memec's IT systems, admiristte and logistics operations into those of Avi@tnerally,
these identified personnel were retained for nimatims or less following the close of the acquisitibhese
personnel had no other meaningful day-to-day ofmeral responsibilities outside of the integratidfods. Also
included in integration costs are certain profasgidees, travel, meeting, marketing and commuitinatosts that
were incrementally incurred solely related to thenvec integration efforts. Professional fees inalupliémarily
consulting and legal advice associated with thereffto merge the numerous legal entities that gkibally
between the Avnet and Memec operations. Integratists, along with restructuring and other chargess,
presented separately from selling, general and midirative expenses. All integration costs recoriaefiscal 2006
represent amounts incurred and paid during fise@62

Restructuring and other charges related to busitiegsdivestitures and other actions

During the third quarter of fiscal 2006, the Compdivested two of its end-user business lines ilAR&ricas
(seeGain ( Loss) on Sales of Assets, imethis MD&A for further discussion). As a resulgstructuring charges we
incurred due to certain actions taken by the Compaliowing these divestitures. The Company alstuimned
restructuring costs and other charges relatin@ttaim cost-cutting measures and other actionsitberl'S in the
EMEA region and certain actions at corporate indi006. The restructuring and other charges ieduturing the
fiscal 2006 related to these actions totaled $i6lson pre-tax, $11.0 million after-tax and $0.p8r share on a
diluted basis. The pre-tax charges, which are @eduin “restructuring, integration and other charge the
accompanying consolidated statement of operatmmsisted of severance costs of $5.9 million rdlabeTS
operations in the Americas and EMEA regions, fac#ixit costs in the Americas and EMEA regionsliota
$6.5 million, and $4.1 million for other chargeghér charges included $3.2 million pie¢, which related primaril
to a curtailment charge resulting from a small Ud&&d pension plan that the Company elected toratmi
$1.8 million related to the reassessment of artiagi€nvironmental liability, $0.4 million of otheharges, and a
reversal of $1.3 million for charges recorded tlglovestructuring charges in prior fiscal years puity in TS
EMEA.
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The severance costs related primarily to severandeother termination benefit payments related to
20 personnel in the TS Americas’ operations whoewendered redundant in Avnet's ongoing businelésimg
the divestiture of the end-user business linemndute third quarter of fiscal 2006. This included management-
level employees whose primary responsibilities jiesty included the management of the divestednassi lines.
Severance charges in fiscal 2006 also includeditation benefits for over 10 personnel in the TSHEM
operations who were identified as redundant baped the realignment of certain job functions int tiegion and
two corporate management-level employees. Theitiaeiit charges related to liabilities for remaiginon-
cancelable lease obligations and the write-dowfaafity-related property, plant and equipment. Tinpacted
facilities were TS leased facilities in the Amesddhat were rendered redundant with the divesstdiecussed
above, as well as certain TS leased facilitiesMER that were vacated as part of the realignmehfgecsonnel
discussed above. Certain furniture, fixtures andpgent in these facilities were also written cffggart of these
charges. Other charges in fiscal 2006 related pifynta asset impairment charges recorded in tloese quarter
and fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 totaling $3.6lioil for two owned but vacant facilities and cemtaélated fixed
assets — one in EMEA and one in the Americas. Thigwlown to fair value was based upon management’s
estimates of the current market values and possdilieg price, net of selling costs, for theseganties. Also
included in other charges is the pension plan doméat charge and environmental liability chargéeabpreviously.

Of the $16.5 million recorded to expense for thestructuring and other charges during fiscal 2006,
$3.3 million represented non-cash asset write-dpwhgh consisted primarily of the wri@swn to fair value of th
owned facilities in EMEA and the Americas and cerfarniture, fixtures and equipment in leased lfes. Of the
remaining charges, $5.1 million was paid duringdl2006. As of June 28, 2008, remaining reserekesed to the
non-Memec related restructuring activities takefisoal 2006 totaled $0.8 million, which relatednparily to
facility exit costs, the majority of which managemexpects to utilize by fiscal 2013.

While the above charges related to Avnet persorfiagilities and operations, and are therefore @edithroug!
Avnet's consolidated statements of operations @stfucturing, integration and other charges”, tben@Gany also
recorded numerous purchase accounting adjustmarnitgydiscal 2006 related to the acquired persoanel
operations of Memec. These adjustments were géneeabrded as part of the allocation of purchaseepand,
therefore, were not recorded in the Company’s doeed statement of operations. During fiscal 2066
Company established and approved plans to intetiratacquired operations into all three regionthefCompanys
EM operations, for which the Company recorded $73lIBon in exit-related purchase accounting adjuestts.
These purchase accounting adjustments consist fisim&$32.5 million for severance for Memec wookEe
reductions of over 700 personnel (including semanagement, administrative, finance and certaimabip@al
functions) primarily in the Americas and EMEA, $36nillion for lease and other contract terminatiasts; and
$4.6 million for remaining commitments and termiaatcharges related to other contractual commitmeht
Memec that will no longer be of use in the combibediness. Of these exitlated purchase accounting adjustm
recorded in fiscal 2006, $43.1 million was paid imutash during fiscal 2006 and $7.7 million weomstash write-
downs.

As of June 28, 2008, remaining reserves relatéldese purchase accounting reserves totaled $10i8mof
which $0.4 million related to severance reserves majority of which management expects to utilizeng fiscal
2009, facility exit costs of $7.9 million and otreosts of $2.0 million, the majority of which mamagent expects to
utilize by the end of fiscal 2013. During fiscald®) $0.3 million of the reserves initially recordidough purchase
accounting were deemed excessive and were revinsadyh goodwill.

Operating Income

Operating income for fiscal 2008 was $710.4 million3.96% of consolidated sales, as compared with
operating income of $678.3 million, or 4.33% of solidated sales, in fiscal 2007. Operating inconaggim
declined 37 basis points over the prior year prilpaiue to the results at TS and the mix of businestween EM
and TS as described previously in this MD&A. TSared operating income of $261.0 million as comganéth
$232.2 million in fiscal 2007. TS operating incomargin declined to 3.42% in fiscal 2008 from 3.8iffiscal
2007. EM reported operating income of $564.4 millio fiscal 2008 as compared with $529.9 milliorfigtal 2007
and operating income margin was 5.46% and 5.47%dcal 2008 and 2007, respectively. Corporate
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operating expenses decreased $0.3 million to $Wélibn in fiscal 2008 as compared to $76.4 millionfiscal
2007. Included in operating income in both the entiand prior year were restructuring, integratiod other
charges as described above totaling $38.9 milliah%¥.4 million, respectively.

Operating income for fiscal 2007 was $678.3 million4.33% of consolidated sales, as compared with
operating income of $433.1 million, or 3.04% of solidated sales, in fiscal 2006. The gross margthaperating
expense trends discussed previously in this MD&AtGbuted to the 129 basis point improvement inrapirg
income margin year over year. The operating incoraggin in fiscal 2007 as compared with fiscal 20@6efited
by 10 basis points as a result of the change toewvenue reporting for supplier service contraats @was negatively
impacted by 5 basis points from the restructuringgration and other charges in connection withdbst reduction
initiatives and the Access integration activitywel as other items previously discussed, which amed to
$7.4 million pre-tax. In comparison, operating immfor fiscal 2006 was negatively impacted by altof
$69.9 million (0.5% of consolidated sales) for nesturing charges previously described. Bestructuring,
Integration and Other Chargefor further discussion. The overall improvemenbperating income margin without
these charges was driven by the increased saleseplross profit margin growth, continued focuscost
management and the full benefit of the synergibseaed subsequent to the successful Memec integrati
completed at the end of fiscal 2006.

Interest Expense and Other Income, net

Interest expense for fiscal 2008 totaled $72.3iom|ldown $4.9 million, or 6.3%, as compared with
$77.2 million in fiscal 2007. The year-over-yeacdsse in interest expense for fiscal 2008 wasariiynthe result
of a lower effective interest rate on short-terrbtdmutstanding and refinancing activities whichweed during
fiscal 2007, whereby higher interest rate debt reasid or replaced with lower interest rate detdescribed furthe
below. See alsBinancing Transactionfor further discussion of the Company’s outstandiegt.

Interest expense for fiscal 2007 totaled $77.2iom)ldown $19.3 million, or 20.0%, from interespexse of
$96.5 million in fiscal 2006. The decrease in iatgrexpense is attributable to the reduction iratrerage debt
balance year over year and a lower effective istaie on debt outstanding during fiscal 2007. Daeer effective
interest rate is a direct result of the refinanciagvities that occurred in fiscal 2006 and fis2@07, whereby higher
interest rate debt was repaid or replaced with fanterest rate debt. Specifically, during the tbuguarter of fiscal
2006, the Company repurchased $113.6 million @ #54 % Notes due February 15, 2008 with available ligyid
During fiscal 2007, the Company issued $300.0 arillprincipal amount of 6.625% Notes due 2016 int&aper
2006, and used the proceeds and available liquidifynd the repurchase of $361.4 million of th& 9% Notes,
which was completed in October 2006. The Compasy apaid the remaining $143.7 million of the 8.00%ies
that matured on November 15, 2006 and, in Marcty 28@& Company issued $300.0 million principal antaaf
5.875% Notes due 2014 and used the proceeds tp aapaunts outstanding under the 2005 Credit Fadilid the
Securitization Program. S&énancing Transactionfor further discussion of the Company’s outstandiedgt.

Other income, net, was $21.0 million in fiscal 2@GG8compared with $9.9 million in fiscal 2007. Tjear-over-
year increase was primarily due to foreign curreexghange gains compared with losses in the pdar,yhighe
interest income resulting from higher investmenabees, and income from an equity method investroemipared
with losses in the prior year.

Other income, net, was $9.9 million in fiscal 2G@/compared with $4.8 million in fiscal 2006. Therease in
fiscal 2007 other income, net, compared with fi@06 was primarily the result of higher short-tenterest rates
in combination with higher cash balances. In additduring fiscal 2007, the Company recorded a fiteineother
income due to the recovery of a non-trade recegvelting the first quarter, however, this benefiswffset by
equity method investment losses.

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets, net

During fiscal 2008, the Company recognized a gaisae of assets totaling $49.9 million pre-tax,
$32.2 million after tax and $0.21 per share onlatelil basis. In April 2008, the Company sold itaigginvestment
in Calence LLC and recognized a gain of $42.4 onillpre-tax, $25.9 million after tax and $0.17 gdeare on a
diluted basis. In
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October 2007, the Company sold a building in theEAMegion and recognized a gain of $4.5 million-ed after
tax and $0.03 per share on a diluted basis. Digz#d tax allowances, the building sale was noalde. The
Company also recognized a gain of $3.0 million fae-$1.8 million after tax and $0.01 per sharedlluted basis
for the receipt of contingent purchase price prdseelated to the fiscal 2006 sale of a TS end-sgsiness
discussed below.

During fiscal 2007, the Company recorded a gaiateel to the receipt of contingent purchase prioegeds
from the fiscal 2006 sale of a TS end-user busingss gain amounted to $3.0 million pre-tax, $1iBiom after tax
and $0.01 per share on a diluted basis. Durin@lfi2g06, the Company divested two TS end-user basitines in
the Americas and two EM specialty business lindSNMEA. In TS, the Company sold its Americas endrissever
and storage business line to a value-added res&fiea result of these divestitures, a gain of $10illion pre-tax,
$7.3 million after tax and $0.05 per share on atéd basis was recorded in the third quarter o&fi2006. The
Company also contributed cash and certain operassgts and liabilities of its TS Americas end-ustwork
solutions business into a joint venture with Caéerinc. in exchange for an investment interesh@jbint venture,
called Calence, LLC. In EM, the Company sold twaBymon-core business lines in its EMEA regionidgithe
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 for which no tax bheas available and, as a result, recorded ad6$4.3.6 million
pre-tax, $14.3 million after tax and $0.10 per sham a diluted basis. The total impact of theseddtitures in fiscal
2006 was a net loss of $2.6 million pre-tax, $7illion after tax and $0.05 per share on a dilutadis.

Debt Extinguishment Costs

As discussed further undeiguidity and Capital Resources — Financing Trarn&ats,the Company incurred
debt extinguishment costs in fiscal 2007 and 26@®eiated with the tender and early repurchasepoftion of its
outstanding publicly traded debt. In completingsthéransactions, the Company incurred debt extihguént costs,
related primarily to premiums and other transactiosts associated with these tenders and earlyaiegses, which
totaled $27.4 million pre-tax, $16.5 million aftex and $0.11 per share on a diluted basis inlf@@7 and
$22.6 million pre-tax, $13.6 million after-tax afil.09 per share on a diluted basis in fiscal 2006.

Income Tax Provision

Avnet's effective tax rate on its income beforeame taxes was 29.6% in fiscal 2008 as compared3&iib%
in fiscal 2007. The year-over-year decrease ircéffe tax rate was primarily due to the combinatién

(i) certain statutory tax rate reductio

(il afavorable audit settlement; offset |

(iii) the recognition of transfer pricing exposures;
(iv) achange to estimates on existing tax positi

In addition, there was a negative impact on thedée in the prior year due to an additional teowjsion for
transfer pricing exposures in Europe, which effedti increased the prior year's tax rate.

Avnet'’s effective tax rate on its income beforeasfor fiscal 2007 was 33.0% as compared with fetiéfe
tax rate of 35.3% in fiscal 2006. The decreaséénfiscal 2007 effective tax rate over prior yesattributable to:

() the mix of pr-tax income towards the lower statutory tax ratesglictions;

(il asimilar dollar amount as compared with prior geafrnet contingency reserves, including the
additional tax provision for transfer pricing exposs in Europe as mentioned above, applied against
significantly higher pr-tax income; ani

(iii) the negative impact which increased prior yearfsative tax rate related to the loss on the saknof
EM business for which no tax benefit was availa
Net Income

As a result of the factors described in the prewgdections of this MD&A, the Company’s net incowas
$499.1 million, or $3.27 per share on a diluted$as fiscal 2008 as compared with net income393%1 million,
or
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$2.63 per share on a diluted basis, in fiscal 208¥ net income of $204.5 million, or $1.39 per shaw a diluted
basis, in fiscal 2006. Fiscal 2008 results werdtpesy impacted by a total of $14.7 million aftexx, or $0.09 per
share on a diluted basis, as presented in thexfimitptable.

Year Ended June 28, 200

Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income Income Income EPS
(% in thousands, except per share dat:
Restructuring, integration and other char $(38,947) $(38,94) $(31,469 $(0.2))
Gain on sale of asse — 49,90: 32,24« 0.21
Net reduction in tax reservi — 13,89 0.0¢
Total $(38,94:) $10,96. $14,67: $0.0¢

In comparison with fiscal 2008, the fiscal 2007uteswere negatively impacted by a total of $20ilion after
tax, or $0.13 per share on a diluted basis, asleidta the following table.

Year Ended June 30, 200’

Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Income Income Income EPS
(% in thousands, except per share dat:
Restructuring, integration and other char $ (7,359 $ (7,359 $ (5,289 $(0.09)
Gain on sale of asse — 3,00( 1,81« 0.01
Debt extinguishment cos — (27,359 (16,53¢) (0.17)
Total $ (7,359 $(31,71) $(20,01) $(0.19)

In comparison with fiscal 2007, the fiscal 2006uteswere negatively impacted by a total of $70ibion after
tax, or $0.48 per share on a diluted basis, asleidta the following table.

Year Ended July 1, 200€

Gross Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Profit Income Income Income EPS
(% in thousands, except per share dat:
Restructuring, integration and other char $(8,977) $(69,96() $(69,96() $(49,87() $(0.39)
Loss on sale of assets, | — — (2,607 (7,079 (0.05)
Debt extinguishment cos — — (22,585 (13,659 (0.09)
Total $(8,977) $(69,960 $(95,14¢) $(70,597) $(0.4%)

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statementg lien prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The
preparation of these consolidated financial statémequires the Company to make estimates andnasisuns that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilitiegenues and expenses during the reporting péftoese estimates
and assumptions are based upon the Company’s aoasrevaluation of historical results and anti@géuture
events. Actual results may differ from these estasainder different assumptions or conditions.

The Securities and Exchange Commission defingsalrdiccounting polices as those that are, in mamagt's
view, most important to the portrayal of the Comyariinancial condition and results of operatiomsl ahat require
significant judgments and estimates. Managemeid\ed the Compang’most critical accounting policies relate

Valuation of Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaats for estimated losses resulting from customer
defaults. Bad debt reserves are recorded basedhigtonic default averages as well as the Comparmgslar
assessment of the financial condition of its cugi@anTherefore, if collection experience or thaficial condition
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of specific customers were to deteriorate, managémeuld evaluate whether additional allowances and
corresponding charges to the consolidated stateofi@merations are required.

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of costt(firs— first out) or estimated market value. Then@any’s
inventories include high-technology components, etded systems and computing technologies sold-éapidly
changing, cyclical and competitive markets wheseioh inventories may be subject to early technoldgi
obsolescence.

The Company regularly evaluates inventories foeescobsolescence or other factors that may render
inventories less marketable. Wridewns are recorded so that inventories reflecafigroximate net realizable val
and take into account the Compaggbntractual provisions with its suppliers, whinhy provide certain protectio
to the Company for product obsolescence and prasian in the form of rights of return and pricetgction.
Because of the large number of transactions anddhmplexity of managing the process around pricégations
and stock rotations, estimates are made regardijpgtanents to the carrying amount of inventorieddifionally,
assumptions about future demand, market condiiodsdecisions to discontinue certain product lcesimpact
the decision to write down inventories. If assumips about future demand change or actual markelitimms are
less favorable than those projected by managememagement would evaluate whether additional vetitens of
inventories are required. In any case, actual wahoeld be different from those estimated.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Management judgment is required in determiningpifoeision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and
liabilities and the valuation allowance recordediagt net deferred tax assets. The carrying vditieeoCompany’s
net operating loss carry-forwards is dependent ujsaability to generate sufficient future taxabieome in certain
tax jurisdictions. In addition, the Company consideistoric levels of income, expectations and as&ociated with
estimates of future taxable income and ongoinggmuend feasible tax planning strategies in agsgsstax
valuation allowance. Should the Company deternfiagit is not able to realize all or part of itdafeed tax assets
in the future, an additional valuation allowanceyrba recorded against the deferred tax assetsangthresponding
charge to income in the period such determinaganade.

The Company establishes reserves for potentialiguamable outcomes of positions taken on certain ta
matters. These reserves are based on managenssg&sment of whether a tax benefit is more likedy thot to be
sustained upon examination by tax authorities. &negly be differences between the anticipated atugdlac
outcomes of these matters that may result in raleos§ reserves or additional tax liabilities ircezs of the reserv
amounts. To the extent such adjustments are wadatite Companyg’ effective tax rate may potentially fluctuate
a result.

Restructuring, Integration and Impairment Charges

The Company has been subject to the financial ilpfaiategrating acquired businesses and chardatedeto
business reorganizations. In connection with swelmes, management is required to make estimatag #imw
financial impact of such matters that are inheyeuticertain. Accrued liabilities and reserves atalgished to cowv
the cost of severance, facility consolidation alodure, lease termination fees, inventory adjustmbased upon
acquisition-related termination of supplier agreataeand/or the re-evaluation of the acquired waykiapital assets
(inventory and accounts receivable), and write-dafvather acquired assets including goodwill. Attmmounts
incurred could be different from those estimated.

Additionally, in assessing the Company’s goodwal impairment in accordance with the Financial Agtting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial datting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 1423po0dwill and
Other Intangible Assetthe Company is required to make significant assionptabout the future cash flows and
overall performance of its reporting units. Shotlldse assumptions or the structure of the repoutiity change in
the future based upon market conditions or chaimgkgsiness strategy, the Company may be requiregicord
impairment charges to goodwill.
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Contingencies and Litigatior

The Company is involved in various legal proceediagd other claims related to environmental, laparduct
liability, intellectual property and other matteadl, of which arise in the normal course of bussmé&she Company is
required to assess the likelihood of any adverdgment or outcome to these matters, as well asatige of
potential losses. A determination of the resereegiired, if any, is made after careful analysisrtanagement and
internal and, when necessary, external counselrddngred reserves may change in the future ddevelopments
or a change in circumstances, which could increaskecrease earnings in the period the changesffactive.

Revenue Recognition

The Company does not consider revenue recognititse ta critical accounting policy due to the natfrés
business in which revenues are generally recognidesh persuasive evidence of an arrangement edigtgery ha
occurred or services have been rendered, the madesis fixed or determinable and collectibili/rieasonably
assured. Generally, these criteria are met upoadhel shipment of product to the customer. Acicaylgt, other
than for estimates related to possible returngadycts from customers, discounts or rebates gberding of
revenue does not require significant judgmentstimates. Provisions for returns are estimateddaséhistorical
sales returns, credit memo analysis and other krfawtors. Provisions are made for discounts andtesh which
are primarily volume-based, and are generally basdistorical trends and anticipated customer fgipiatterns.
Finally, revenues from maintenance contracts, whirehdeferred and recognized in income over teedlithe
agreement, are not material to the consolidatadtsesf operations of the Company.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 in thBlotes to Consolidated Financial Statemetstained in Item 15 of this Report for the
discussion of recently issued accounting pronouecesn

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

During fiscal 2008, the Company generated $453IBomiof cash and cash equivalents from its opagati
activities as compared with $724.6 million in fis@07. These results are comprised of: (1) chwsh generated
from net income excluding non-cash and other reiingatems, which consist of the add-back of dejmton and
amortization, deferred income taxes, stock-basetpemsation, gain on sale of assets and other nemieans
(primarily the provision for doubtful accounts gperiodic pension costs) and (2) cash flow gendrixtem (used
for) working capital, excluding cash and cash eglgints. The working capital outflow in fiscal 208@s driven by
cash payments on accounts payable ($123.3 miliod)other items ($170.7 million), partially offést collection
of receivables and a reduction in inventory. Thehoautflow for payables was primarily attributatdeT S and the
cash outflow for other items was primarily a regdlincome tax payments.

During fiscal 2007, the Company generated $724I6omiof cash and cash equivalents from its opagati
activities of which $126.2 million was generateonfrworking capital, excluding cash and cash egaiMal TS
experienced growth in receivables as well as pagattiven, in part, by the acquisition of the Accbasiness for
which the largest supplier is Sun Microsystems \ehsisongest quarter is typically its June fiscalryend. The
reduction in inventory was a net result of EM’'s e of $74 million partially offset by a smaltiease in
inventory at TS. In addition, during fiscal 200@etCompany paid $29.7 million associated with gstructuring,
integration and other charges and exit-relatedscastrued through purchase accounting.

In fiscal 2006, the Company utilized $423.4 milliohcash and cash equivalents for working capi@ds. The
working capital outflows consisted of growth in ea@bles ($254.7 million), growth in inventory ($218 million),
growth in accounts payable ($99.7 million) and lawtffor other working capital items ($125.8 millijpThe driver
of the change in working capital included orgarates growth and a small investment in inventory&tIn
addition, the Company paid $92.9 million duringc&52006 relating to restructuring, integration @agments of
amounts accrued
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in purchase accounting associated with the Memeaisition, and restructuring and other costs assalt of the

sale of two TS business lines and other actionsntakiring fiscal 2006. Sd@esults of Operations — Restructuring,
Integration and Other Chargediscussed elsewhere in this MD&A. The Company aisale an accelerated
contribution to the Company’s pension plan durimg first quarter of fiscal 2006, totaling $58.6 it and used
$27.0 million primarily for premiums, transactioosts and other costs associated with the refingraoial
repurchasing of its Notes and credit facilitiese(Bmancing Transactionbelow).

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

The Company’s cash flows associated with invesdittiyities during fiscal 2008 were primarily thesuét of
acquisitions discussed previously in this MD&A ardounted to $369.4 million. In addition, the Compeaeceived
proceeds of $68.6 million related to the gain de s&assets in connection with the sale of the Gamy’s equity
investment and the receipt of contingent purchaiee proceeds (seResults of Operations -Gain (Loss) on Sale
Assets, ne). Other investing activities included capital emgitures primarily for system development costs,
computer hardware and software.

For fiscal 2007, the Company’s cash flows assodiafti¢éh investing activities included capital expéunckes
related to system development costs, computer reaedand software expenditures as well as certasel®ld
improvement costs. Also included in cash flows frionesting activities is cash used for the acqisibf Access,
Azure and a small distributor business in ltalyt, afecontingent purchase price proceeds receiveelRssults of
Operations — Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assetsdisetissed elsewhere in this MD&A).

The cash flows associated with investing activitesuded capital expenditures during fiscal 2Q@&marily
related to certain information technology hardweme software purchases, a new mainframe purchakthan
ongoing development of one additional operatingesygo replace one of the systems that was dispafsas part of
the restructuring, integration and other chargesResults of Operations — Restructuring, Integratiod Other
Chargesfor further discussion). Also included in cash floused in investing activities for fiscal 2006 is
$294.3 million for acquisitions and investments ofedivestitures which relate primarily to the foNing:

(1) $297.5 million associated with the Company'quasition of Memec, including the retirement of stamtially all
of Memec's debt at the time of the acquisition; $28.9 million cash contribution to the Calenced joint venture;
and (3) $5.7 million for the purchase of sharesl syl a minority interest holder in one of the Comga Israeli
subsidiaries, an additional earn-out payment agtstiwith a small acquisition completed in fiscdd2 and other
items; net of (4) cash inflow of $22.8 million retay to the divestiture of the TS end-user busitiees during the
third quarter and EM business lines during thetfoquarter of fiscal 2006.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company $&Hd9 million, $35.6 million and $34.6 million,
respectively, of cash for net debt repayments. Egegncing Transactionbelow for further discussion). Other
financing activities, net, in fiscal 2008, 2007 &a0D6 were primarily a result of cash receivectifi@rexercise of
stock options and the associated excess tax benefit

Capital Structure

The Company uses a variety of financing arrangesyéath short-term and long-term, to fund its opens.
The Company also uses diversified sources of fupgmthat it does not become overly dependent ersoarce and
to achieve lower cost of funding through theseedéht alternatives. These financing arrangementsde public
bonds, short-term and long-term bank loans ancteouamts receivable securitization program. Fortailéel
description of the Company’s external financinggagements outstanding at June 28, 2008, refer te Nto the
consolidated financial statements appearing in t&nof this Report.

31




Table of Contents

The following table summarizes the Company’s cagtiaicture as of the end of fiscal 2008 with a panison
with the end of fiscal 2007:

June 28, % of Total June 30, % of Total
2008 Capitalization 2007 Capitalization
(Dollars in thousands)

Shor-term debr $ 43,80« 0.€% $ 53,36 1.1%
Long-term deb 1,181,49: 22.1 1,155,99 25.1
Total debt 1,225,30. 22.€ 1,209,35 26.2
Shareholder equity 4,134,69 77.1 3,400,64! 73.¢
Total capitalizatior $5,359,99. 100.( $4,610,00: 100.C

Financing Transactions

During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, the Compamtered into a five-year $500.0 million unsecur@eblving
credit facility (the “Credit Agreement”) with a sgticate of banks which expires in September 2012omection
with the Credit Agreement, the Company terminate@xisting unsecured $500.0 million credit fagilithe “2005
Credit Facility”) which was to expire in OctoberD Under the Credit Agreement, the Company mascsélom
various interest rate options, currencies and ritgsir The Credit Agreement contains certain coneall of
which the Company was in compliance with as of 2#1e2008. As of the end of fiscal 2008, there were
$19.7 million in borrowings outstanding under thedit Agreement included in “other long-term deiot'the
consolidated financial statements. In additionfeheere $24.3 million in letters of credit issuettlar the Credit
Agreement which represent a utilization of the @rAdreement capacity but are not recorded in thesolidated
balance sheet as the letters of credit are not éelune 30, 2007, there were no borrowings ontstey under the
2005 Credit Facility and $21.2 million in lettersavedit were issued under the 2005 Credit Facility

The Company has an accounts receivable secumtivptogram (the “Program”) with a group of finaricia
institutions that allows the Company to sell, aeeolving basis, an undivided interest of up to&85million in
eligible receivables while retaining a subordinatedrest in a portion of the receivables. The Papgdoes not
qualify for sale accounting and has a one year thahexpires in August 2008 which has been reneamed
comparable terms for another year. There were noWwogs outstanding under the Program at Jun@Q@a3.

In March 2007, the Company issued $300.0 millio®.875% Notes due March 15, 2014. The proceeds of
$297.1 million from the offering, net of discoumtdaunderwriting fees, were used to repay amourtistanding
under the 2005 Credit Facility and the Securit@atProgram. The borrowings under the 2005 CredilliBaand the
Securitization Program were used to fund the Acaesgsiisition in fiscal 2007.

During October 2006, the Company redeemed alkd®3t/ 4% Notes due February 15, 2008 (the3/9a
% Notes”). The Company used the net proceeds d.$24illion from the issuance in September 2006 of
$300.0 million principal amount of 6.625% Notes deptember 15, 2016 plus available liquidity, tourehase the
93/ 4% Notes. In connection with the repurchase, the o terminated two interest rate swaps with d tota
notional amount of $200.0 million that hedged atiporof the 93/ 4% Notes. Debt extinguishment costs incurred
during the first quarter of fiscal 2007 as a restithe redemption totaled $27.4 million pre-ta¥6% million after
tax, or $0.11 per share on a diluted basis, andistat of $20.3 million for a make-whole redemptwamium,
$5.0 million associated with the two interest mt@p terminations, and $2.1 million to write-offteén deferred
financing costs.

During November 2006, the Company repaid the remg@i$i143.7 million of the 8.00% Notes due
November 15, 2006 (t“8.00% Notes”) on the maturity date.

In August 2005, the Company issued $250.0 millib6.60% Notes due September 1, 2015. The proceenE
the offering, net of discount and underwriting fegsre $246.5 million. The Company used these maeeplus
cash and cash equivalents on hand, to fund thetemd repurchase during the first quarter of fi2686 of
$254.1 million of the $400.0 million of 8.00% Notdse November 15, 2006. As a result of the tenddr a
repurchases, the Company incurred debt extinguishouests of $11.7 million pre-tax, $7.1 millioneaftax, or
$0.05 per share on a diluted basis, relating pilyner premiums and other transaction costs. Duthrgsecond
quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company repurchasealdaiitional $2.2 million of the 8.00% Notes.
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In June 2006, the Company repurchased $113.6 milidhe $475.0 million 9/ 4% Notes and, in connection
with this repurchase, the Company terminated orteeinterest rate swaps with a notional amoui$18f0.0 millior
that hedged a portion of the $475.0 millioA/3 % Notes. The termination of this swap and repurelidishe relate
hedged debt resulted in debt extinguishment cdst4@9 million pre-tax, $6.6 million after tax $0.04 per share
on a diluted basis. As a result of the tender atal tepurchases in fiscal 2006 and the terminaifdnterest rate
swaps noted above, the Company incurred total edbtguishment costs of $22.6 million pre-tax, $lBiillion
after tax or $0.09 per share on a diluted basliating primarily to premiums and other transactiosts.

The Company’s $300.0 million of 2% Convertible Seribebentures due March 15, 2034 (the “Debentures”)
are convertible into Avnet common stock at a rdte905516 shares of common stock per $1,000 prat@mount
of Debentures. The Debentures are only convertibtier certain circumstances, including if: (i) thesing price of
the Company’s common stock reaches $45.68 per ¢haogect to adjustment in certain circumstancesaf
specified period of time; (ii) the average tradprice of the Debentures falls below a certain patage of the
conversion value per Debenture for a specifiedogeoi time; (iii) the Company calls the Debentui@s
redemption; or (iv) certain corporate transacti@ssgefined, occur. The Company may redeem sorak afrthe
Debentures for cash any time on or after Marct2R09 at the Debentures’ full principal amount pasrued and
unpaid interest, if any. Holders of the Debentumey require the Company to purchase, in cashy allportion of
the Debentures on March 15, 2009, 2014, 2019, 20842029, or upon a fundamental change, as defat¢ke
Debenturesfull principal amount plus accrued and unpaid iestrif any. In December 2004, the Company mac
irrevocable election to satisfy the principal pontiof the Debentures in cash and settle the rentawmibligation with
shares of common stock if and when the Debentusesanverted.

In addition to its primary financing arrangemertse Company has several small lines of credit nous
locations to fund the short-term working capitaleign exchange, overdraft and letter of credidsesf its wholly
owned subsidiaries in Europe, Asia and Canada. t\yeeerally guarantees its subsidiaries’ debt utiuzse
facilities.

Covenants and Conditions

The securitization program discussed previouslyireg the Company to maintain certain minimum iesér
coverage and leverage ratios as defined in theitGkgdeement (see discussion below) in order taiooe utilizing
the Program. The Program agreement also contaitesrceovenants relating to the quality of the reables sold. |
these conditions are not met, the Company may @aible to borrow any additional funds and the faian
institutions may consider this an amortization d¢yas defined in the agreement, which would peth@tfinancial
institutions to liquidate the accounts receivalulel $o cover any outstanding borrowings. Circumséarnthat could
affect the Company’s ability to meet the requirestenants and conditions of the agreement includ€tmpany’s
ongoing profitability and various other economi@riket and industry factors. Management does n@\eethat the
covenants under the Program limit the Company’btald pursue its intended business strategy turtufinancing
needs. The Company was in compliance with all camenof the Program agreement at June 28, 2008.

The Credit Agreement discussedrimancing Transactionsontains certain covenants with various limitations
on debt incurrence, dividends, investments andalagxpenditures and also includes financial com&eequiring
the Company to maintain minimum interest coveragklaverage ratios, as defined. Management doesetietve
that the covenants in the Credit Agreement limgt @ompany’s ability to pursue its intended busirstsstegy or
future financing needs. The Company was in compéanith all covenants of the Credit Agreement agusfe 28,
2008.

SeelLiquidity for further discussion of the Company’s availapilinder these various facilities.
Liquidity

The Company had total borrowing capacity of $950illion at June 28, 2008 under the Credit Agreenzert
the Securitization Program, against which $19.Tionilin borrowings were outstanding and $24.3 millin letters
of credit were issued under the Credit Agreemehticlvresulted in $906.0 million of net availabiléy the end of
fiscal 2008. The Company also had $640.4 milliocash and cash equivalents at June 28, 2008. Diistaj 2008
the Company utilized $300.8 million of cash on hamet of cash proceeds from the sale of assetsntbthe seven

acquisitions completed in fiscal 2008. (See Note the accompanying consolidated financial statemienitem 15
of this Report). Subsequent to fiscal 2008 year, #r@lCompany utilized approximately $230 millidn o
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cash and cash equivalents to fund three additacaalisitions that closed in the first quarter stél 2009. The
Company has no other significant financial committseoutside of normal debt and lease maturitiesudised in
Capital Structure and Contractual Obligationdanagement believes that Avnet’'s borrowing capaditycurrent
cash availability and the Company’s expected gtiititgenerate operating cash flows are sufficiemhéet its
projected financing needs. Generally, the Compamgare likely to utilize operating cash flows foorking capital
requirements in a growing electronic component@dputer products industry. However, additionahcas
requirements for working capital are generally exteé to be offset by the operating cash flows gatedrby the
Company’s enhanced profitability resulting from tbempany’s cost reductions achieved in recent yaaasits
focus on profitable growth. The 5.875% Notes agertéxt significant public debt maturity due to nratin 2014. In
addition, the Company may redeem some or all o2#eConvertible Senior Debentures for cash any tmer
after March 20, 2009 at the Debenturedi principal amount plus accrued and unpaid ieserif any. Holders of th
Debentures may require the Company to purchasms, all or a portion of the Debentures on Ma&h?D09,
2014, 2019, 2024 and 2029, or upon a fundamentadgdy as defined, at the Debentures’ full princgmabunt plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any. In Decemb&d2the Company made an irrevocable election iefgahe
principal portion of the Debentures in cash antleséie remaining obligation with shares of comnstock if and
when the Debentures are converted (Seancing Transactionfor further discussion).

The following table highlights the Company’s ligitidand related ratios for the past two years:

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS — LIQUIDITY

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, Percentage
2008 2007 Change
(Dollars in millions)
Current Asset $5,971.0  $5,488.¢ 8.8%
Quick Assets 4,007.¢ 3,660.¢ 9.t
Current Liabilities 2,779.¢ 2,777.( 0.1
Working Capital 3,191 2,711.¢ 17.7
Total Debt 1,225.; 1,209.¢ 1.3
Total Capital (total debt plus total sharehol’ equity) 5,360.( 4,610.( 16.c
Quick Ratio 1.4:1 1.3:1
Working Capital Ratic 2.1:1 2.0:1
Debt to Total Capite 22.%% 26.2%

The Company’s quick assets (consisting of cashcast equivalents and receivables) increased 9 &t fr
fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008 due to an increase @eir&bles volume as a result of acquisitions tikatioced during
fiscal 2008 and an increase in cash and cash dgatsaver prior year. Current assets also incbasmilarly, due
to acquisitions that occurred during fiscal 2008rrént liabilities were essentially flat. As a risaf the factors
noted above, total working capital increased by %/during fiscal 2008. Total debt increased slightf 1.3% sinc
fiscal year end 2007 primarily due to debt acquiredonnection with the fiscal 2008 acquisitionstal capital gre\
primarily due to net income and foreign curren@nslation adjustments. Finally, the debt to capétb decreased
to 22.9% from 26.2% as a result of the growth ipited since fiscal year end 2007.

Long-Term Contractual Obligations

The Company has the following contractual obligadioutstanding as of June 28, 2008 (in millions):

Due in Less Due in Due in Due After
Total Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5Years 5 Years

Long-term debt, including amounts due
within one year(1 $1,228.( $43.€ $ 10.2 $22.2  $1,151.°
Operating lease $ 259./ $71.c $100.7 $58.C $ 297

(1) Excludes discount on lo-term notes

34




Table of Contents

At June 28, 2008, the Company had a liability faxame tax contingencies (or unrecognized tax bex)eff
$124.8 million. Management estimates approxima#@®.5 million associated with the liability for wuognized ta
benefits is reasonably expected to be paid in é&x¢ tvelve months. Cash payments associated wéthetimaining
liability cannot reasonably be estimated as itificdlt to estimate the timing and amount of tattteements. The
Company does not currently have any material comanits for capital expenditures.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

The Company seeks to reduce earnings and caslvillaility associated with changes in interestsated
foreign currency exchange rates by entering imtarfcial arrangements, from time to time, whichiatended to
provide a hedge against all or a portion of thkesrisssociated with such volatility. The Companytitares to have
exposure to such risks to the extent they are edgéd.

The Company has used interest rate swaps that ka®@r&ain fixed rate debt to variable rate dehiriBg fiscal
year 2007, the Company terminated its remainingosvii connection with the redemption of it3/ 4% Notes (see
Financing Transaction). There were no interest rate swaps outstanding #e end of fiscal years 2008 and 2007.
The following table sets forth the scheduled méasiof the Company’s debt outstanding at Jun€@88 (dollars

in millions):
Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total
Liabilities:
Fixed rate debt(1 $22 $82 $21 $12 $12 $1,151° $1,166.
Floating rate dek $41€¢ $— $— $— $197 $ — $ 61:

(1) Excludes discounts on lo-term notes

The following table sets forth the carrying valuel dair value of the Company’s debt at June 28 82@llars

in millions):

Carrying Value at Fair Value at Carrying Value at Fair Value at

June 28, 2008 June 28, 200 June 30, 2007 June 30, 200

Liabilities:
Fixed rate debt(1 $ 1,166." $ 1,145%F ¢ 1,160.¢ $ 1,217.(
Average interest rai 5.1% 5.1%
Floating rate det $ 61.2 $ 61.2 % 51t $ 51.t
Average interest rai 2.5% 1.5%

(1) Excludes discounts and premiums on -term notes

Many of the Company subsidiaries, from time to time, purchase anldosetiucts in currencies other than tt
functional currencies. This subjects the Comparmpéorisks associated with fluctuations in foreagmrency
exchange rates. The Company reduces this riskiliging natural hedging (offsetting receivables grayables) as
well as by creating offsetting positions through tise of derivative financial instruments, primafdrward foreign
exchange contracts with maturities of less thaty slays. The Company adjusts all foreign denomuhasdances
and any outstanding foreign exchange contractaitarfarket value through the consolidated statesehnt
operations. Therefore, the market risk relatedteifin exchange contracts is offset by changeslumation of the
underlying items being hedged. The asset or lighiipresenting the fair value of foreign exchaogaetracts is
classified in the captions “other current assets’aocrued expenses and other,” as applicabléyeératcompanying
consolidated balance sheets. A hypothetical 10%gdhan currency exchange rates under the contoaitssanding
at June 28, 2008 would result in an increase aredse of approximately $7.6 million to the fairualbof the forwar
foreign exchange contracts, which would generadlyfiset by an opposite effect on the related héggsitions.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz

The financial statements and supplementary dathséed under Item 15 of this Report.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcégnting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, including its Chief ExgelOfficer and Chief Financial Officer, have avaied
the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure odmtind procedures (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the SecuBtiebange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) as af &nd of the
reporting period covered by this Annual Report onnfr 10-K. Based on such evaluation, the Chief Etteeu
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concludbdt, as of the end of the period covered by thiawal Report
on Form 10-K, the Company’s disclosure controls prutedures are effective such that material in&diom
required to be disclosed by the Company in thertspbat it files or submits under the Exchange i8etcorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the pieniods specified by the Securities and Exchangar@issions
rules and forms relating to the Company.

During the last quarter of fiscal 2008, there hbgen no changes to the Company’s internal contied o
financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-1%(fthe Exchange Act) that have materially affectadare reasonak
likely to materially affect, the Company'’s interr@introl over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management, including its Chief ExgelOfficer and Chief Financial Officer, is respzilvle
for establishing and maintaining adequate intecoatrol over financial reporting as defined in Rule8a-15(f) and
15(d)-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Companytsrnal control over financial reporting is desidre provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaficial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles in the United State8mmerica.
Because of inherent limitations, internal contretiofinancial reporting may not prevent or detettstatements.
Also, controls may become inadequate because oesan conditions, or the degree of compliancé wie
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Managem@mducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofbmpany’s
internal control over financial reporting as of @8, 2008. In making this assessment, managersedtthe
framework established imternal Control — Integrated Framewoitsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and catedithat the Company maintained effective intecoatrol
over financial reporting as of June 28, 2008.

The Companys independent registered public accounting firmMGPLLP, has audited the effectiveness of
Company’s internal controls over financial repagtas of June 28, 2008, as stated in its audit tegdch is
included herein.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

The information called for by Item 10 is incorpamitn this Report by reference to the Company’iafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembe0682

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information called for by Item 11 is incorpamaitn this Report by reference to the Company’'dafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembe0682

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information called for by Item 12 is incorpamaitn this Report by reference to the Company’dafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembe0682

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independenci

The information called for by Item 13 is incorpamitn this Report by reference to the Company’dafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembe0682

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information called for by Item 14 is incorpamaitn this Report by reference to the Company’dafe
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting tfcRholders anticipated to be held on Novembe0682
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

a. The following documents are filed as part of tReport:

Page
1. Consolidated Financial Statemer
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm 40
Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Finar8tatements
Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 28, 2008 usned3D, 200° 42
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yerdsd June 28, 2008, June 30, 2007 and
July 1, 200¢ 43
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquityHferyears ended June 28, 2008,
June 30, 2007 and July 1, 2C 44
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaited June 28, 2008, June 30, 2007
and July 1, 200 45
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 46

2. Financial Statement Schedul
Schedule Il (Valuation and Qualifying Accounts) ftbe years ended June 28, 2008, June 30, 2007
and July 1, 200 78
Schedules other than that above have been omittealibe they are not applicable or the required
information is shown in the financial statementsotes theret
3. Exhibits— The exhibit index for this Report can be found ages 79 to 8:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas
duly caused this Report to be signed on its bdhathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AVNET, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ ROY VALLEE

Roy Vallee,
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

Date: August 27, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbiothe
following persons on behalf of the Registrant amthe capacities indicated on August 27, 2008.

Signature Title
/s/ ROY VALLEE Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer didector
Roy Vallee
/s/ ELEANOR BAUM Director

Eleanor Baun

/sl J. VERONICA BIGGINS Director
J. Veronica Biggin:

/s/ LAWRENCE W. CLARKSON Director
Lawrence W. Clarkso

/s/ EHUD HOUMINER Director
Ehud Houmine

/s/ FRANK R. NOONAN Director
Frank R. Noonal

/s RAY M. ROBINSON Director
Ray M. Robinsor

/s/ WILLIAM P. SULLIVAN Director
William P. Sullivan

/s/ GARY L. TOOKER Director
Gary L. Tookel
/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer aréhcipal
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Avnet, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Gy
as of June 28, 2008 and June 30, 2007, and thedalansolidated statements of operations, shatef®lequity,
and cash flows for each of the years in the thesa-period ended June 28, 2008. In connectionavithaudits of
the consolidated financial statements, we havealsiited the financial statement schedule for edi¢the years in
the three-year period ended June 28, 2008, ad listihe accompanying index. We also have audiiedompanys
internal control over financial reporting as of &8, 2008, based on criteria establisheldt@rnal Control —
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COS!
The Company’s management is responsible for thessotidated financial statements, for maintainifigative
internal control over financial reporting, and ftr assessment of the effectiveness of internarcebaver financial
reporting, included in the accompanyil@nagement’s Report on Internal Control over Finah&eporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesgsotidated financial statements and an opiniorhenGompany’s
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighargio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audits to obtain reasonablea@ssa about
whether the financial statements are free of matarisstatement and whether effective internal mbmtver
financial reporting was maintained in all materedpects. Our audits of the consolidated finarstatements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the finarstaiements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, and evaluagngverall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimaécontrol over financial reporting included dbtag an
understanding of internal control over financiglagiing, assessing the risk that a material weakegssts, and
testing and evaluating the design and operatirgctfifeness of internal control based on the asdetsde Our audi
also included performing such other procedureseasamsidered necessary in the circumstances. Visvbehat ou
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Iajpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementa@cordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréwipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonatdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiarasof June 28, 2008 and June 30, 2007, and thiksre$their
operations and their cash flows for each of thes/eathe thregrear period ended June 28, 2008, in conformity
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Adsour opinion, the related financial statemefitesiule for each
of the years in the three-year period ended Jupn2@®B, when considered in relation to the basisobdated
financial statements taken as a whole, presenty,fai all material respects, the information &&th therein.
Furthermore, in our opinion, Avnet, Inc. maintainadall material respects, effective internal ecohover financial
reporting as of June 28, 2008, based on critet&bished ininternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theadlvay Commission.
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As discussed in note 10 to the consolidated fir@rstatements, effective June 30, 2007, the Compedopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, Es8ployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiad a
Other Postretirement Plans — an Amendment of FASB 8V, 88, 106 and 132(RAs discussed in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, on July 1, 2887 Company adopted the provisions of Financialokating
Standards Board Interpretation No. A8counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — artfiptetation of FASB
Statement No. 109

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 25, 2008
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 28, June 30,
2008 2007
(Thousands, except shar
amounts)
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 640,44¢ $ 557,35(
Receivables, less allowances of $76,690 and $102r&#8pectively (Note : 3,367,44.  3,103,01!
Inventories 1,894,49. 1,736,30:
Prepaid and other current ass 68,76 92,17¢
Total current asse 5,971,14i 5,488,84!
Property, plant and equipment, net (Nott 227,18 179,53
Goodwill (Notes 2 and € 1,728,90. 1,402,47!
Other asset 272,89: 284,27
Total asset $8,200,13( $7,355,11!
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Borrowings due within one year (Note $ 43,80¢ $ 53,367
Accounts payabl 2,293,24. 2,228,01
Accrued expenses and other (Note 442 54! 495,60:
Total current liabilities 2,779,59.  2,776,98!
Long-term debt, less due within one year (Nott 1,181,49¢ 1,155,99i
Other lon¢-term liabilities (Note 9 and 1( 104,34 21,49¢
Total liabilities 4,065,43! 3,954,47.
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 anc
Shareholder equity (Notes 4, 12 and 1«
Common stock $1.00 par; authorized 300,000,000esh#ssued 150,417,000 share
and 149,826,000 shares, respecti 150,41 149,82¢
Additional paic-in capital 1,122,85. 1,094,21|
Retained earning 2,379,72.  1,880,64.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Not 482,17¢ 276,50¢
Treasury stock at cost, 18,286 shares and 20,Cif@slrespectivel (479 (542
Total shareholde’ equity 4,134,69.  3,400,64!
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $8,200,13( $7,355,11!

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1,
2008 2007 2006
(Thousands, except per share amount:

Sales $17,952,70 $15,681,08 $14,253,63
Cost of sales (Note 1’ 15,638,99 13,632,46 12,414,64
Gross profit 2,313,711 2,048,61! 1,838,98:
Selling, general and administrative exper 1,564,39. 1,362,99. 1,344,92;
Restructuring, integration and other charges (Nl 38,94 7,35:% 60,98:
Operating incom: 710,38: 678,27: 433,07¢
Other income, ne 20,95¢ 9,87¢ 4,76(
Interest expens (72,285 (77,177 (96,505
Gain (loss) on sale of assets, net (Note 2 at 49,90: 3,00( (2,607
Debt extinguishment costs (Note — (27,35%) (22,585
Income before income tax 708,95! 586,61 316,14
Income tax provision (Note ¢ 209,87 193,55 111,60(
Net income $ 499,08: $ 393,060 $ 204,54
Net earnings per share (Note 1

Basic $ 332 $ 265 $ 1.4C

Diluted $ 327 $ 26 $ 1.3¢
Shares used to compute earnings per share (Nat

Basic 150,25( 148,03. 145,94.

Diluted 152,42( 149,61: 147,15(

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Balance, July 2, 200!
Net income
Translation adjustments (Note

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended June 28, 2008, June 30, 2007 and July2D06

Accumulated

Minimum pension liability adjustment, n

of tax of $13,059 (Notes 4, 10 and :

Comprehensive income (Note
Stock issued for acquisition of Mem

Stock option and incentive programs,

including related tax benefits of $1

Balance at July 1, 200¢
Net income
Translation adjustments (Note

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of

$4,181(Notes 4, 10 and 1
Comprehensive income (Note

Stock option and incentive programs,

including related tax benefits of $15,5

Balance, June 30, 200
Net income
Translation adjustments (Note

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax of

$10,901 (Notes 4, 10 and 1
Comprehensive income (Note

Stock option and incentive programs,

including related tax benefits of $3,8

Balance, June 28, 200

Additional Other Total
Common Paid-In Retained  Comprehensive  Treasury  Shareholder¢

Stock Capital Earnings Income Stock Equity

(Thousands)

120,77 569,63¢ 1,283,02! 123,70! (209 2,097,03.
— — 204,54 — — 204,54
— — — 43,25! — 43,25]
— — — 19,92( — 19,92(
267,71¢
24,01 394,19 — — — 418,20!
1,88t 46,50/ — — (162) 48,22
146,66 1,010,331  1,487,57 186,87t (271 2,831,18.
— — 393,06 — — 393,06
— — — 83,094 — 83,094
— — — 6,53¢ — 6,53¢
482,70(
3,15¢ 83,87 — — (277) 86,76:
149,82t $1,094,211 $1,880,64. $ 276,50¢ $ (542 $ 3,400,64!
— — 499,08: — — 499,08:
— — — 222,55: — 222,55:
— — — (16,887) — (16,887)
704,75(
591 28,64 — — 63 29,29¢
150,41 $1,122,85 $2,379,72. $ 482,17t $ (479 $ 4,134,69

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1,
2008 2007 2006
(Thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $499,08: $ 393,060 $ 204,54
Non-cash and other reconciling iten
Depreciation and amortizatic 59,23: 53,77 66,52¢
Deferred income taxes (Note 107,14¢ 99,60: 52,16¢
Stoclk-based compensation (Note : 25,38¢ 24,25( 18,09¢
(Gain) loss on sale of assets, net (Note 2 ar (49,909 (3,000 2,601
Other, net (Note 1¢ 24,19: 30,74¢ 60,37
Changes in (net of effects from business acqurss)ic
Receivable! 46,10C (129,35) (254,69)
Inventories 36,45: 53,67¢  (142,56)
Accounts payabl (123,34  262,19: 99,67(
Accrued expenses and other, (170,729 (60,327 (125,84))
Net cash flows provided by (used for) operatingvétes 453,61 724,63¢ (19,119
Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of notes in public offerings, net of isggacosts (Note — 593,16¢ 246,48:
Repayment of notes (Note —  (505,03) (369,96
(Repayment of) proceeds from bank debt, (22,429 (122,999 89,511
Payment of other debt, net (Note (19,500 (780) (64%)
Other, net (Note 12 8,881 69,51: 30,99
Net cash flows (used for) provided by financing\aties (33,047 33,86 (3,627)
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (89,657 (58,787) (51,809
Cash proceeds from sales of property, plant anghptgnt 12,061 2,77¢ 4,36¢
Acquisitions and investments, net of cash acquikate 2) (369,38) (433,23) (317,119
Cash proceeds from divestitures, net of cash dide@dtote 2 68,60! 3,44¢ 22,77¢
Net cash flows used for investing activit (378,38() (485,799 (341,770
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts 40,90¢ 7,92t 3,35:
Cash and cash equivaler
— increase (decreas 83,09¢ 280,63 (361,159
— at beginning of yee 557,35( 276,71. 637,86
— at end of yea $ 640,44¢ $557,35( $276,71:

Additional cash flow information (Note 1!
See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidation— The accompanying consolidated financial statémelude the accounts of the
Company and all of its majority-owned and contrblsibsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and &atisns have
been eliminated.

During fiscal 2007, the Company reviewed its methbrecording revenue related to sales of suppkevice
contracts and now classifies such contracts ornt eemenue basis. S&evenue Recognitian this Note 1 for furthe
discussion.

Cash and cash equivalents- The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith an original maturity ¢
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Inventories — Inventories, comprised principally of finishedagls, are stated at cost (first-in, first-out) or
market, whichever is lower.

Investments— Investments in joint ventures and entities iricliithe Company has an ownership interest
greater than 50% and exercises control over theuxe@re consolidated in the accompanying congelitiinancial
statements. Minority interests in the years preskraf which amounts are not material, are includetie caption
“accrued expenses and other” in the accompanyingatimated balance sheets. Investments in joiniuves and
entities in which the Company exercises signifigafittence but not control are accounted for usheequity
method. The Company invests from time to time intuees in which the Company’s ownership interegtss than
20% and over which the Company does not exeraigéfisiant influence. Such investments are accoufdaednder
the cost method. The fair values for investmentsnagled on a quoted exchange are estimated basedtiue
historical performance of the ventures, the versui@ecasted financial performance and managermevgluation
of the venturesviability and business models. To the extent thekbalue of an investment exceeds its assesse
value, the Company will record an appropriate impant charge. Thus, the carrying value of the Camijza
investments approximates fair value.

Depreciation and amortizatior— Depreciation and amortization is generally pded for by the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the as3éie estimated useful lives for depreciation amdrtization are
typically as follows: buildings — 30 years; machipdixtures and equipment — 2-10 years; and leakeh
improvements — over the applicable remaining leasa or useful life if shorter.

Long-lived assets— Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairmenemndwver events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouthefassets may not be recoverable. An impairmeetizgnized
when the estimated undiscounted cash flows expéotazbult from the use of the asset and its ewligposition
is less than its carrying amount. An impairmemh&asured as the amount by which an asset’s net\mok
exceeds its estimated fair value. The Company coaliy evaluates the carrying value and the remgieiconomic
useful life of all long-lived assets and will adjtise carrying value and the related depreciatimhamortization
period if and when appropriate.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pver the fair value of net assets acquired. In
accordance with the Financial Accounting Stand&uatsrd (“FASB”) Statement of Financial AccountingBtiards
No. 142 “SFAS 142"),Goodwill and Other Intangible Assetee Company does not amortize goodwill. Instead,
annual tests for goodwill impairment are perforrbgdapplying a fair-value based test to Avnet’s réipg units,
defined as each of the three regional businesdashware the Americas, EMEA (Europe, Middle East Affrica),
and Asia, within each of the Company’s operatingugs. The Company conducts its periodic test fadgall
impairment annually, on the first day of the fistmirth quarter. A two-step process is used towatal goodwill for
impairment. The first step is to determine if thisran indication of impairment by comparing théreated fair
value of each reporting unit to its carrying vaineluding existing goodwill. Goodwill is consider@dpaired if the
carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds thewestid fair value. The second step, which is peréahanly if there
is an indication of impairment, determines the amaf the impairment by comparing the
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwillith its carrying value. To estimate fair valueeafch reporting
unit, the Company uses a combination of presentevahd multiple of earnings valuation techniqudse &stimated
fair values could change in the future due to clearig market and business conditions that coukttathe
assumptions and estimates used in these valuatbnijues. The Company’s annual impairment tedisdal
2008, 2007 and 2006 yielded no impairments to #neytg value of the Company’s goodwiill.

Foreign currency translation— The assets and liabilities of foreign operatiarstranslated into U.S. dollars
at the exchange rates in effect at the balancd glage with the related translation adjustmengemned as a separ:
component of shareholderxjuity and comprehensive income. Results of operatare translated using the aver
exchange rates prevailing throughout the periodn3actions denominated in currencies other thafutiwional
currency of the Avnet business unit that is pastthe transaction (primarily trade receivables pagables) are
translated at exchange rates in effect at the balaheet date or upon settlement of the transactiaims and losses
from such translation are recorded in the constditlatatements of operations as a component oéf'atlcome,
net.” In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, gains or less® foreign currency translation were not material

Income taxes— The Company follows the asset and liability negetlof accounting for income taxes. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are recognizedhi® estimated future tax impact of differencesvieen the
financial statement carrying amounts of assetdiabdities and their respective tax bases. Deféineome tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enaaxetes in effect for the year in which those terapy differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. Based hiptwrical and projected levels of taxable incaand analysis of
other key factors, the Company records a valualtmwance against its deferred tax assets, as derauwessary, to
state such assets at their estimated net realizahle. The effect on deferred income tax assetdiahilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in earningséarm#riod in which the new rate is enacted.

The Company establishes reserves for potentialiguamable outcomes of positions taken on certain ta
matters. These reserves are based on managenssg&sment of whether a tax benefit is more likedy tnot to be
sustained upon examination by tax authorities. @nealy be differences between the anticipated atudilac
outcomes of these matters that may result in releosf reserves or additional tax liabilities ircegs of the reservi
amounts. To the extent such adjustments are wadatlite Company’ effective tax rate may potentially fluctuate
a result.

No provision for U.S. income taxes has been madagproximately $1,218,357,000 of cumulative untésdi
earnings of foreign subsidiaries at June 28, 2@@&bse those earnings are expected to be permarantiested
outside the U.S. A hypothetical calculation of tleferred tax liability, assuming that earnings wemitted, is not
practicable.

Self-insurance— The Company is primarily self-insured for worketompensation, medical, and general,
product and automobile liability costs; howeveg ompany also has a stop-loss insurance poliplate to limit
the Company’s exposure to individual and aggreglaiens made. Liabilities for these programs areresed based
upon outstanding claims and claims estimated te l@en incurred but not yet reported based updariual loss
experience. These estimates are subject to vatyadhile to changes in trends of losses for outstendaims and
incurred but not recorded claims, including extéfaeators such as future inflation rates, benefitl changes and
claim settlement patterns.

Revenue recognitior— Revenue from product sales is recognized inraleewe with Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 4@*SAB 104"), Revenue Recognitiobinder SAB 104,
revenue from product sales is recognized when peigel evidence of an arrangement exists, delivasydtcurred
or services have been rendered, the sales prib®isor determinable and collectibility is reasblyaassured.
Generally, these criteria are met upon shipmentgtomers. Most of the Company’s product sales doome
product Avnet purchases from a supplier and haidsventory. A portion of the Company’s sales dripsents of
product directly from its suppliers to its customdn such circumstances, Avnet negotiates the pith the
customer, pays the supplier directly for the pradinépped and bears credit risk of collecting paytieom its
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

customers. Furthermore, in such drop-shipment geraents, Avnet bears responsibility for acceptetgms of
product from the customer even if Avnet, in turasfa right to return the product to the origingddier if the

product is defective. Under these terms, the Comparves as the principal with the customer, amddfunder

SAB 104 and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue N&@99GEITF 99-19"),Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal
versus Net as an Agemind therefore recognizes the sale and cost obsdle product upon receiving notification
from the supplier that the product has shipped.

In addition, the Company has more limited contraktalationships with certain of its customers angpliers
whereby Avnet assumes an agency relationship itréimsaction as defined by EITF 99-19. In suchreyeanents,
the Company recognizes the fee associated witlingeag an agent in sales with no associated ccstle$.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, in conjtioa with the acquisition of Access (see Note 2 egflecting
recent industry trends, the Company reviewed ithoeeof recording revenue related to the salesippker service
contracts and determined that such sales were ¢tabsified on a net revenue basis rather thangross basis
beginning the third quarter of fiscal 2007. Althbutyis change reduced sales and cost of salekdarechnology
Solutions (“TS”) operating group and on a consdédabasis, it had no impact on operating incomeinoeme,
cash flow or the balance sheet. The impact ofdh&ge on prior periods is that sales and costle§svould have
been reduced by $214,417,000, or 2.8%, for theHal of fiscal 2007 which is the period in fis@007 before the
change was effective, and by $387,326,000, or 2f@ediscal 2006.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recograzably over the life of the contracts, rangingirone to
three years.

Revenues are recorded net of discounts, rebatesstingated returns. Provisions are made for dissoamd
rebates, which are primarily volume-based, andased on historical trends and anticipated custdmgng
patterns. Provisions for returns are estimateddarehistorical sales returns, credit memo anabysd other known
factors.

Comprehensive income- Comprehensive income represents net incoménéyear adjusted for changes in
shareholders’ equity from non-shareholder soursesumulated comprehensive income items typicalgjude
currency translation and the impact of the Compapgnsion liability adjustment, net of tax (seed\4).

Stock-based compensation Beginning in fiscal 2006, the Company adopteate&3hent of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 20@hare-based PaymefiSFAS 123R”),which revised SFAS No. 12
Accounting for Stoc-based Compensatiand supersedes Accounting Principles Board OpiNien25 (“APB 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ«<SFAS 123R requires all share-based payments, imgugtants of
employee stock options, be measured at fair valdesapensed in the consolidated statement of apasabver the
service period (see Note 12). Prior to fiscal 2086,Company accounted for its stock-based compiensalans
using the intrinsic value method initially preseibby APB 25. In applying APB 25, no expense wasgaized
upon grant of stock options under the Company’®uarstock option plans, except in the rare cirdamses where
the exercise price was less than the fair markeevan the grant date, nor was expense recognizednnection
with shares purchased by employees under the E@@IBtock Purchase Plan (see Note 12).

Concentration of credit risk— Financial instruments that potentially subject@@mpany to a concentration
credit risk principally consist of cash and cashiealents and trade accounts receivable. The Coynipaests its
excess cash primarily in overnight Eurodollar tideposits and institutional money market funds witllity
financial institutions. The Company sells electoocdmponents and computer products primarily tgioail
equipment and contract manufacturers, includingnfigary and military contractors, throughout therld. To
reduce credit risk, management performs ongoinditcezaluations of its customers’ financial conalitiand, in
some instances, has obtained insurance coveragduoe such risk. The Company maintains reservgsotential
credit losses, but has not experienced any matessés related to individual customers or grodpsistomers in
any particular industry or geographic area.
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Fair value of financial instruments— The carrying amounts of the Company’s finaniriatruments, including
cash and cash equivalents, receivables and acqoaydble approximate their fair values at June2288 due to th
short-term nature of these instruments. See Né&de fiirther discussion of the fair value of the Gmany'’s fixed rate
long-term debt instruments and seeestmentin this Note 1 for further discussion of the faalwe of the
Company’s investments in unconsolidated entities.

Accounts receivable securitization- The Company has an accounts receivable securitizptogram wherek
the Company may sell receivables in securitizatiansactions and retain a subordinated intenedtservicing righ
to those receivables. The Company accounts foprthgram under the FASB’s Statement of FinancialoAieting
Standards No. 140 (“SFAS 140Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishment of
Liabilities. The securitization program is accounted for asrabalance sheet financing through the securitinadifo
accounts receivable (see Note 3). The gain ordossales of receivables is determined at the datamsfer based
upon the relative fair value of the assets soldthaednterests retained. The Company estimatesdhie based on
the present value of future expected cash flowsgusianagement’s best estimates of the key assumsptiecluding
collection period and discount rates.

Derivative financial instruments— The Company accounts for derivative financiatinments in accordance
with the FASB’s Statement of Financial Accountirtgr&lards No. 133 (“SFAS 133’Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activitieas amended by Statement of Financial Accountingdatals No. 138,
Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments anddging Activitiesand Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 14®mendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instrusreemd Hedging Activities.

Many of the Company’s subsidiaries, on occasiongipase and sell products in currencies other thein t
functional currencies. This subjects the Comparéorisks associated with fluctuations in foreagmrency
exchange rates. The Company reduces this riskiliging natural hedging (offsetting receivables grayables) as
well as by creating offsetting positions through tise of derivative financial instruments, primafdrward foreign
exchange contracts with maturities of less thaty slays. The Company adjusts all foreign denomihasdances
and any outstanding foreign exchange contractaitarfarket value through the consolidated statesehnt
operations. Therefore, the market risk relatedhéoforeign exchange contracts is offset by the ghain valuation
of the underlying items being hedged. The asskalbitity representing the fair value of foreignatvange contracts
is classified in the captions “other current assetsaccrued expenses and other,” as applicabléhe
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The Company has, from time to time, entered intbgledransactions that convert certain fixed rate the
variable rate debt. To the extent the Company sfitéo such hedge transactions, those fair valdgdsand the
hedged debt are adjusted to current market valwesgh interest expense in accordance with SFASd83
amended.

The Company generally does not hedge its investindtg foreign operations. The Company does ntgren
into derivative financial instruments for tradinggpeculative purposes and monitors the finantéddikty and credi
standing of its counterparties.

Fiscal year — The Company operates on a “52/53 week” fiscal y@hich ends on the Saturday closest to
June 30th. Fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 all contai@edeeks. Unless otherwise noted, all referereéfistcal 2008”
or any other “year” shall mean the Company’s figezr.

Management estimates- The preparation of financial statements in comity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to matimates and assumptions that affect certain rep@inounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the date of the findrat@ements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Actual results could differrfrahose
estimates.
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Recent accounting pronouncementsin May 2008, the Financial Accounting StandaBdsird (“FASB”)
issued FSP Accounting Principles Board 1Aetounting for Convertible Debt Instruments ThatyNBe Settled in
Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Setdat)(“FSP APB 14-1"). FSP APB 14-1 requires the issafer
certain convertible debt instruments that may hiegkin cash (or other assets) on conversion parsgely account
for the liability (debt) and equity (conversion igpt) components of the instrument in a manner tibiécts the
issuer's non-convertible debt borrowing rate. FSHBAL4-1 is effective for fiscal years beginningeaft
December 15, 2008 on a retrospective basis, as siitbe effective beginning in the Company’s fidgear 2010.
The Company is evaluating the potential impactteronsolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Fireetcounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 16isclosures
about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activittesan amendment of FASB Statement No("I53AS 1617).
SFAS 161 requires enhanced disclosures about fretivies of derivative instruments and hedgingwitagis, the
method of accounting for such instruments under SEAB3 and its related interpretations, and a talligaglosure ¢
the effects of such instruments and related hedgets on an entity’s financial position, finangmrformance and
cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal yelgeginning after November 15, 2008, as such, wikthective
beginning in the Company’s fiscal year 2010. Then@any is evaluating the disclosure requiremenSFAS 161;
however, the adoption of SFAS 161 is not expeatdthve a material impact on the Company’s consila
financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141deeh2007)Business Combinatiorf§SFAS 141R”).
SFAS 141R establishes the requirements for howcquniger recognizes and measures the identifialdetas
acquired, the liabilities assumed, any non-coritrglinterest in the acquiree and the goodwill acepii SFAS 141R
requires acquisition costs be expensed insteadpifadized as is required currently under SFAS 44d also
establishes disclosure requirements for businesbic@tions. SFAS 141R applies to business comloingtior
which the acquisition date is on or after fiscahngebeginning on or after December 15, 2008, ds, S€AS 141R i
effective beginning in the Comparyfiscal year 2010. Although the Company is stillleating the potential impa
on its consolidated financial statements upon adopf SFAS 141R, it does expect that, based uperCompanys
level of acquisition activity, there may be an iropi its consolidated statement of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No.N6A-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment to ARB N@:SHAS 160”). SFAS 160 will change the accountimgl aeporting for
minority interests, which will now be termed “noortrolling interests.” SFAS 160 requires noantrolling interest
to be presented as a separate component of equitseguires the amount of net income attributabléné parent
and to the non-controlling interest to be sepayatkntified on the consolidated statement of ofi@na. SFAS 160
is effective for fiscal years beginning on or aflercember 15, 2008, as such, will be effective tr@gg in the
Company’s fiscal year 2010. The adoption of SFAB ikthot expected to have a material impact orCin@pany’s
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value Measuremen{8SFAS 157"), which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuraig\alue in generally accepted accounting prirephnd expant
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS1483 not require any new fair value measurembuats,
provides guidance on how to measure fair valuerbyiding a fair value hierarchy used to classifg #ource of the
information. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASRBff Position 157-1Application of FASB Statement No. 157
to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Rmcements That Address Fair Value Measurements for
Purposes of Lease Classification or MeasuremeneuBthtement 1. (“FSP 157-1"). FSP 157-dmends SFAS 1f
to exclude leasing transactions accounted for uS&&S 13 and related guidance from the scope ofSSE3V. In
February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positioi-2 (“FSP 175-2")kffective Date of FASB Statement 157
which delays the effective date of SFAS 157 fonalh-financial assets and nfinancial liabilities, except for iterr
that are recognized or disclosed as fair valudénfinancial statements on a recurring basis st lannually).
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal year 2009, howeWw3P 157-2 delays the effective date for certaims
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to fiscal year 2010. The Company is evaluatingphiential impact on its consolidated financial estaénts upon
adoption of SFAS 157.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No(“F8N 48"), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes —
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. {&FAS 109"). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting fanaertainty in
income taxes recognized in an entity’s financiatesnents in accordance with SFAS 109 and presdfia¢s
company should use a more-likely-than-not recognithreshold based on the technical merits ofdakegbsition
taken or expected to be taken. Tax positions tlegthe more-likely-than-not recognition threshstduld be
measured in order to determine the tax benefieteelbognized in the financial statements. Additiign&IN 48
provides guidance on derecognition, classificatinterest and penalties, accounting in interimquigj disclosure
and transition and was effective beginning the fijtsarter of fiscal 2008. The adoption of FIN 48 dbt result in a
cumulative adjustment to retained earnings (see Mpt

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1A6¢ounting for Servicing of Financial Assetsar-Amendmer
of FASB Statement No. 140°'SFAS 156”). SFAS 156 provides guidance on theoanting for servicing assets and
liabilities when an entity undertakes an obligatiorservice a financial asset by entering intoraisig contract.
This statement was effective for all transactianthea beginning of fiscal 2008. The adoption of §-166 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s consoliifitencial condition or results of operations.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. s ounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments an
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 an(“SFAS 155"). SFAS 155 allows financial instrumetftat contain
an embedded derivative and that otherwise wouldiredpifurcation to be accounted for as a wholadair value
basis, at the holders’ election. SFAS 155 alsdfiarand amends certain other provisions of SF8%dnd
SFAS 140. SFAS 155 was effective beginning fis€fl&® The adoption of SFAS 155 did not have a nalteffect
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

2. Acquisitions, divestitures and investment:
Fiscal 2009

Subsequent to fiscal 2008 year end, the Companpleted its acquisition of Horizon Technology Graqulp in
an all cash offer for €1.18 per share, or approtetga160.5 million. Horizon is a leading techniagatiegrator and
distributor of information technology products lretUK and Ireland with sales of approximately $4@i0ion in
calendar year 2007. The acquired business wileperted as part of the TS EMEA reporting unit. Qwmpany
also made two smaller acquisitions in July 2008jr€e Electronics Corporation with annualized re\eeofi
approximately $82 million which will be reported @art of the Electronics Marketing (“EM”) Americasporting
unit and Ontrack Solutions Pvt. Ltd. with annuadizevenue of approximately $13 million which wil beported as
part of the TS Asia reporting unit.

Fiscal 2008

On March 31, 2008 (the beginning of the fiscal thuquarter), the Company acquired UK-based Azzurri
Technology Ltd., a design-in distributor of semidaotor and embedded systems products with annuahues of
approximately $100 million. The acquisition is refeal as part of the EM EMEA reporting unit.

On December 31, 2007 (the beginning of the fiduiatitquarter), the Company acquired YEL Electroricsg
Kong Ltd., a distributor of interconnect, passivel @lectromechanical components in Asia. The aeduiusiness
with annual revenues of approximately $200 millismeported as part of the EM Asia reporting unit.

On December 17, 2007, the Company completed itsisitiqn of the IT Solutions division of Acal plad. The
Acal IT Solutions division is a leading value-addkstributor of storage area networking, securevogking
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and electronic document management products amttegywith operations in six European countries annual
revenues of approximately $200 million. Acal isoepd as part of the TS EMEA reporting unit.

On October 8, 2007, the Company completed its aipn of the European Enterprise Infrastructurgsitbn
of valueadded distributor Magirus Group. The division acediis a distributor of servers, storage systenfyare
and services of IBM and Hewlett-Packard to resglierseven European countries and Dubai with amewainues
of approximately $500 million. The acquisition eported as part of the TS EMEA reporting unit.

In addition to the acquisitions mentioned above,@mmpany also acquired several smaller businessesy
fiscal 2008 as follows:

Operating Approximate
Acquired Busines: Group Region Annual Revenue Acquisition Date
Flint Distribution Ltd. EM EMEA $ 40 million July 200°
Betronik GmbH EM EMEA $ 40 million October 200
ChannelWor TS Asia/Pac $ 30 million October 200

During fiscal 2008, the Company sold its equitydstment in Calence LLC and received proceeds of
approximately $65,601,000 which resulted in a gmirsale of assets of $42,426,000 pre-tax, $25,924ker tax
and $0.17 per share on a diluted basis. In additittnCompany recorded a gain on sale of ass&3,000,000 pre-
tax, $1,843,000 after tax and $0.01 per sharedituted basis in connection with the receipt of seeond and last
installment of contingent purchase price proceetied to the fiscal 2006 sale of a TS businedisdrAmericas.

Fiscal 2007

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, the Compagcorded a gain on the sale of assets in the ahodu
$3,000,000 pre-tax, $1,814,000 after tax and $pd¥lshare on a diluted basis related to the reoéipintingent
purchase price proceeds from the fiscal 2006 dadel& business in the Americas.

On December 31, 2006, the first day of Avnet'sdiguarter of fiscal 2007, the Company completed the
acquisition of Access Distribution (“Access”), atkng value-added distributor of complex compusbgutions,
which had sales of approximately $1.90 billion alemdar year 2006. The purchase price of $437,8B4n@s
funded primarily with debt plus cash on hand anslisject to adjustment based upon the auditedngjastt book
value which has not been completed. As a reswtpthichase price includes an estimate of the andueto seller
based on the unaudited closing net book value Aldoess business is reported as part of the TS Aaeand
EMEA operations.

Allocation of Access purchase price

The Access acquisition is accounted for as a psechasiness combination. Assets acquired anditiabil
assumed are recorded in the accompanying consadidk@iance sheet at their estimated fair values as
December 31, 2006. The allocation of purchase poicbe assets acquired and liabilities assuméieatate of
acquisition is presented in the following tableisTéllocation is based upon valuations using mamage's
estimates and assumptions. Management has evathatéalr value of assets and liabilities acquiteayever, the
Company has not received the audited closing balaheet upon which, pursuant to the purchase agrgethe
final purchase price is to be based. As a resuhisfunusual circumstance, the Company will re¢bedfinal
purchase price outside the typical one year puschase allocation period.

In addition, the assets and liabilities in thedaling table include liabilities recorded for actiotaken as a
result of plans to integrate the acquired operatiato Avnet’s existing operations. The purchasmanting
adjustments include the following exit-related daid value adjustments: (1) severance costs foreAsavorkforce
reductions; (2) lease commitments for leased Acfaskties that will no longer be used; (3) comménts related 1
other contractual obligations that had no ongoiegdiit to the combined business; (4) write-offsvoite-downs in
the
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value of certain Access information technology &saed other fixed assets that were not utilizetthéncombined
business, and (5) other adjustments to recorddfei@d assets and liabilities at fair value inaxdance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, Bd&iness Combinations

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Comypaompleted its valuation of the identifiable imggble
assets that resulted from the Access acquisitiba.Gompany allocated $32,800,000 of purchase picastomer
relationship intangible assets which managememhasis to have a life of ten years (see Note 6).

Approximately $74,862,000 of the goodwill generagdhe Access acquisition is deductible for taxposes.

Current assetl

Property, plant and equipme
Goodwill

Amortizable intangible ass
Other asset

Total assets acquire
Current liabilities

Net assets acquired (gross purchase p
Less: cash acquire

Purchase price, net of cash acqu

December 31
2006
(Thousands)
$ 652,66(

5,20¢
87,72
32,80(

43¢
778,82¢
341,27!

$ 437,55

(9,86))
$ 427,69:

The integration of Access into the Americas and BMEgions of the TS operations was complete aheenc
of fiscal 2007, at which time, management estimétbed achieved its targeted annualized operatikpgnse
synergies. The Access acquisition provided a plistfif technology products that was complementanjtnet’s
existing offerings. The combination of these fastaas the rationale for the excess of purchase pad over the

value of assets and liabilities acquired.

Access acquisition-related exit activity accountied in purchase accounting

As a result of the acquisition of Access, the Conypastablished and approved plans to integratadfjaired
operations into the Americas and EMEA regions ef@mpany’s TS operations, for which the Compacyneged
$5.0 million in exit-related purchase accountinguatinents during fiscal 2007. These exit-relatedilities
consisted of severance for workforce reductions;cencelable lease commitments and lease termincliarges
for leased facilities, and other contract termimrttosts associated with the exit activities.

The following table summarizes the Access exitteglaacquisition reserves that have been establisinedgh
purchase accounting and related activity that aecuduring fiscal 2008:

Balance at June 30, 20
Amounts utilizec
Adjustments
Other, principally foreign currency translati

Balance at June 28, 20

Severanci Facility Exit
Reserves Reserves Other Total
(Thousands)

$ 242 $ 1,80¢ $11z $4,34
(3,309 (116) (115 (3,539
80¢ — — 80¢
89 227 3 31¢
$ 17 $ 192 $ — $ 1,937
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Total amounts utilized for exit-related activitidsring fiscal 2008 consisted of $3,534,000 in gaayments.
The Company also recognized an additional $808088verance which was recorded within the one paechase
price allocation period. As of June 28, 2008, ttegarty of the severance reserves have been wtibzel
management expects the majority of the facilityt essts to be utilized by fiscal 2013.

The exit-related purchase accounting reservesledtat for severance related to the reduction oA8€ess
personnel in the Americas and EMEA regions, andgisbed primarily of administrative, finance andtaer
operational functions. These reductions were basatdanagement’s assessment of redundant Acces®pssi
compared with existing Avnet positions. The cosespnted in the “Facility Exit Reserves” columrtlod preceding
table consisted of estimated future payments farcancelable leases and early lease terminatids farstwo
facilities, one in the Americas and one in EMEAEgTdosts presented in the “Other” column of the gadéty table
included early termination costs for contracts thed no future benefit to the on-going combinedrmss.

Unaudited pro forma results

Unaudited pro forma financial information is presghbelow as if the acquisition of Access occuatthe
beginning of fiscal 2006. The pro forma informatjaresented below does not purport to present Wieaattual
results would have been had the acquisition indactirred at the beginning of fiscal 2006, nor dbesinformation
project results for any future period. Further, pne forma results exclude any benefits that maultdrom the
acquisition due to synergies that were derived ftihenelimination of any duplicative costs.

Pro Forma Results

Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006
(Thousands, except per share dat:
Pro forma sale $16,603,62 $16,108,93
Pro forma operating incorn 714,89( 501,29:
Pro forma net incom 406,88 232,91
Pro forma diluted earnings per sh $ 272 $ 1.5¢

Combined results for Avnet and Access were adjulstethe following in order to create the unaudiprd
forma results in the table above:

» $2,598,000 pre-tax, $1,741,000 after tax and $peédddiluted share, and $6,163,000 tae- $3,987,000 aft:
tax and $0.03 per diluted share for fiscal 2007 20106, respectively, for amortization expense irdpto
intangible assets written off upon acquisiti

* $10,429,000 pre-tax, $6,988,000 after tax and $pedSliluted share, and $20,858,000 pre-tax, $53009
after tax and $0.09 per diluted share, for fis@2and 2006, respectively, for interest expenisging to
borrowings used to fund the acquisition. For the forma results presented above, the borrowings wer
assumed to be outstanding for the entire perioglsgmted abovi

Fiscal 2006
Memec Acquisition

On July 5, 2005, the Company acquired Memec Grooidikgs Limited (“Memec”), a global distributor tha
marketed and sold a portfolio of semiconductor devifrom industry-leading suppliers in additiorptoviding
customers with engineering expertise and desigricees. Memec was fully integrated into the Electcsriviarketing
group of Avnet as of the end of fiscal 2006. Thasideration for the Memec acquisition consistedtotk and cash
valued at approximately $506,882,000 includinggeation costs, plus the assumption of $239,9600000emec’s
net debt (debt less cash acquired). All but $27B%Bof this acquired net debt was repaid uporckhsing of the
acquisition. Under the terms of the purchase, Meimegstors received
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24,011,000 shares of Avnet common stock plus $6308® of cash. The shares of Avnet common stocle wer
valued at $17.42 per share, which represents wbedfay average stock price beginning two days edfoe
acquisition announcement on April 26, 2005.

As a result of the acquisition and subsequent ratean of Memec, the Company recorded certain estited
liabilities during the purchase price allocatiomipé which closed at the end of fiscal 2006. Thexig-related
liabilities consisted of severance for workforcduetions, non-cancelable lease commitments ané teasination
charges for leased facilities, and other contmrhination costs associated with the exit actigitie

The following table summarizes the utilization e$erves during fiscal 2008 related to exit actegitestablishe
through purchase accounting in connection withettguisition of Memec:

Severanci Facility Exit
Reserves Reserves Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at June 30, 20 $ 42 $ 12,00¢ $2,00¢ $14,44:
Amounts utilizec 44 (3,889 — (3,92
Adjustments — (302) — (302)
Other, principally foreign currency translati 56 34 — 90

Balance at June 28, 20 $ 43t $ 7,857 $2,00¢ $10,30:

Total amounts utilized for exit-related activitigdsring fiscal 2008 consisted of $3,928,000 in gaesments
and $302,000 in lease reserves deemed excessitharrfbre reversed through goodwill during fis2@08. Cash
payments for severance are expected to be suladhaptiid out by the end of fiscal 2009, whereaerees for othe
contractual commitments, particularly for certaage commitments, will extend into fiscal 2013.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2006, the Companmpleted the divestiture of two end-user businiegs in
its TS Americas business. In January 2006, the @Gompold its TS Americas engser enterprise server and stor
business line to a value-added reseller for netgeds of $11,190,000. This business line sold uanwoducts and
services directly to end-users. The Company copatlyr executed an exclusive distribution agreemérereby the
acquiring company is to procure certain enterpr@®puter products under customary terms from Afares five-
year contract perioc

In February 2006, the Company contributed cashcanigiin operating assets and liabilities of itsArBericas
end-user network solutions business line into rat jeénture with Calence Inc. in exchange for aregtment interest
in the joint venture, called Calence LLC. This Ingsis line provided network and related productssandces
directly to customers and generated annual revesidess than $200 million for Avnet. Avnet’s irgtiequity
investment in Calence LLC of $18,799,000 (consisth$13,948,000 in cash paid and $4,851,000 oasstts
contributed) was accounted for under the equityhebtwith this investment included in “other loregrh assetsbn
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Asopisy discussed in this Note 2, the Company ésld
investment in Calence LLC in fiscal 2008 which geted a pre-tax gain of $42,426,000.

In April 2006, the Company sold the net assetsvofsmall, non-core EM specialty businesses in ENBA
retained a 16% investment in one of the busindsdlesving the sale. Net proceeds received fromgale of these
two businesses were $11,589,000.

As a result of these divestitures, the Companyrosmba net pre-tax loss of $2,601,000 during fi2C4I6.

3. Accounts receivable securitization

The Company has an accounts receivable secumtizptogram (the “Program”) with a group of finaricia
institutions that allows the Company to sell, aeeolving basis, an undivided interest of up to850,000 in
eligible U.S. receivables while retaining a suboadied interest in a portion of the receivablesafaing under the
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Program does not qualify as off-balance sheet &imn As a result, the receivables and related deligation
remain on the Comparg/'consolidated balance sheet as amounts are drative &rogram. The Company contin
servicing the sold receivables and charges thd garty conduits a monthly servicing fee at marktgs;
accordingly, no servicing asset or liability hagiheecorded. The Program had a one year term egpitithe end ¢
August 2008 which the Company has renewed for angthar on comparable terms. There were no amounts
outstanding under the Program as of June 28, 2008r= 30, 2007.

Expenses associated with the Program consistexbgfam, facility and professional fees of $1,709,00
$1,890,000 and $1,678,000, for fiscal 2008, 20Q¥ 2006, respectively. Costs associated with thgraro were
recorded in selling, general and administrativeesmges in the accompanying consolidated stateméotseoations.
To the extent there have been drawings under thgrém, the Company has historically measured tineddue of
its retained interests at the time of a securitimatising a present value model incorporating tep &ssumptions:
(1) a weighted average life of trade accounts vad®é of 45 days and (2) a discount rate of 6.78¥apnum.

4. Comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the accumulatedalbaks of comprehensive income items at June 28, 200
June 30, 2007 and July 1, 2006:

June 28, June 30, July 1,
2008 2007 2006
(Thousands)
Accumulated translation adjustments, $528,74¢ $306,19¢ $223,10:
Accumulated pension liability adjustments, netrafame taxe: (46,577) (29,689 (36,22§)
Total $482,17¢ $276,50¢ $186,87¢

5. Property, plant and equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment are recorded atarubtconsist of the following:

June 28, June 30,
2008 2007
(Thousands)
Land $ 548 $ 511¢
Buildings 90,72¢ 87,32:
Machinery, fixtures and equipme 611,95¢ 519,25¢
Leasehold improvemen 57,733 44,46
765,90¢ 656,15¢
Less— accumulated depreciation and amortiza (538,72) (476,629

$ 227,18 $ 179,53

Depreciation and amortization expense relatedapgaty, plant and equipment was $49,171,000, $43008
and $55,053,000 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 ectspely.

During fiscal 2008, the Company sold a buildingie EMEA region and recorded a gain of $4,477,0@0 p
and after tax and $0.03 per share on a diluteg bBsie to local tax allowances, the sale of thédimg was not
taxable.

56




Table of Contents

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

6. Goodwill and intangible asset:

The following table presents the carrying amourgaddwill, by reportable segment, for the periodsspnted:

Electronics Technology

Marketing Solutions Total
Carrying value at June 30, 20 $1,039,20¢ $363,26. $1,402,47
Additions 117,72( 208,06! 325,78!
Adjustments (16,91%) (5,087) (21,996
Foreign currency translatiol 1,77¢ 20,86% 22,64¢
Carrying value at June 28, 20 $1,141,79. $587,11. $1,728,90

The addition to goodwill in EM related primarily the acquisition of YEL Electronics Hong Kong, Ltd.
Azzurri Technology Ltd. and two small businesseguar@d during fiscal 2008 (see Note 2). The adjastinto
goodwill in EM related to Memec deferred tax valoatadjustments. The addition to goodwill in TSated
primarily to the acquisition of Acal plc Ltd.’s I$olutions division and the European Enterprisealstiucture
division of the Magirus Group (see Note 2) as wasltwo smaller acquisitions completed during fi&08. The
adjustments to TS goodwill related to adjustmentsertain Access acquired net assets which weoeded within
the one year purchase price allocation period.

As of June 28, 2008, the Company had a carryingevaf $43,700,000 in customer relationship intalegib
assets included in “other assets” on the conseliibalance sheet, and consisted of $55,400,000gima cost
value and accumulated amortization of $11,700,@00¢ch are being amortized over ten years. Intaegisiset
amortization expense was $6,767,000, $5,800,00054y160,000 for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, re$pelgt
Fiscal 2008 amortization expense included $1,22rr@0orded for estimated amortization of intangéssets
related to certain acquisitions for which the véilugs of intangible assets have not yet been caeble
Amortization expense for the next five years fdamgible assets identified for acquisitions congdeb date is
expected to be approximately $6,000,000 each year.

7. External financing
Short-term debt consists of the following:

June 28, June 30,

2008 2007
(Thousands)
Bank credit facilities $32,64¢ $51,53¢
Other debt due within one ye 11,15¢ 1,83:
Shor-term debt $43,80: $53,36

Bank credit facilities consist of various committaad uncommitted lines of credit with financialtihgtions
utilized primarily to support the working capit&quirements of foreign operations. The weightedayeinterest
rate on the bank credit facilities was 1.5% atehd of fiscal 2008 and 2007.

The Company has an accounts receivable secumtizptogram (the “Program”) with a group of finaricia
institutions that allows the Company to sell, ameolving basis, an undivided interest of up to850,000 in
eligible receivables while retaining a subordinatedrest in a portion of the receivables. The Papbgdoes not
qualify for sale treatment, as a result, any boimmg® under the Program are recorded as debt orotisolidated
balance sheet. The Program has a one year terraxpia¢s in August 2008, which has been renewecbomparabls
terms for another year. There were no amountsandstg under the Program at June 28, 2008 or Jon2087.
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Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 28, June 30,
2008 2007
(Thousands)

5.875% Notes due March 15, 20 $ 300,00 $ 300,00(
6.00% Notes due September 1, 2 250,00( 250,00(
6.625% Notes due September 15, 2 300,00t 300,00(
2% Convertible Senior Debentures due March 15, : 300,00( 300,00
Other lon¢-term debt 34,20 9,07:
Subtotal 1,184,20 1,159,07.
Discount on note (2,709 (3,087%)
Long-term deb $1,181,49  $1,155,99

During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, the Compamtered into a five-year $500,000,000 unsecwredlving
credit facility (the “Credit Agreement”) with a sglicate of banks which expires in September 2012ohmection
with the Credit Agreement, the Company terminateexisting unsecured $500,000,000 credit facftig “2005
Credit Facility”) which was to expire in OctoberD Under the Credit Agreement, the Company mascsélom
various interest rate options, currencies and ritgsir The Credit Agreement contains certain coneall of
which the Company was in compliance with as of RB1e2008. As of the end of fiscal 2008, there were
$19,689,000 in borrowings outstanding under thediCAgreement included in “other long-term debt'tive
preceding table. In addition, there were $24,26@ j60etters of credit issued under the Credit Agnent which
represent a utilization of the Credit Agreementagdty but are not recorded in the consolidatedrizaasheet as the
letters of credit are not debt. At June 30, 20B&r¢ were no borrowings outstanding under the ZD@8lit Facility
and $21,152,000 in letters of credit were issuedknthe 2005 Credit Facility.

During March 2007, the Company issued $300,00000@)875% Notes due March 15, 2014. The proceeds
from the offering, net of discount and underwritiegs, were $297,084,000, and were used to repayrs)
outstanding under the 2005 Credit Facility andRhagram. The borrowings under the 2005 Credit Fpahd the
Program were used to fund the acquisition of Acaesiscal 2007.

During October 2006, the Company redeemed alsd3t 4% Notes due February 15, 2008 (the3/a
% Notes”),of which $361,360,000 was outstanding. The Compeseygl the net proceeds amounting to $296,08!
from the issuance in September 2006 of $300,000p@i08ipal amount of 6.625% Notes due SeptembeRQ%6,
plus available liquidity, to repurchase thé/3 % Notes. In connection with the repurchase, the @om terminate
two interest rate swaps with a total notional ana@ir$200,000,000 that hedged a portion of thé 8% Notes.
Debt extinguishment costs incurred in fiscal 208aaesult of the redemption totaled $27,358,0@6tax,
$16,538,000 after tax, or $0.11 per share on aetilbasis, and consisted of $20,322,000 for a mdiae
redemption premium, $4,939,000 associated withvitteeinterest rate swap terminations, and $2,097t60@rite-off
certain deferred financing costs.

During November 2006, the Company repaid the reimgi$i143,675,000 of the 8.00% Notes due
November 15, 2006 (t*8.00% Notes”) on the maturity date.

In August 2005, the Company issued $250,000,0@008% Notes due September 1, 2015. The proceeubs fro
the offering, net of discount and underwriting fesere $246,483,000. The Company used these precpled cas
and cash equivalents, to fund the tender and repsecof $254,095,000 of the $400,000,000 8.00%d\thie
November 15, 2006 during the first quarter of fi2@06. As a result of the tender and repurchabesCompan
incurred debt extinguishment costs in the firstrtpreof fiscal 2006 of $11,665,000 pre-tax, $7,008), after tax, or
$0.05 per share on a diluted basis, relating pilyntr premiums and other transaction costs. Duthgsecond
quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company repurchaseadaiitional $2,230,000 of the 8.00% Notes.
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In June 2006, the Company repurchased $113,640f0b@ $475,000,000 of & 4% Notes and, in connection
with this repurchase, the Company terminated orteeinterest rate swaps with a notional amour16f0,000,000
that hedged a portion of the384% Notes. The termination of this swap and repurelishe related hedged notes
resulted in debt extinguishment costs of $10,91®@@-tax, $6,601,000 after tax and $0.04 per sbiar diluted
basis. As a result of the tender and total repaehin fiscal 2006 and the termination of interatd swaps, as
previously discussed, the Company incurred totht d&tinguishment costs of $22,585,000 pre-tax,&33000
after tax and $0.09 per share on a diluted basdtimg primarily to premiums and other transactiosts.

The $300,000,000 2% Convertible Senior Debentunes\arch 15, 2034 (the “Debentures”) are convestibl
into Avnet common stock at a rate of 29.5516 shafemmmon stock per $1,000 principal amount of &sbres.
The Debentures are only convertible under certatumstances, including if: (i) the closing pricktioe Companys
common stock reaches $45.68 per share (subjedfustment in certain circumstances) for a specifiedod of
time; (ii) the average trading price of the Debeesufalls below a certain percentage of the comwenglue per
Debenture for a specified period of time; (iii) tGempany calls the Debentures for redemption;\ragrtain
corporate transactions, as defined, occur. The @ommay redeem some or all of the Debentures fr aay time
on or after March 20, 2009 at the Debentures’gtithcipal amount plus accrued and unpaid intereatyy. Holders
of the Debentures may require the Company to psgeshia cash, all or a portion of the DebentureManch 15,
2009, 2014, 2019, 2024 and 2029, or upon a fundahemange, as defined, at the Debentures’ futigipial
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if anjpdnember 2004, the Company made an irrevocahtéiaido
satisfy the principal portion of the Debenturesésh and settle the remaining obligation with shafeecommon
stock if and when the Debentures are converted.

Aggregate debt maturities for fiscal 2009 throug@ii2and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2009 $ 43,80
2010 8,20¢
2011 2,092
2012 1,29(
2013 20,95:
Thereaftel 1,151,66!
Subtotal 1,228,01.
Discount on note (2,709
Total debt $1,225,30;

At June 28, 2008, the fair value, generally bagszhuguoted market prices, of the 5.875% Notes @dd 2vas
$289,485,000, the fair value of the 6.00% Notes 205 was $245,298,000, the fair value of the @62Nptes due
2016 was $294,231,000 and the fair value of theCvertible Senior Debentures due 2034 was $299)803
8. Accrued expenses and othe

Accrued expenses and other consist of the following

June 28, June 30,
2008 2007
(Thousands)
Payroll, commissions and related accrt $188,99! $181,48:
Income taxes (Note ¢ 83,86+ 157,75(
Other 169,68t 156,36¢

$442,541  $495,60:
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9. Income taxes

The Company adopted the provisions of Financialodoting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Ta>— an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 09N 48”) on July 1,
2007, the first day of fiscal 2008. FIN 48 clarffithe accounting for uncertainty in income taxesgaized in an
entity’s financial statements and prescribes thairapany use a more-likely-than-not recognitior$hiold based
upon the technical merits of the tax position takeexpected to be taken in a tax return. To therga tax position
exceeds the amount of tax benefit allowed to begeized pursuant to the provisions of FIN 48, thifedbnce is
recorded as a liability on the balance sheet (ametognized tax benefit” or “income tax contingefayntil such
time as the position either meets the criterias eettled due to statute expiration or effectieglement with the
taxing authority.

The adoption of FIN 48 resulted in no cumulativpuatinent to retained earnings. In addition, coesisivith
the provisions of FIN 48, the Company reclassi#8d,460,000 of income tax liabilities from curretdssification
in “accrued expenses and other” on the ConsolidBt¢dnce Sheet to long-term classification in “otloeg-term
liabilities.”

The total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefith adoption was $114,285,000, of which approteiga
$49,563,000 would favorably impact the effective tate if recognized, and the remaining balancelevoeverse
through either goodwill or deferred tax assetsadoordance with the Company’s accounting policgraed interest
and penalties, if any, related to unrecognizenefits are recorded as a component of tax exp@&hgepolicy dic
not change as a result of the adoption of FIN 4& Tompany had accrued interest expense and gsnaflti
$12,601,000, net of applicable state tax benefigfahe date of adoption of FIN 48. As of June ZH)8,
unrecognized tax benefits were $124,765,000, otwhpproximately $59,300,000, if recognized, wdakbrably
impact the effective tax rate. As of the end ofdis2008, the accrual for unrecognized tax benéfasided
$12,303,000 of interest and penalties.

The components of the provision for income taxesirdicated in the table below. The tax provision f
deferred income taxes results from temporary difiees arising principally from inventory valuatiaecounts
receivable valuation, net operating losses, cegeaanuals and depreciation, net of any changdsetodluation
allowance.

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1,
2008 2007 2006
(Thousands)
Current:
Federa $5335( $3499: $ 3,48:¢
State and loce 30,36! 10,68¢ 7,01¢
Foreign 19,01¢ 48,27: 48,93:
Total current taxe 102,72¢ 93,94¢ 59,43:
Deferred:
Federa 54,73¢ 49,56: 48,98¢
State and loce (9,699 3,26¢ 1,481
Foreign 62,107 46,77¢ 1,69¢
Total deferred taxe 107,14¢ 99,60¢ 52,16¢
Provision for income taxe $209,87: $193,55. $111,60(

The provision for income taxes noted above is cdeghbased upon the split of income before incomesta
from U.S. and foreign operations. U.S. income kefocome taxes was $352,854,000, $253,380,000 and
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$130,452,000 and foreign income before income twess$356,101,000, $333,239,000 and $185,695,0fiScal
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

A reconciliation between the federal statutoryrtabe and the effective tax rate is as follows:

Years Ended
June 28 June 30 July 1,

2008 2007 2006
Federal statutory ra: 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State and local income taxes, net of federal be 2.2 1.8 2.C
Foreign tax rates, including impact of valuatiolo@hnces (5.3 (5.0 (3.8
Change in contingency resen (3.5 0.6 1.€
Other, ne 1.2 0.3 0.5
Effective tax rate 29.6% 33.% 35.2%

(1) Fiscal 2008 included a benefit of 5.5% relatecatodudit settlement

Foreign tax rates generally consist of the impéthe difference between foreign and federal steijutates
applied to foreign income (losses) and also inclin@eimpact of valuation allowances against the gamy’s
otherwise realizable foreign loss carry-forwards.

The decrease in the fiscal 2008 effective tax oagr prior year is due to (i) certain statutory tate reduction:s
(i) a favorable audit settlement, offset by; (tlie recognition of transfer pricing exposures; émga change to
estimates for existing tax positions. The decréasiee fiscal 2007 effective tax rate over prioayes attributable tc
(i) the mix of pre-tax income towards the lowerstary tax rate jurisdictions; (ii) a similar dotlamount of net
contingency reserves applied against significamigjer pre-tax income; and (iii) the negative imgacreasing
prior year's effective tax rate related to the loaghe sale of an EM business for which no taxefiewas available.
In addition, in fiscal 2006, the Company recorddditional contingency reserves due to the recogmitif tax
exposures in the EMEA and Asia regions, partiaffget by the favorable settlement of a Europearitatiie
Company determines its valuation allowance throamglevaluation of relevant factors used to asseskkélihood
of recoverability of the Company’s deferred taxetss

The significant components of deferred tax assaddiabilities, included primarily in “other assét the
consolidated balance sheets, are as follows:

June 28, June 30,
2008 2007
(Thousands)
Deferred tax asset
Inventory valuatior $ 9100 $ 7,1
Accounts receivable valuatic 14,41¢ 24,017
Federal, state and foreign tax loss c-forwards 419,64 400,92:
Depreciation and amortization of property, pland aquipmen 6,79¢ 6,82t
Various accrued liabilities and ot 2,40t 43,49¢
452,36( 482,38:
Less— valuation allowanc: (344,039 (346,94)
108,32t 135,43:
Deferred tax liabilities — —
Net deferred tax asse $108,32¢ $ 135,43«
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As of June 28, 2008, the Company had foreign netaifmg loss carry-forwards of approximately
$1,148,972,000, approximately $99,627,000 of wiiate expiration dates ranging from fiscal 2009G22and thi
remaining $1,049,345,000 of which have no expiratate. Of the $99,627,000 of foreign net operadtisg
carryforwards, $20,618,000 will expire during fis2B09 and 2010, substantially all of which havialuation
allowances. The carrying value of the Company’sopetrating loss carry-forwards is dependent upen th
Company’s ability to generate sufficient futureahbe income in certain tax jurisdictions. In aduliti the Company
considers historic levels of income, expectatiams sk associated with estimates of future taxaisdeme and on-
going prudent and feasible tax planning strateigiessessing a tax valuation allowance.

At June 28, 2008 and June 30, 2007, accruals éonie tax contingencies (or accruals for unrecoghtiar
benefits) of $124,765,000 and $104,216,000, resmdyt are included in “accrued expenses and othed “other
long term liabilities” on the consolidated balarsteet. These contingency reserves relate to vaaumatters that
result from uncertainties in the application of gbex income tax regulations in the large numbeglobal tax
jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Thangfe to contingency reserves during fiscal 20@8irmearily due
to the recognition of transfer pricing exposureshange to estimates for existing tax positionsfamdrable audit
settlements.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending acthalance for unrecognized tax benefits is as ¥adlo

Balance as of June 30, 20 $104,21¢
Additions for balance sheet reclassification updopion of FIN 4¢& 10,06¢
Balance upon FIN 48 adoption at July 1, 2 114,28!
Additions for tax positions taken in prior period@ssluding interes 40,08!
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior peri (26,087
Additions for tax positions taken in current per 16,12
Reductions relating to settlements with taxing atitkes (30,167
Reduction related to the lapse of statute of litidtes (624)
Addition related to foreign currency translati 11,15¢
Balance as of June 28, 20 $124,76!

The evaluation of income tax positions requires agg@ment to estimate the ability of the Companyuiain
its position and estimate the final benefit to @@mpany. To the extent that these estimates deeflett the actual
outcome there could be a material impact on theaatated financial statements in the period inclitthe position
is settled, the statute of limitations expires ewrinformation becomes available as the impadhe$é¢ events are
recognized in the period in which they occur. Wifficult to estimate the period in which the ambof a tax
position will change as settlement may include awdstriative and legal proceedings whose timing tbenany
cannot control. The effects of settling tax posiiavith tax authorities and statute expirations signpificantly
impact the accrual for income tax contingencieghittithe next twelve months, management estiméatss t
approximately $47,000,000 of tax contingencies hallsettled primarily through agreement with theaathorities
for tax positions related to transfer pricing amdiration matters, items that are common to mulitnal companies.
The expected cash payment related to the settlenfiéimése contingencies is approximately $22,500,00
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The Company conducts business globally and consélgudies income tax returns in numerous juristins
including those listed in the following table. $talso routinely subject to audit in these androtbentries. The
Company is no longer subject to audit in its m@joisdictions for periods prior to fiscal year 199%e open years,
by major jurisdiction, are as follows:

United States (federal and stz 2004- 200¢
Germany 2000- 200¢
United Kingdom 2006- 200¢
Netherland 2004- 200¢
Belgium 1999- 200¢
Singapore 2001- 200¢
Taiwan 2003- 200¢
Hong Kong 2002- 200¢

10. Pension and retirement plans
Pension Plan

The Company’s noncontributory defined benefit pengilan (the “Plan”) covers substantially all doties
employees. Employees are eligible to participat&@Plan following the first year of service dyyiwhich they
worked at least 1,000 hours. The Plan providesxddfbenefits pursuant to a cash balance featuresiwha
participant accumulates a benefit based upon a&ptage of current salary, which varies with age, iaterest
credits. The Company uses June 30 as the measurdaterior determining pension expense and beollijations
for each fiscal year.

Not included in the tabulations and discussionsfthibow are pension plans of certain
non-U.S. subsidiaries, which are not material.

Implementation of SFAS 158

The FASB issued SFAS 15Bmployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod ®ther Postretirement
Plansin September 2006 which requires the Company togmize the funded status (defined as the difference
between the fair value of the plan assets andehefii obligation) of its defined benefit pensidarpin its
consolidated balance sheet, with a correspondijugtident to “accumulated other comprehensive incoitiee
Company'’s pension plan does not take into accounjégted salary increases; instead, it is a caktnba plan
whereby service costs are based solely on cureartsalary levels. Prior to SFAS 158, the Compacpnded the
accumulated benefit obligation which representgptsion liability for cash balance plans. UndeASHE58, the
Company will continue to record the accumulatedefieobligation for its cash balance plan.

Upon adoption, SFAS 158 requires an adjustmenat¢atimulated other comprehensive income” for the net
unrecognized actuarial losses, unrecognized peivice costs and unrecognized transition obligati@maining
from the initial adoption of SFAS 8Employers’ Accounting for PensiofSFAS 87”), which, pursuant to the
provisions of SFAS 87, were previously netted agfaime pension plans’ funded status in the conatdiibalance
sheet. Furthermore, amounts recognized in “accueulilather comprehensive income” will subsequengly b
recognized as net periodic pension cost in accarlaith the recognition and amortization provisiohSFAS 87.
The adoption of SFAS 158 had no effect on the Camiisaconsolidated financial statements for thedigear end
June 30, 2007, or for any prior period, and it wok affect operating results in future periods.
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The incremental effect of applying SFAS 158 ondbasolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2007 for the
Company’s pension plan is presented in the follgwable (in thousands):

Prepaid cost/(accrued liabilit
Intangible asset

Accumulated other comprehensive income (AC

Prior to SFAS 158 After
Adoption of Adoption Adoption of
SFAS 158 Adjustments SFAS 158
$ (21,02) $ —  $(21,02)
$ — 3 — 3 —
$ 53237 $ — $ 53,231

As a result of the adoption of SFAS 158, there m@ashange in the Company’s total liabilities orcétwolders’

equity.

The following tables outline changes in benefitigdions, plan assets and the funded status d?ldreas of

the end of fiscal 2008 and 2007:

June 28, June 30,
2008 2007
(Thousands)
Changes in benefit obligatior
Benefit obligations at beginning of ye $276,83t  $251,00(
Service cos 14,735 14,86:
Interest cos 16,76¢ 15,73:
Actuarial (gain) los: (14,216 8,49:
Benefits paic (14,985 (13,25)
Benefit obligations at end of ye $279,14.  $276,83t
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $255,81! $232,62
Actual return on plan asse (23,769 36,43¢
Benefits paic (14,985 (13,25)
Contributions 35,481 —
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $252,54° $255,81!
Information on funded status of plan and the amoeicgnized
Funded status of the pli $(26,599 $(21,02)
Unrecognized net actuarial lo 83,02¢ 53,23}
Unamortized prior service crec —
Prepaid pension cost recognized in the consolidadééghce shee $ 56,43: $ 32,21¢
Pre-tax additional minimum pension liability recognizedcomprehensive incon $ — 9 —

Included in “accumulated other comprehensive incomdune 28, 2008 is a pre-tax charge of $83,@X6¢
net actuarial losses which have not yet been rézedrin net periodic pension cost, of which $2,888,is expecte
to be recognized as a component of net periodiefitarost during fiscal 2009.

Weighted average assumptions used to calculatarétpresent values of benefit obligations aréolisws:

Discount rate

2008

2007

6.75% 6.25%
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Weighted average assumptions used to determirtgenefit costs are as follows:

2008 2007
Discount rate 6.25% 6.5(%
Expected return on plan ass 9.0(% 9.0(%

The Company bases its discount rate on a hypo#heiistfolio of bonds rated Aa by Moody's Investor
Services or AA by Standard & Poors. The bonds sadefor this determination are based upon the estichamour
and timing of services of the pension plan.

Components of net periodic pension costs durindasiethree years are as follows:

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1,
2008 2007 2006
(Thousands)

Service cos $14,737 $14,86: $15,16¢
Interest cos 16,76¢ 15,73 14,17:
Expected return on plan ass (23,33)) (20,497 (20,577
Recognized net actuarial la 3,09¢ 2,72 4,51¢
Amortization of prior service crec — (45) (321)
Net periodic pension co $11,26F $12,77¢ $12,95¢

The Company expects to make contributions to the Bf approximately $19,600,000 during fiscal 20Di9e
Company made contributions of $35,481,000 duriagdi 2008 and did not make contributions to the Elaing
fiscal 2007.

Benefit payments are expected to be paid to ppaiits as follows for the next five fiscal years #mel
aggregate for the five years thereafter (in thodsan

2009 $ 19,75t
2010 17,59(
2011 17,15¢
2012 18,09(
2013 20,74¢
2014 through 201 109,38t

The Plan’s assets are held in trust and were afldcas follows as of the June 30 measurement dafes¢al
2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Equity securitie: 7% 76%
Debt securitie: 23 24

The general investment objectives of the Plan@maximize returns through a diversified investmgortfolio
in order to earn annualized returns that meetdhg-term cost of funding the Plan’s pension oblaya while
maintaining reasonable and prudent levels of file target rate of return on Plan assets is cuyréft, which
represents the average rate of earnings expectdtedands invested or to be invested to proviaete benefits
included in the benefit obligation. This assumpti@s been determined by combining expectationsdagafuture
rates of return for the investment portfolio alamith the historical and expected distribution oféstments by asset
class and the historical rates of return for eddhase asset classes. The mix of equity secuigiggically
diversified to obtain a blend of domestic and in&ional investments covering multiple
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industries. The Plan assets do not include anyriabtevestments in Avnet common stock. The Plam&stments
in debt securities are also diversified across pattlic and private fixed income portfolios. Ther@many’s current
target allocation for the investment portfolio & £quity securities, both domestic and internaioto represent
approximately 76% of the portfolio with a policyrfminimum investment in equity securities of 60%lod portfolic
and a maximum of 92%. The majority of the remairpogtfolio of investments is to be invested in fixeacome
securities.

401(k) Plan
The Company has a 401(k) plan that covers subatlyrdil domestic employees. During fiscal 200802@&nd
2006, the expense relating to the 401(k) plan wetanaterial.

11. Long-term leases

The Company leases many of its operating facildies is also committed under lease agreements for
transportation and operating equipment. Rent ex@peharged to operations during the last three yisas follows:

Years Ended
June 28, June 30, July 1,

2008 2007 2006
(Thousands)
Buildings $53,377 $43,06: $46,43¢
Equipment 5,79¢ 5,42:% 5,71t

$59,17¢ $48,48¢ $52,15!

The aggregate future minimum operating lease comerits, principally for buildings, in 2009 through13
and thereafter (through 2018), are as followshousands):

2009 $ 71,28(
2010 58,02¢
2011 42 .68:
2012 33,65¢
2013 24,38¢
Thereaftel 29,40¢

Total $259,43¢

12. Stock-based compensation plan

Effective in the first quarter of fiscal 2006, tBempany adopted SFAS 123R which revised SFAS 183 an
supersedes APB No. 25. SFAS 123R requires all dbesed payments, including grants of employee stptibns,
be measured at fair value and expensed in the idatenl statement of operations over the servicogégenerally
the vesting period). Upon adoption, the Companysitiooned to SFAS 123R using the modified prospecti
application, whereby compensation cost is only gacxed in the consolidated statements of operatieginning
with the first period that SFAS 123R is effectivedahereafter. During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2066,&ompany
expensed $25,389,000, $24,250,000 and $18,096@&88kctively, for all stock-based compensation dsar

The fair value of options granted is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes modeldasghe
assumptions in the following table. The assumptiorihe expected term is based on evaluationsstbhcal and
expected future employee exercise behavior. Thefmee interest rate is based on the US Treasueg & the date
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of grant with maturity dates approximately equattte expected term at the grant date. The historatatility of
Avnet'’s stock is used as the basis for the votatdssumption.

Years Ended
June 28 June 30 July 1,

2008 2007 2006
Expected term (year: 6.0 6.C 6.C
Risk-free interest rat 4.6% 4.8% 4.1%
Weighted average volatilit 35.9% 40.1% 43.2%

Dividend yield — — —
At June 28, 2008, the Company had 9,489,729 slofigsmmon stock reserved for stock option and stock
incentive programs.
Stock plan

The Company has one stock compensation plan, @ 2fbck Compensation Plan (“2006 Plan”) which was
approved by the shareholders in fiscal 2007. T Zlan has a termination date of November 8, 201th
4,007,342 shares were available for grant at J8n2Q08.

Stock options

Option grants under the 2006 Plan have a contrblifieaf ten years, vest 25% on each anniversémhe gran
date, commencing with the first anniversary, araige for a minimum exercise price of 100% of faiarket value
at the date of grant. Pre-tax compensation expasseciated with stock options during fiscal 20@)2and 2006
were $6,155,000, $8,356,000 and $10,011,000, respkc

The following is a summary of the changes in ouditag options for fiscal 2008:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Life Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at June 30, 20 3,912,851 $ 19.5: 68 Month:
Granted 259,14t $ 34.3¢ 109 Month:
Exercisec (389,75) $ 20.3¢ 44 Month:
Forfeited or expirer (196,579 $ 24.9¢ 47 Month:
Outstanding at June 28, 20 3,585,67! $ 20.21 61 Month:  $ 36,28¢
Exercisable at June 28, 20 2,769,131 $ 19.01 52 Month:  § 36,28t

The weighted-average grant-date fair values ofksttions granted during fiscal 2008, 2007, and&2@@re
$14.90, $8.88, and $11.86, respectively. The tatahsic values of share options exercised dufiscal 2008, 200
and 2006 was $109,000, $524,000 and $684,000,ctsgg.
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The following is a summary of the changes in nostee stock options for the fiscal year ended J@&eQ@08:

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Non-vested stock options at June 30, 2 1,348,760 $ 9.17
Grantec 259,14t $ 14.9(
Vested (719,13) $ 6.91
Forfeited (72,23 $ 9.5C
Non-vested stock options at June 28, 2 816,54: $ 12.9¢

As of June 28, 2008, there was $10,577,000 of tote¢cognized compensation cost related to noredest
awards granted under the option plans, which igebgal to be recognized over a weighted-averagegefi
3.1 years. The total fair values of shares vesteihg fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $4,969,00(0C.,000 and
$10,689,000, respectively.

Cash received from option exercises during fis€88 2007 and 2006 totaled $5,111,000, $54,357a000
$30,879,000, respectively. The impact of these cashipts is included in “Other, net, financingietes” in the
accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows.

Incentive shares

Delivery of incentive shares, and the associatedpamsation expense, is spread equally over a fae-period
and is subject to the employee’s continued employrbg the Company. As of June 28, 2008, 1,035, 8es
previously awarded have not yet been deliveredi®ceompensation expense associated with thisgnogvas
$12,074,000, $8,231,000 and $4,586,000 for fiseaty 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The following is a summary of the changes in nostee incentive shares for the fiscal year endeé 28n

2008:
Weighted
Average
Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value
Non-vested incentive shares at June 30, 2 982,79 $ 19.3i
Granted 513,81 $ 34.3¢
Vested (387,15) $ 23.5(
Forfeited (74,310 $ 22.0¢
Non-vested incentive shares at June 28, 2 1,035,14¢ $ 25.0¢

As of June 28, 2008, there was $24,734,000 of tote¢cognized compensation cost related to noregest
incentive shares, which is expected to be recogrixer a weighted-average period of 2.6 years.tota fair
values of shares vested during fiscal 2008, 20@72806 were $9,097,000, $6,027,000 and $3,800,000,
respectively.

Performance shares

Beginning in fiscal 2006, eligible employees, irdihg Avnet’s executive officers, may receive a fwortof
their long-term equity-based incentive compensatwaugh the performance share program, which alifowthe
award of shares of stock based upon performancesdageria (“Performance Shares”). The PerforméBitares
will provide for the issuance to each grantee nfimber of shares of Avnet’'s common stock at theafradthree-
year period based upon the Com(’s achievement of performance goals establishetthdyCompensation
Committee of the Board of Directors for each thyear period. These performance goals are basedaifosre-
year cumulative increase in t
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Company'’s absolute economic profit, as definedr tive prior three-year period and the increaséénGompany’s
economic profit relative to the increase in therexoic profit of a peer group of companies. Durirsgdl 2008,
2007 and 2006, the Company granted 170,630, 23&783.94,530 performance shares, respectivelye tonarde:
to participants in the Performance Share progrdwhich 30,805 have been forfeited. The actual amof
Performance Shares issued at the end of the tlagepgriod is determined based upon the levellieaement of
the defined performance goals and can range fronio(200% of the initial award. The Company antitgsassuin
328,881 shares in the first quarter of fiscal 2689ed upon the goals achieved at the end of th& R8Gormance
Share plan three-year period which ended June®. During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company
recognized pre-tax compensation expense assoueidttethe Performance Shares of $6,380,000, $7,025a0d
$2,559,000.

Outside director stock bonus plan

Non-employee directors are awarded shares eqaéfixed dollar amount of Avnet common stock upoairth
re-election each year, as part of their directonpensation package. Directors may elect to redbige
compensation in the form of common stock underQbeside Director Stock Bonus Plan or they may dlectefer
their compensation to be paid in common stocklatea date. During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, tpre-
compensation cost associated with the outsidetdirstock bonus plan was $780,000, $638,000 an8,$20,
respectively.

Employee stock purchase plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase PI&PPE under the terms of which eligible employekes o
the Company are offered options to purchase sludirdgnet common stock at a price equal to 95% efftir
market value on the last day of each monthly dffgperiod. Based on the terms of the ESPP, Avnattisequired
to record expense in the consolidated statementparhtions related to the ESPP. During the fiadft ¢f fiscal
2006, the ESPP terms offered a price equal to 85%tedair market value; as a result, the Compamprded
compensation expense associated with the ESPP yvhoveeich amounts were not material.

The Company has a policy of repurchasing sharée@open market to satisfy shares purchased uhder t
ESPP, and expects future repurchases during 2864 to be similar to the number of shares repwethauring
fiscal 2008, based on current estimates of pagimp in the program. During fiscal 2008, 2007 2006, there
were 70,553, 96,013 and 175,454 shares, respggtofetommon stock issued under the ESPP program.

13. Contingent liabilities

From time to time, the Company may become liabld wéspect to pending and threatened litigatiokedaand
environmental and other matters. The Company hass tesignated a potentially responsible party etdewome
aware of other potential claims against it in cartio& with environmental clean-ups at several sBased upon the
information known to date, the Company believes ithaas appropriately reserved for its share efdbsts of the
clean-ups and it is not anticipated that any cgeint matters will have a material adverse impadherCompany’s
financial condition, liquidity or results of opei@ts.
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14. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed based ondlyhted average number of common shares outstaadithg
excludes any potential dilution. Diluted earnings phare reflect potential dilution from the exsecor conversion
of securities into common stock.

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1,
2008 2007 2006
(Thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
Net income for basic and diluted earnings per s $499,08: $393,06° $204,54°
Denominator
Weighted average common shares for basic earngmgshare 150,25( 148,03. 145,94.
Net effect of dilutive stock options and restricetdck award: 1,60¢ 1,19 1,20¢
Net effect of 2% Convertible Debentures due Marsh2D34 562 384 —
Weighted average common shares for diluted earmgagshare 152,42( 149,61 147,15(
Basic earnings per she $ 332 $ 268 $ 1.4C
Diluted earnings per sha $ 327 $ 26z $ 1.3¢

Shares issuable upon conversion of the 2% Conlei@ibbentures are excluded from the computation of
earnings per share for fiscal 2006 as a resuli@fXompany’s election to satisfy the principal jwortof the
Debentures, if converted, in cash (see Note 7pmhination with the fact that the average stockepfor fiscal 200
was below the conversion price per share of $3%84res issuable for the conversion premium of the
2% Convertible Debentures are included in the cdatmn of earnings per diluted shares for fiscad@@nd 2007
because the average stock price was above thersiverice per share of $33.84. The number ofigidushares
for the conversion premium was calculated in acance with EITF 04-8The Effect of Contingently Convertible
Instruments on Diluted Earnings per She

The effects of certain stock options and restrictedk awards are also excluded from the deteriomat the
weighted average common shares for diluted earmiegshare in each of the periods presented a=fféets were
antidilutive or the exercise price for the outstagdptions exceeded the average market pricehéoCompany’s
common stock. Accordingly, in fiscal 2008, 2007 &@06, the effects of approximately 12,000, 89,800
2,549,000 shares, respectively, related to stotkmpare excluded from the computation aboveyfalthich relate
to options for which exercise prices were gredtantthe average market price of the Compaoegmmon stock (s¢
Note 12 for options outstanding and weighted avergrcise prices
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15. Additional cash flow information
Other non-cash and reconciling items consist ofdHewing:

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1,
2008 2007 2006
(Thousands)

Provision for doubtful accoun $12,31f $17,38¢ $30,73:
Periodic pension costs (Note 1 11,26¢ 12,77¢ 12,95¢
Non-cash restructuring and other charges (Note 71C 1,40¢ 15,30¢
Other, ne (98) (827) 1,37:
Total $24,19: $30,74¢  $60,37¢

Interest and income taxes paid during the lasetlisars were as follows:

Years Ended
June 28, June 30, July 1,

2008 2007 2006
(Thousands)
Interest $ 71,54¢ $82,62: $95,29¢
Income taxe: $170,76« $67,57¢ $35,72¢

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2008 included amisurecorded through comprehensive income and,ftirere
are not included in the consolidated statemengashdlows. Fiscal 2008 included an adjustment ¢oeiase pension
liabilities (including non-US pension liabilitiesf $27,783,000 which was recorded net of relatddrded tax
benefit of $10,901,000 in other comprehensive inegsee Notes 4 and 10). Other non-cash activiidaded
assumed debt of $46,887,000 and assumed liabititi$$40,111,000 as a result of the acquisitiomapleted in
fiscal 2008 (see Note 2).

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2007 resulting frolne acquisition of Access (see Note 2) consisted o
$344,132,000 of assumed liabilities. Other non-@dlhvities included amounts recorded through cahensive
income and, therefore, are not included in the clidtested statement of cash flows. Fiscal 2007 idetlan
adjustment to reduce pension liabilities (includiman-US pension liabilities) of $10,720,000 which wasaled ne
of related deferred tax benefit of $4,181,000 imeotcomprehensive income (see Notes 4 and 10).

Non-cash activity during fiscal 2006 that was ailesf the Memec acquisition (see Note 2) consisted
$418,205,000 of common stock issued as part ofeheideration, $447,499,000 of liabilities assuraed
$27,343,000 of debt assumed. Other non-cash édesivitcluded amounts recorded through comprehefisboene
and, therefore, are not included in the consolitlatatement of cash flows. Fiscal 2006 includeevansal of a
portion of additional minimum pension liabilitiesm¢luding non-US pension liabilities) of $32,97900@hich was
recorded net of related deferred tax benefit of, 833,000 in other comprehensive income (see No#sl410), and
the exercise of a facility lease purchase optioaugh the assumption of debt in the amount of $3EH0.

16. Segment information

Electronics Marketing and Technology Solutionstagoverall segments upon which management primaril
evaluates the operations of the Company and updchwhanagement bases its operating decisions. fidrere¢he
segment data that follows reflects these two se¢snen

EM markets and sells semiconductors and intercdnpeassive and electromechanical devices. EM msuidmed
sells its products and services to a diverse custdimse serving many end-markets including autamoti
communications, computer hardware and peripherdidtrial and manufacturing, medical equipmentitamyf and
aerospace. EM also offers an array of value-addedces that help customers evaluate, design-irpamclre
electronic components throughout the lifecyclehiit technology products and systems, includingpluphain
management, engineering design, inventory replemast systems, connector and cable assembly and
semiconductor programming.
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TS markets and sells mid- to high-end servers, statage, software, and the services required pdeiment
these products and solutions to the value-addedleeshannel. TS also focuses on the worldwidgioai
equipment manufacturers (“OEM”) market for compgttachnology, system integrators and non-PC OElds th
require embedded systems and solutions includiggearing, product prototyping, integration andesthalue-
added services.

Years Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1,
2008 2007 2006
(Millions)
Sales:
Electronics Marketing $10,326.8f $ 9,679.6 $ 9,262.
Technology Solutions(2 7,625.¢ 6,001.: 4,991.:

$17,952.  $15,681..  $14,253.

Operating income (loss

Electronics Marketin $ 564< $ 529¢ $ 4191
Technology Solution 261.( 232.2 165.%
Corporate (76.1) (76.9) (81.8)
749.% 685.7 503.(

Restructuring, integration and other charges (N@e (38.9) (7.4 (69.9)

$ 7104 $ 67871 $ 4331

Assets:

Electronics Marketin $ 5,140.8 $ 4,604 $ 4,618
Technology Solution 2,785.: 2,361. 1,403.°
Corporate 274.5 389.2 193.:

$ 8,200.. $ 7,355.0 $ 6,215

Capital expenditure:

Electronics Marketing $ 464 $ 42¢ $  36.c
Technology Solution 28.2 6.2 4.C
Corporate 15.1 9.7 11.5

$ 897 §$ 58¢& $ 51t

Depreciation & amortization expens

Electronics Marketin $ 241 $ 27¢ $ 29:c
Technology Solution 13.C 11.1 9.8
Corporate 22.1 14.¢ 27.4

$ 592 $ 53¢& $ 66F

Sales, by geographic area, are as follc

Americas(2) $ 8578t $7,826.0 $ 7,223.¢
EMEA(3) 5,958.¢ 4,885." 4,374.;
Asia/Pacific(4) 3,415. 2,969.: 2,655.¢

$17,952. $15,681.. $14,253.

Property, Plant and Equipment, net, by geograptea:

Americas(5) $ 148.¢ $ 112 $ 102«
EMEA(6) 64.¢ 55.2 46.F
Asia/Pacific 13.4 115 10.5

$ 227z $ 1795 $§ 159«
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(1) As discussed in Note 1, the Company reviewed ithateof recording revenue related to the salesippler
service contracts and determined that such salesaw be classified on a net revenue basis rathean on a
gross basis beginning the third quarter of fis€72

(2) Included in sales for fiscal years 2008, 2007 ab@b6Xor the Americas region are $7.8 billion, $@iion and
$6.4 billion, respectively, of sales related to thated States

(3) Included in sales for fiscal years 2008, 2007 ab@b6Xor the EMEA region are $2.2 billion, $1.8 tufi and
$1.6 billion, respectively, of sales related to @any.

(4) Included in sales for fiscal year 2008 for the ARBaific region are $1.0 billion, $945 million aB895 million
of sales related to Taiwan, Hong Kong and Singapespectively. Included in sales for fiscal ye@0?2 for the
Asia/Pacific region are $864 million, $797 milliand $760 million of sales related to Taiwan, Horanl and
Singapore, respectively. Included in sales fordigear 2006 for the Asia/Pacific region are $688ion,
$850 million and $606 million of sales related @iwan, Hong Kong and Singapore, respectiv

(5) Property, plant and equipment, net, for the Amariegion as of the end of fiscal 2008, 2007 and206ludes
$145.4 million, $110.0 million and $93.3 millioregpectively, related to the United Sta

(6) Property, plant and equipment, net, for the EMEgiar as of the end of fiscal 2008, 2007 and 20@tudes
$31.8 million, $26.8 million and $25.9 million, pectively, related to Germany and $16.8 million3 #1million
and $13.5 million, respectively, related to Belgit

The Company manages its business based upon thetingeesults of its two operating groups before
restructuring and other charges (see Note 17)stalf2008, 2007 and 2006, presented above, appatsi
unallocated pre-tax restructuring, integration atfter items related to EM and TS, respectively engdrarges of
$12,183,000 and $17,787,000 in fiscal 2008, a lienif$5,201,000) and charges of $11,522,000s04i 2007, ar
$53,456,000 and $9,529,000 in fiscal 2006. The neimg restructuring, integration and other item&ach year
relate to corporate activities.

17. Restructuring, integration and other charges
Fiscal 2008

During fiscal 2008, the Company incurred restruotrintegration and other charges totaling $38,8d2 pre-
tax, $31,469,000 after tax and $0.21 per sharediluged basis related to cost reductions requiogdhprove the
performance at certain business units and integratsts associated with recently acquired busisess addition,
the Company recorded reversals of excess reseglated to prior year restructuring activity andareled charges
for an indemnification payment related to a prieayacquisition and costs associated with the esasgent of
existing environmental matters. A summary of thes&rges is presented in the following table:

Year Ended

June 28, 200

(Thousands)

Restructuring charge $ 23,28t
Integration cost 7,38¢
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring rese (709
Sut-total 29,97(
Indemnification paymer 6,00t
Environmental cost 2,96
Total restructuring, integration and other chat $ 38,94.
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The restructuring charges related primarily to sawee and facility exit costs. The integration sostorded
during fiscal 2008 included professional fees,lfigcmoving costs, travel, meeting, marketing anghenunication
costs that were incrementally incurred as a reguhtie integration efforts of the recently acquiteginesses (see
Note 2). The total of the restructuring charges iategration costs, net of reversals, amounted®&% 0,000 pi-
tax, $21,938,000 after tax and $0.15 per sharediluged basis. In addition, the Company recorde®®5,000 pre-
tax, $7,718,000 after tax and $0.05 per sharedituted basis related to the settlement of an ind&oation of a
former executive of an acquired company, which n@sax deductible. Finally, the Company recordeditonal
environmental costs associated with the reassesshexisting environmental matters which amourited
$2,967,000 pre-tax, $1,813,000 after tax and $pefishare on a diluted basis.

The restructuring charges and activity relatecdhéodost reductions are presented in the followaiet

Severanci Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Fiscal 2008 pi-tax charge: $18,45: $ 3,60z $1,231 $23,28¢
Amounts utilizec (8,155 (867) (10§¢) (9,124
Other, principally foreign currency translati 17¢ 92 7 27¢

Balance at June 28, 20 $10,47° $ 2,83° $1,13(  $14,44(

The total amounts utilized during the fiscal yeer presented in the preceding table, consiste8,418,000 in
cash payments and $710,000 for the non-cash woitasl of assets. As of June 28, 2008, managemeatexihe
majority of the remaining severance reserves totitieed in fiscal 2009, the remaining facility éxiost reserves to
be utilized by the end of fiscal 2013 and othert@miual obligations to be utilized by the endis€#l 2010.

Severance charges related to personnel reductiangep 350 employees in administrative, finance salés
functions in connection with the cost reductionpliemented during the second half of the fiscal yBarsonnel
reductions consisted of 100 employees in all thegéons of EM and over 250 in the Americas and EMEgions
of TS. The facility exit charges related to fivdicd facilities where facilities have been vacatetlich included twt
facilities in the EM EMEA region, two in the TS EMEegion and one in the TS Asia region. These itgaéixit
charges consisted of reserves for remaining léalsities and the write-down of leasehold improwents and other
fixed assets. Other charges incurred included aottal obligations with no on-going benefit to empany.

Fiscal 2007

During the second half of fiscal 2007, the Compaatyrred certain restructuring, integration andeotitems
primarily as a result of cost-reduction initiativiesall three regions and the acquisition of Acomsecember 31,
2006 (see Note 2). The Company established andwaggpplans for cost reduction initiatives acrogs@ompany
and approved plans to integrate the acquired Admesisess into Avnet’s existing TS operations, Whi@as
completed as of the end of fiscal 2007. The follggviable summarizes the activity in these reseceeunts during

fiscal 2008:
Severanct Facility
Reserves Exit Costs Other Total
(Thousands)

Balance at June 30, 20 6,65¢ 827 392 7,87¢
Amounts utilizec (6,247 (628) (221) (7,096
Adjustments (339 — (19%) (539
Other, principally foreign currency translati 27¢ — 27 30€

Balance at June 28, 20 $ 346 $ 19¢ $ 4 $§ 54c¢
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During fiscal 2007, the Company recorded restrircgucharges of $13,626,000 and also recorded in
“restructuring, integration and other charges” Acmtegration costs of $7,331,000, the write-dofv$i661,000
related to an Avnet-owned building in EMEA, and theersal of $1,739,000 related primarily to excasgerance
and lease reserves, certain of which were prewaesthblished through “restructuring, integratiowl ather
charges” in prior fiscal periods (see further d&sians in this Note 17). Partially offsetting thebarges was a pre-
tax benefit of $12,526,000 which resulted from fdneorable outcome of a contingent liability acqdiie connectio
with an acquisition completed in a prior year. Tin@act of both the restructuring, integration atitko charges,
including the exit-related charges in the tablevahand the acquisition related benefit recordathdifiscal 2007
was $7,353,000 pre-tax, $5,289,000 after tax an@i3y0er share on a diluted basis.

Severance charges related to Avnet personnel iedsaif 96 employees in all three regions of EM and
42 employees in TS Americas and EMEA (a total & &Bployees) in administrative, finance and salestfons
associated with the cost reduction initiatives iempénted during the third and fourth quarter ofdiR007 as part of
the Company’s continuing focus on operational &fficy and Avnet employees who were deemed reduradaat
result of the Access integration. The facility ectitarges related to vacated Avnet facilities inAneericas and
Japan. Other charges consisted primarily of ITteeland other asset write-downs and other corteattination
costs. Included in the asset write-downs were Agpéttvare in the Americas that was made redundaatrasult of
the acquisition, Avnet system hardware in EMEA thias replaced with higher capacity hardware to leand
increased capacity due to the addition of Accesd the write-down of certain capitalized constroictcosts
abandoned as a result of the acquisition. Othengelsancurred included contractual obligationsteglao abandon:
activities, the write-down of an Avnet-owned buildiin EMEA and Access integration costs. The waidevn of the
building was based on management’s estimate afuhent market value and possible selling priceé ofiselling
costs, for the property. The integration coststeeldo incremental salary costs, primarily of Accpsrsonnel, who
were retained following the close of the acquisitimlely to assist in the integration of Acces3 systems,
administrative and logistics operations into thosAvnet. These personnel had no other meaningfytd-day
operational responsibilities outside of the intéigraefforts. Also included in integration costg @ertain
professional fees, travel, meeting, marketing andraunication costs that were incrementally incuselely relate
to the Access integration efforts.

During fiscal 2008, amounts utilized as presentetthé preceding table consisted of all cash paysnent
Adjustments during fiscal 2008 related to excesesmce and other reserves. As of June 28, 2008agement
expects the majority of the remaining reservesetatilized by the end of fiscal 2009.

Fiscal 2006

During fiscal 2006, the Company incurred certastmecturing, integration and other charges as altresthe
acquisition of Memec on July 5, 2005 and its subeatjintegration into Avnet’s existing operatiossd Note 2). In
addition, the Company incurred restructuring aribotharges primarily relating to actions taketofging the
divestitures of certain TS business lines in theefinas region in the second half of fiscal 2008tade cost
reduction actions taken by TS in the EMEA regiod ather items during fiscal 2006.

The restructuring, integration and other chargeanmed during fiscal 2006 totaled $69,960,000 jpre-t
($60,983,000 included in “restructuring, integratand other charges” and $8,977,000 recorded ist ‘@osales’for
the write-down of inventory as a result of the Camygs decision to terminate certain supplier refahips in
connection with the integration of Memec) and $79,800 after-tax, or $0.34 per share on a dilutesish The pre-
tax charge of $60,983,000 includes $21,894,000/femec integration related costs (primarily incretaésalary
and other costs), $22,284,000 for severance cd$6;352,000 in EM resulting primarily from the Metne
integration and $5,932,000 for the reduction ofaiarTS personnel), $9,085,000 of facility exit 502,575,000 il
EM and $6,510,000 in TS), which included $2,671,00Bnpairment charges related to two owned buanaévne
buildings, $2,426,000 for the write-down of certaapitalized IT-related initiatives, primarily ing Americas, and
$6,591,000 for other charges. During fiscal 2086, Eompany also recorded a reversal of excess
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reserves amounting to $1,297,000 related priméwilestructuring charges recorded in prior fiseng in TS
EMEA.

The following table summarizes the activity in teserve accounts during fiscal 2008:

Memec Other

Restructuring Charges FY 200¢€ FY 200€ Total

(Thousands)

Balance at June 30, 20 $ 637 $2,11¢ $2,75C
Amounts utilizec (337) (967) (1,309
Adjustments (16¢) (401 (569)
Other, principally foreign currency translati (87) 47 (40)

Balance at June 28, 20 $ 45 $ 794 $ 83¢

During fiscal 2008, amounts utilized consisted df3®4,000 in cash payments and $569,000 in adjuggme
related primarily to severance and lease resememdd excessive and, therefore, reversed. As ef 282008, the
remaining Memec FY 2006 reserves related to fgaikit costs which management expects to utilizéidoal 2010
The remaining Other FY 2006 reserves related tititiaexit costs which management expects to il fiscal
2013.

18. Summary of quarterly results (unaudited):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year(a)
(Millions, except per share amounts)

2008(b)

Sales $4,098." $4,753.0 $4,421.¢ $4,679.. $17,952.
Gross profit 526.¢ 596.7 578. 611.¢ 2,313.°
Net income 105.5 1422 107.2 144.1 499.1
Diluted earnings per sha 0.6¢ 0.9z 0.71 0.9t 3.27
2007(c)

Sales $3,648..  $3,891.. $3,904.0 $4,237.. $15,681.
Gross profit 468.: 493.¢ 534.¢ 551.¢ 2,048.¢
Net income 64.1 99.1 105.2 124.; 393.1
Diluted earnings per sha 0.44 0.67 0.7¢C 0.81 2.63

(&) Quarters may not add to the year due to rounc

(b) Second quarter results include a gain on dadssets of $7.5 million pre-tax, $6.3 million aftax and $0.04
per share on a diluted basis related to $3.0 millibcontingent purchase price proceeds in conmeetith a
prior sale of a business and $4.5 million gain @le f a building which was not taxable. Resultstiie third
quarter include restructuring, integration and otiferges of $10.9 million pre-tax, $7.5 millioneaftax and
$0.05 per share on a diluted basis. Results fofoilmth quarter include restructuring, integratard other
charges of $19.1 million pre-tax, $14.4 millioneaftax and $0.10 per share on a diluted basis, an
indemnification settlement amounting to $6.0 millipre-tax, $7.7 million after tax and $0.05 pershan a
diluted basis paid to a former executive of an aegucompany, environmental costs of $3.0 millioe-fax,
$1.8 million after tax and $0.01 per share on atédd basis associated with long outstanding enmigortal
matters, the gain on sale of the Company’s investineCalence LLC in the fourth quarter amountiag t
$42.4 million pr-tax, $25.9 million after tax and $0.17 per sharadalluted basis and an income tax
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benefit of $13.9 million and $0.09 per share ornl@el basis from the settlement of a tax audit adjdistment
to tax contingencies. The total impact of all ttesris discussed above on the twelve months ended28)n
2008 was $11.0 million p-tax gain, $14.7 million after tax gain and $0.09 sieare on a diluted bas

First quarter results include debt extinguishtremsts amounting to $27.4 million pre-tax, $1@i8ion after
tax and $0.11 per share. Results for the thirdtquarclude the impact of restructuring and intéigracharges
of $8.5 million pre-tax, $6.0 million after tax af0.04 per share on a diluted basis. Results ithihe quarter
also include a gain on sale of business lines df 88llion pretax, $1.8 million after tax, and $0.01 per shar
a diluted basis. Results for the fourth quartelude restructuring and integration charges whichevegfset by
a prior year acquisition-related pre-tax benefi$d2.5 million. The combined impact on the fourtlager for
these items amounted to a benefit of $1.2 millieax, $0.7 million after tax and less than $Qet share on
a diluted basis. The total impact of these chaogethe twelve months ended June 30, 2007 was $3illiGn
pre-tax, $20.0 million after tax and $0.13 per sharadluted basis
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended June 28, 2008, June 30, 2007 and July?D06

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance al Charged tc Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and Other Accounts — Deductions — End of
Description of Period  Expenses Describe Describe Period
(Thousands)
Fiscal 2008
Allowance for doubtful accoun $102,12: $ 12,31¢ $ 1,35)a) $ (39,09)(b) $ 76,69(
Valuation allowance on foreign tax lo
carryforwards (Note ¢ 346,94 14,46 — (17,37¢)(c) 344,03
FY04 Restructuring reservi 3,571 — — (2,000(d) 2,57](d)
Fiscal 2007
Allowance for doubtful accoun 88,98 17,38¢ 23,31(a) (27,56%)(b) 102,12:
Valuation allowance on foreign tax lo
carryforwards (Note ¢ 270,74! 7,20t 100,61¢e) (31,62)(f) 346,94
FY04 Restructuring reservi 6,69¢ — — (3,12%)(d) 3,571
Fiscal 2006
Allowance for doubtful accoun 85,07¢  30,73: 11,50%(a) (38,33¢(b)  88,98:
Valuation allowance on foreign tax lo
carryforwards (Note ¢ 191,98 1,17C 77,5949) — 270,74!
FY04 Restructuring reservi 12,35¢ — — (5,660(d) 6,69¢

(&) Includes allowance for doubtful accounts as a tefidcquisitions (see Note :
(b) Uncollectible accounts written of
(c) Includes the impact of deferred tax rate chantes translation impact of changes in foreigmeney exchange

rates, the release of valuation allowance on ojper#dx loss carryforwards recorded to goodwill &mel releas
of valuation allowance against the associated teddax benefit as it was determined the operatirdoss
carryforwards cannot be utilize

(d) Deductions for restructuring related activitiesluded cash payments of $1.3 million, $2.7 miiland

$5.3 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respety. In addition to the translation impact of dges in
foreign currency exchange rates, deductions atdaded adjustments to release reserves deemedsesxes
$0.2 million, $0.7 million, and $0.5 million in fial 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Activityoassted witr
fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 restructuring resersgsasented in Note 1

(e) Includes a valuation allowance established againigferred tax asset recognized in fiscal 2!

(f)

Includes the release of valuation allowancesireg operating tax loss carryforwards which wesaized in
fiscal 2007.

(9) Includes certain valuation allowances acquae@ result of the Memec acquisition (see Notend)aalditional

valuation allowances associated with legal engtyrganizations of certain foreign operatic
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

101

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Comp@ncorporated herein by reference to the Company’
Current Report oForm &K dated February 12, 2001, Exhibit 3
By-laws of the Company, effective August 10, 20ic¢rporated herein by reference to the Company’s
Current Report oForm &K dated August 15, 2007 Exhibit 3..
Indenture dated as of October 1, 2000, betweeg@timepany and Bank One Trust Company, N.A., as
Trustee, providing for the issuance of Debt Se@giih one or more series. (incorporated herein by
reference to the Compa’'s Current Report oForm &K dated October 12, 2000, Exhibit 4.
Officers’ Certificate dated February 4, 2003, pding for the Notes, including (a) the form of thetisis,
and (b) the Pricing Agreement. (incorporated hebgimeference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated January 31, 2003, Exhibit 4.
Indenture dated as of March 5, 2004, by and betwseCompany and JP Morgan Trust Company,
National Association. (incorporated herein by refere to the Compa’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated March 8, 2004, Exhibit 4.:
Officers’ Certificate dated March 5, 2004, establishing grens of the 2% Convertible Senior Debenti
due 2034. (incorporated herein by reference t&Cti@pany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 8, 2004, Exhibit 4.2
Officers’ Certificate dated August 19, 2005, estibihg the terms of the 6.00% Notes due 2015.
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 19, 2005,
Exhibit 4.2).
Officers’ Certificate dated September 12, 2006d#hing the terms of the 6.625% Notes due 2016.
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 12,
2006, Exhibit 4.2)
Officers’ Certificate dated March 7, 2007, estdiilig the terms of the 5 7/8% Notes due 2014
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated March 7, 2007,
Exhibit 4.2).
Note: The total amount of securities authorizedaurahy other instrument that defines the right
holders of the Company’s long-term debt does noeed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Therefoesgtinstruments are not required to be filed ag@sho
this Report. The Company agrees to furnish copissich instruments to the Commission upon req

Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangement

Employment Agreement dated June 29, 1998 betwee@dmpany and David R. Birk (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repofform 8-K dated September 18, 1998,

Exhibit 99.3).

Employment Agreement dated June 29, 1998 betwee@dmpany and Raymond Sadowski
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 18,
1998, Exhibit 99.4)

Employment Agreement dated May 1, 2000 betweeCtdmpany and Richard Hamada (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repofform 8-K dated September 26, 2002,

Exhibit 10B).

Employment Agreement dated June 29, 2002 betwee@dmpany and Roy Vallee (incorporated herein
by reference to the Compé’s Current Report oForm ¢-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10
Change of Control Agreement dated as of March Q12#tween the Company and David R. Birk
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated May 14, 2001,
Exhibit 99D).
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10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
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Exhibit
Change of Control Agreement dated as of March Q13#etween the Company and Ray Sadowski
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated May 14, 2001,
Exhibit 99H).
Change of Control Agreement dated September 223 Béfiveen the Company and Richard Hamada
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@Qyiarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated November 14,
2003, Exhibit 10)
Employment Agreement dated July 1, 2004 betweeCtmpany and Steven C. Church (incorporated
herein by reference to the Comp’s Quarterly Report oForm 1(-Q dated May 8, 2006, Exhibit 10.Z
Change of Control Agreement dated July 1, 2004 betwthe Company and Steven C. Church
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yiarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated May 8, 2006,
Exhibit 10.3).
Change of Control Agreement dated as of March Q12#:tween the Company and Harley Feldberg
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated September 8,
2004, Exhibit 10.1)
Employment Agreement dated July 4, 2004 betweelCtmpany and Harley Feldberg (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Repo Form 10-Q dated November 10, 2004,
Exhibit 10.1).
Employment Agreement dated as of July 11, 2005 éetvthe Company and Stephen R. Phillips
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated August 29, 2007,
Exhibit 10.1).
Change of Control Agreement dated as of Decemh20d6 between the Company and Stephen R.
Phillips (incorporated herein by reference to tloenpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
August 29, 2007, Exhibit 10.2
Employment Agreement dated as of March 5, 2007 éetmthe Company and John Paget (incorporated
herein by reference to the Comp’s Current Report oForm &K dated August 29, 2007, Exhibit 10.
Avnet 1988 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimdierence to the ComparsyRegistration Stateme
onForm £-8, RegistratiorNo. 3:-29475,Exhibit 4-B).
Avnet 1990 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimdference to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992, Exhibi)1
Avnet 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated hergimdference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated February 12, 1996, Exhibit 1
Avnet 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan (incorpodaterein by reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement olForm $-8, RegistratiorNo. 33:-17271,Exhibit 99).
Amended and Restated Avnet 1997 Stock Option Merporated herein by reference to the
Compan’s Current Report oForm ¢-K dated August 29, 2006, Exhibit 10.
1994 Avnet Incentive Stock Program (incorporatetimeby reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement olForm -8, RegistratiorNo. 33:-00129,Exhibit 99).
Stock Bonus Plan for Outside Directors (incorpatdierein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated September 23, 1997, Exhibit 99
Amendment to Stock Bonus Plan for Outside Directiat®d November 8, 2002. Directors (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Repoform 8-K dated September 15, 2003
Exhibit 10G).
Retirement Plan for Outside Directors of Avnet,.Jrffective July 1, 1993 (incorporated herein by
reference to the Company’s Annual Report on ForrKT0r the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992,
Exhibit 10i).
Amended and Restated Avnet, Inc. Deferred CompiamsBtan for Outside Directors (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Registratiatetent on Form S-8, Registration
No. 33:-112062 Exhibit 10.1).
Avnet 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by refiee to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated August 29, 2006 Exhibit 10..
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10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

Exhibit

Avnet, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan (incorporatestein by reference to the CompasProxy Stateme
dated October 7, 2002
Amended and Restated Employee Stock PurchaseiRtamporated herein by reference to the
Compan’s Proxy Statement dated October 1, 20
Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation P

(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agreen

(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agreememtrfor-employee directc

(c) Form of incentive stock option agreem

(d) Form of performance stock unit term st
(incorporated by reference to the Company’s CurRaygort on Form 8-K dated August 29, 2006,
Exhibit 10.3).
Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation Plan (incorfeatdy reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement
dated October 10, 2006, Appendix
Avnet, Inc. 2006 Stock Compensation P

(a) Form of nonqualified stock option agreen

(b) Form of nonqualified stock option agreememtrfor-employee directc

(c) Form of performance stock unit term st

(d) Form of incentive stock option agreem

(e) Long Term Incentive Lett
(incorporated by reference to the Company’s CurRayort on Form 8-K dated May 16, 2007,
Exhibit 99.1).
Avnet Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporateddigrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated May 18, 2005, Exhibit 99.:
Form of Indemnity Agreement. The Company enters ihis form of agreement with each of its directors
and officers. (incorporated herein by referenctnéoCompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated
May 8, 2006, Exhibit 10.1
Form option agreements for stock option plans (ipotated by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 10
(a) Nor-Qualified stock option agreement for 1999 Stocki@pPlan
(b) Incentive stock option agreement for 1999 St@pkion Plar
(c) Incentive stock option agreement for 1996 StOgkion Plar
(d) Nor-Qualified stock option agreement for 1995 Stocki@pPlan

Bank Agreements

Securitization Prograt

(a) Receivables Sale Agreement, dated as of Jurg0P8, between Avnet, Inc., as Originator and Avne
Receivables Corporation as Buyer (incorporatedihdngreference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 1I

(b) Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 6, 2@Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.36(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,
2002, Exhibit 10K)

(c) Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 26, 200Rgeeivables Sale Agreement in 10.36(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@ysent Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,
2002, Exhibit 10L)
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Exhibit
(d) Amendment No. 3, dated as of November 25, 2@DReceivables Sale Agreement in 10.36(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated December 17,
2002, Exhibit 10B)
(e) Amendment No. 4, dated as of December 12, 200Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.36(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@uigent Report on Form 8-K dated December 17,
2002, Exhibit 10E)
() Amendment No. 5, dated as of August 15, 200R¢ceivables Sale Agreement in 10.36(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated September 15,
2003, Exhibit 10C)
(g) Amendment No. 6, dated as of August 3, 200Rdoeivables Sale Agreement in 10.36(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated September 13,
2005, Exhibit 10.1)
(h) Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase iAgrealated as of February 6, 2002 among Avnet
Receivables Corporation, as Seller, Avnet, IncSawicer, the Companies, as defined therein, the
Financial Institutions, as defined therein, and IB&me, NA (Main Office Chicago) as Agent
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,
2002, Exhibit 10M).*
(i) Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 26, 200thécAmended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporated hereineligrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10
() Amendment No. 2, dated as of November 25, 2@®#he Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporageein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10
(k) Amendment No. 3, dated as of December 9, 2ttOthe Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporated hereineligrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10
() Amendment No. 4, dated as of December 12, 2ti0the Amended and Restated Receivables Pur
Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporated hereinetigrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10
(m) Amendment No. 5, dated as of June 23, 200 mended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporated hereinetigrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated September 15, 2003, Exhibit 10
(n) Amendment No. 6, dated as of August 15, 2008 ¢ Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporated hereineligrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated September 15, 2003, Exhibit 1C
(o) Amendment No. 7, dated as of August 3, 200fhécAmended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporated hereinetigrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated September 13, 2005, Exhibit 10
(p) Amendment No. 8, dated as of August 1, 2008hécAmended and Restated Receivables Purchase
Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporated hereineligrence to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated August 29, 2006, Exhibit 10.
() Amendment No. 9, effective as of August 31,200 the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporageein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm &K dated August 29, 2006, Exhibit 10.
(r) Amendment No. 10, effective as of Septemb&086, to the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorpotta¢e€in by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm &K dated August 29, 2007, Exhibit 10.
(s) Amendment No. 11, effective as of August 2797200 the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.36(h) above (incorporageein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report orForm &K dated August 29, 2007, Exhibit 10.
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Exhibit
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated Qcld@)@005, by and among Avnet, Inc., Avnet
Logistics U.S., L.P. and Certain Other Subsidiar@ssBorrowers, Bank of America, N.A. as
Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/Cuss and the Other Lenders party thereto.
(incorporated herein by reference to the Compa@yigent Report on Form 8-#ated October 17, 20(
Exhibit 10.1).
Credit Agreement dated September 27, 2007 amongEBNNC., a New York corporation (the
“Company”), Avnet Japan Co., Ltd., a private compgoverned under the laws of Japan (“Avnet
Japan”), each other Subsidiary of the Company geetgto pursuant to Section 2.14 (Avnet Japan and
each such other Subsidiary, a “Designated Borrowed, together with the Company, the “Borrowers”
and, each a “Borrower”), each lender from timeinwetparty hereto (collectively, the “Lenders” and
individually, a “Lender”), and BANK OF AMERICA, N.A as Administrative Agent, Swing Line
Lender and L/C Issuer. (incorporated herein byregfee to the Company’s Current Report on
Form &K dated September 28, 2007, Exhibit 10
Guaranty dated as of September 27, 2007 made byEAYIMNC., a New York corporation (the
“Guarantor”), to BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., a nation&lanking association organized and existing
under the laws of the United States, as adminig&atgent under the Credit Agreement defined below
(in such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”), éaaf the lenders now or hereafter party to the €red
Agreement defined below (each, a “Lender” andextively, the “Lenders” and, together with the
Administrative Agent, collectively, the “Securedri®s” and each a “Secured Party”) (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Remoorm 8-K dated September 28, 2007,
Exhibit 10.2).

Other Agreements

Securities Acquisition Agreement, dated April 2603, by and among Avnet, Inc. and the sellers named
therein and Memec Group Holdings Limited. (incogted herein by reference to the Compargurren
Report orForm &K dated April 26, 2005, Exhibit 2.1

Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as afriMoer 6, 2006, between MRA Systems, Inc. and
Avnet, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference ®@ompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 7, 2006, Exhibit 10.1

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charg:

List of subsidiaries of the Company as of June22®8.

Consent of KPMG LLP

Certification by Roy Vallee, Chief Executive Officeinder Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification by Raymond Sadowski, Chief Finan€Hficer, under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification by Roy Vallee, Chief Executive Officeinder Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification by Raymond Sadowski, Chief Finan€ficer, under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

*  This Exhibit does not include the Exhibits anch8dules thereto as listed in its table of conteftie. Company
undertakes to furnish any such Exhibits and Schesdwal the Securities and Exchange Commission upon i
request

**  Filed herewith
***  Furnished herewitt
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Avnet, Inc.
Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Fiscal Year Ended

June 28, June 30, July 1, July 2, July 3,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands
Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before incomes $708,95! $586,61¢ $316,14° $239,75¢ $ 98,39¢
Add fixed charge: 95,18¢ 96,74" 118,93: 105,23: 114,97.
Total earning $804,14: $683,36! $435,07! $344,99( $213,37(
Fixed charges
Interest on indebtedne $ 72,28t $ 77,17: $ 96,50¢ $ 85,05¢ $ 94,57
Amortization of debt expens 3,17¢ 3,41z 5,04: 5,18¢ 4,89
Interest component of rent expet 19,72¢ 16,16: 17,38 14,98 15,50:
Total fixed charge $ 95,18t¢ $ 96,74 $118,93. $105,23: $114,97.

(¢6)

Ratio of earnings to to fixed charg 8.4 7.1 3.7 3. 1.¢



Avnet, Inc.

Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries

Company Name

A2Z Supplies (UK) LTD

Access Graphics LL¢

Avnet (Asia Pacific Holdings) Limite
Avnet (Australia) Pty. Ltd

Avnet (Holdings) Ltc

Avnet (N2)

Avnet (Tianjin) Logistics Ltd

Avnet AG

Avnet Applied Computing European Services G
Avnet Asia Pte Ltc

Avnet ASIC Israel Ltc

Avnet Azure Pte. Ltd

Avnet Azure Sdn. Bhc

Avnet B.V.

Avnet Beteiligung-Verwaltungs Gmbt
Avnet Components Israel Limite
Avnet Corporate Services Group, li
Avnet Corporate Trustee Limite
Avnet de Mexico, S.A. de C.\

Avnet de Puerto Rico, In

Avnet Delaware Holdings, In

Avnet Delaware LLC

Avnet do Brasil LTDA

Avnet Electronics Marketing (Australia) Pty L
Avnet EM Sp. z.0.c

Avnet EMG AG

Avnet EMG Elektronische Bauelemente Gm
Avnet EMG France S.A

Avnet EMG GmbH

Avnet EMG ltaly S.r.l.

Avnet EMG Ltd

Avnet Erste Vermoegensverwaltungs GmbH & Co.

Avnet Europe Comm. V/
Avnet Finance B.V

Avnet France S.A.S

Avnet Holding B.V.

Avnet Holding Germany Gmbl

Jurisdiction

Exhibit 21

England and Wale

Delaware
Hong Kong
Australia
United Kingdom
New Zealanc
China
Switzerland
Germany
Singapore
Israel
Singapore
Malaysia
Netherland:
Germany
Israel
Delaware
United Kingdom
Mexico
Puerto Ricc
Delaware
Delaware
Brazil
Australia
Poland
Switzerland
Austria
France
Germany
Italy

United Kingdom
Germany
Belgium
Netherland:
France
Netherland:
Germany




Company Name Jurisdiction

Avnet Holding South Africa (Pty) Limite South Africa
Avnet Holdings (Australia) Pty. Limite Australia
Avnet Holdings UK Limitec United Kingdom
Avnet Holdings, LLC Delaware
Avnet Iberia S.A Spain
Avnet India Private Limite India

Avnet International (Canada) Lt Canade
Avnet International, LLC Delaware
Avnet IT B.V. Netherland
Avnet IT Limited United Kingdom
Avnet IT N.V. Belgium
Avnet Italy Srl Italy

Avnet Japan Co., Ltc Japar
Avnet Kopp (Pty) Limitec South Africa
Avnet Korea, Inc Korea, Republic o
Avnet Limited Ireland
Avnet Logistics (Shenzhen) Lt China
Avnet Logistics B.V.B.A. Belgium
Avnet Logistics GmbF Germany
Avnet Logistics Holding Corg Arizona
Avnet Logistics U.S., L.F Texas
Avnet Malaysia Sdn Bh Malaysia
Avnet Nortec A/S Denmark
Avnet Nortec AB Sweder
Avnet Nortec AS Norway
Avnet Nortec Oy Finland
Avnet Pacific Pty Limitec Australia
Avnet Partner Solutions (Malaysia) Sdn. B Malaysia
Avnet Partner Solutions Pte. Lt Singapore
Avnet Partner Solutions, S. de R.L. de C Mexico
Avnet Philippines Pty Ltd., Inc Philippines
Avnet Properties Corporatic Delaware
Avnet Receivables Corporatis Delaware
Avnet S.r.l. Italy

Avnet s.r.c Czech Republir
Avnet Solutions Pte. Ltc Singapore
Avnet Solutions Sdn. Bh Malaysia
Avnet Sp. z.0.0 Poland
Avnet Sunrise Limitec Hong Kong
Avnet Technology (Thailand) Lt Thailand
Avnet Technology Hong Kong Limite Hong Kong
Avnet Technology Solutions (Tianjin) L China
Avnet Technology Solutions B.\ Netherland:
Avnet Technology Solutions Gmkb Germany

Avnet Technology Solutions Handelsgesellschaft ish. Austria




Company Name

Avnet Technology Solutions K
Avnet Technology Solutions L1
Avnet Technology Solutions Pte. Lf
Avnet Technology Solutions S.,
Avnet Technology Solutions s.r
Avnet Technology Solutions S.R.
Avnet Technology Solutions s.r.
Avnet Technology Solutions SA
Avnet Verwaltungs Gmbt

Azzurri Technology (UK) Limitec
Azzurri Technology Gmbt
Azzurri Technology Limitec
Azzurri Technology S.A.R.L
Azzurri Technology S.R.L
Betronik GmbH Berlin Vertriebsgesellsch
BFI Vermogensverwaltungs Gmt
BFI-IBEXSA International LLC
ChannelWorx Pty Lt

Chinatronic Technology Limite
CM Satellite Systems, In:

Del-La Distribution Electroniqu
EBV Beteiligung-Verwaltungs Gmbt
EBV Elektronic sp. z 0.c

EBV Elektronik ApS

EBV Elektronik EPE

EBV Elektronik France SA

EBV Elektronik GmbH & Co. KC
EBV Elektronik Israel Ltc

EBV Elektronik Kft

EBV Elektronik M

EBV Elektronik OU

EBV Elektronik S.r.l.

EBV Elektronik S.R.L.

EBV Elektronik s.r.o

EBV Elektronik SAS

EBV Elektronik Spain S.L

EBV Elektronik spol. s r.c

EBV Elektronik Ticaret Ltc

EBV Elektronik TOB

EBV Elektronik, Druzba Za Posredovanje D.O

EBV Management Gmbl
EBV Vermoégensverwaltungs Gmt
EBV-Elektronik GmbH

EES Esco Elektronik Sistemleri Sanayi Ve Ticarenitéd Sirketi

Electrolink (PTY) Ltd

Jurisdiction

Hungary

United Kingdom
Singapore
Spain

Italy

Romanis
Slovakia

France
Germany

England and Wale

Germany
Wales
France
Italy
Germany
Germany
Delaware
Australia
Hong Kong
New York
France
Germany
Poland
Denmark
Greece
France
Germany
Israel
Hungary
Russia
Estonia
Italy
Romaniza
Slovakia
France
Spain
Czech Republi
Turkey
Ukraine
Slovenia
Germany
Germany
Austria
Turkey
South Africa




Company Name

Electron House (Overseas) Limit

Enlaces Computacionales, S. de R.L. de (
Erste Tenva Property GmbH Gruber Stre
Esco Bo S.r.l

Esco Hellas MEPI

Esco Italiana S.r.

Esconor (Electronique sous Traitance N— Céte ¢ Or) SAS

Eurotronics B.V

Flint Distribution Holdings Limitec

Flint Distribution Limited

Instituto de Educacion Avanzada, S. de R.L. de !
Kent One Corporatio

Memec (Asia Pacific) Limite

Memec (Memory and Electronic Components) Israelitad

Memec Electronic Components (AP) Limit
Memec Europe Limite:

Memec Gmbt

Memec Group Holdings Limite

Memec Group Limite(

Memec Holdings Limitet

Memec Inicore Gmbt

Memec Inicore Holding Gmbl

Memec Pty Limitec

MI Technology Products de Mexico, S. de R.L. de (
Pride Well Limited

Société Civile Immobiliére du 22 rue de Dan
Soluciones Mercantiles, S. de R.L. de C
Sunrise Logistics (Shanghai) Limit

TelMil Electronics Israel Lt

Telmil Electronics, Inc

Tenva Belgium Comm. V¢

Tenva Financial Management B.V.B.
Thomas Kaubisch Gmb

YEL Electronics (China) Limite:

YEL Electronics (Shanghai) Limite

YEL Electronics (Shenzhen) L

YEL Electronics Hong Kong Limite

YEL Electronics Korea Co Lt

YEL Electronics Pte Lt

YEL Electronics Sdn Bh

YEL Korea (HK) Limited

Zweite Tenva Property GmbH Im Technologiep

Jurisdiction

United Kingdom
Mexico
Germany

Italy

Greece

Italy

France
Netherland
England and Wale
England
Mexico
Delaware

Hong Kong
Israel

Hong Kong
United Kingdom
Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Switzerlanc
Switzerland
Australia
Mexico

Virgin Islands
France

Mexico

China

Israel

Delaware
Belgium
Belgium
Germany

Hong Kong
China

China

Hong Kong
Korea, Republic o
Singapore
Malaysia

Hong Kong
Germany



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Avnet, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrdlggstration statements No. 333-107474 on Forma8eBNos. 33-43855, 33-64765, 333-
17271, 333-45735, 333-55806, 333-00129, 333-452835101039, 333-112057, 333-112062, 333-112063388e140903 on Form S-8 of
Avnet, Inc. of our report dated August 25, 2008hwespect to the consolidated balance sheets pétAinc. and subsidiaries as of June 28,
2008 and June 30, 2007, and the related consdlidtatements of operations, shareholders’ equity,cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended June 28, 2008, the refataulcial statement schedule, and the effectivenésgernal control over financial

reporting as of June 28, 2008, which report app@atse June 28, 2008 annual report on Form 10-Kwfet, Inc.

As discussed in note 10 to the consolidated firdstatements, effective June 30, 2007, the Compeaopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 19Bmployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiad &ther Postretirement Plans — an amendment of
FASB No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(As discussed in note 9 to the consolidated findistéements, on July 1, 2007, the Company addptd
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Bdatdrpretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — ariiptetation of
FASB Statement No. 1(

/sl KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 25, 2008



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Roy Vallee, Chief Executive Officer of Avnet,dn certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Avnet, Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjeand other financial information included irstreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrard’other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitdleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ajl&fd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahgé@orting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a. designed such disclosure controls and puresdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b.  designed such internal control over finahn@porting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

c.  evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. disclosed in this report any change in #ggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and materialkeesses in the design or operation of internairebaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, thabimes management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 27, 2008

/s ROY VALLEE
Roy Vallee
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Raymond Sadowski, Chief Financial Officer of AtnInc., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Avnet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjeand other financial information included irstreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrard’other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitdleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13ajl&td 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahgé@orting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a. designed such disclosure controls and puresdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

b. designed such internal control over finahn@porting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princij

c.  evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d. disclosed in this report any change in gggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and materiabkeesses in the design or operation of internairebaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: August 27, 2008

/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI
Raymond Sadowsk
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. &cTion 1350
(As ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9060F THE SARBANES-OXLEY AcT oF 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the year ended June 28, 2008 (the “RepdrtRoy Vallee, Chief Executive Officer
Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby certify that:

1.

The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SeearExchange Act of 1934; ai
2.

The information contained in the Reportl§agresents, in all material respects, the findmadition and results of operations of the
Company

Date: August 27, 2008

/sl ROY VALLEE
Roy Vallee
Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2082 been provided to the Company and
will be retained by the Company and furnished o $lecurities and Exchange Commission or its sfaghuequest. This certification will not
be deemed “filedfor purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Acttberwise subject to the liability of that sectidfor will this certificatior

be deemed to be incorporated by reference intditmy under the Securities Act or the Exchange,Aotcept to the extent that the registrant
specifically incorporates it by reference.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. &cTion 1350
(As ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 9060F THE SARBANES-OXLEY AcT oF 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10eK the year ended June 28, 2008 (the “ReportRaymond Sadowski, Chief Financial
Officer of Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby dértthat:

1.

The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SeearExchange Act of 1934; ai
2.

The information contained in the Reportl§agresents, in all material respects, the findmmiadition and results of operations of the
Company

Date: August 27, 2008

/sl RAYMOND SADOWSKI
Raymond Sadowski
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2082 been provided to the Company and
will be retained by the Company and furnished ® $lecurities and Exchange Commission or its sfaghuequest. This certification will not
be deemed “filedfor purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Actitberwise subject to the liability of that sectidfor will this certificatior

be deemed to be incorporated by reference intdiimy under the Securities Act or the Exchange,Aotcept to the extent that the registrant
specifically incorporates it by reference.



